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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Forward Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 1R-contains, and other periodic and current repamts press releases of BankFinancial Corporationcoatain
forward-looking statements within the meaning oft®e 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 193amended, that involve significant
risks and uncertainties. We intend such forwardkilog statements to be covered by the safe hartmvigions for forward-looking statements
contained in the Private Securities Litigation RefcAct of 1995, and are including this statementtfi@ purpose of invoking these safe harbor
provisions. Forward-looking statements are baseckotain assumptions or describe our future plstnategies and expectations, and are
generally identifiable by use of the words “beligviexpect,” “i anticipate,” “estimate,” “mject,” “plan,” or similar expressions. Our

intend,
ability to predict results or the actual effecipidins or strategies is inherently uncertain, andadcesults or effects may differ from those
predicted. Factors that could have a material agveffect on operations and could affect managesentlook or our future prospects inclu
but are not limited to: higher than expected ovadhénfrastructure and compliance costs, changesaitket interest rates, changes in the yield
curve, balance sheet shrinkage or less than aat@ddalance sheet growth, lack of demand for ppaducts, illiquidity and changes in
financial markets, including the market for mortgdzmacked securities and other debt obligationdjrdeg demand for real estate and real
estate valuations, increasing unemployment ledelgosit flows, pricing, underwriting and other farwf competition, adverse federal or state
legislative or regulatory developments, monetany fiscal policies of the U.S. Government, includpaicies of the U.S. Treasury and Federal
Reserve Board, adverse economic conditions thdtlcesult in increased delinquencies in our loartfptio or a decline in the value of our
investment securities and the collateral for oank the quality or composition of our loan or istveent portfolios, demand for financial
services and mulfiamily, commercial and residential real estate $o@nour market areas, the possible dilutive efééqiotential acquisitions

de novo branches, if any, changes in accountimgipiies, policies and guidelines, increased cdstsderal deposit insurance, our failure to
integrate an acquired institution successfullyari@ve expected synergies and cost savings, auntefatlverse developments concerning the
Federal Home Loan Bank of Chicago. These risksusnegrtainties, as well as the Risk Factors sel fiorttem 1A below, should be conside

in evaluating forward-looking statements and undilience should not be placed on such statemergsd®\hot undertake any obligation to
update any forward-looking statement in the futoreo reflect circumstances and events that oaftar the date on which the forward-looking
statement was made.

BankFinancial Corporation

BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corporati@atiquartered in Burr Ridge, lllinois (the “Companyfecame the owner of all of the
issued and outstanding capital stock of BankFirenEiS.B. (the “Bank”) on June 23, 2005, when westimmated a plan of conversion and
reorganization that the Bank and its predecesddirtgpcompanies, BankFinancial MHC, Inc. and Bamidficial Corporation, a federal
corporation, adopted on August 25, 2004. BankFis@orporation, the Maryland corporation, was aiigad in 2004 to facilitate the mutual-
to-stock conversion and to become the holding compar the Bank upon its completion.

As part of the mutual-to-stock conversion, BankRitial Corporation, the Maryland corporation, sofd466,250 shares of common stock in a
subscription offering for $10.00 per share. Theasafe corporate existences of BankFinancial MHCBawkFinancial Corporation, the federal
corporation, ceased upon the completion of the alttasstock conversion. For a further discussiothef mutual-to-stock conversion, see our
Prospectus as filed on April 29, 2005 with the $ities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) pursuariRtite 424(b)(3) of the Rules and
Regulations of the Securities Act of 1933 (File Nuen333-119217).

We manage our operations as one unit, and thustiloere separate operating segments. Our chie&tipgrdecision-makers use consolidated
results to make operating and strategic decisions.

BankFinancial, F.S.B.

The Bank is a full-service, community-oriented fedesavings bank principally engaged in the busirdscommercial, family and personal
banking, and offers our customers a broad rang@aof deposit, and other financial products andises through 18 full-service banking
offices and three Express Branch facilities locate@ook, DuPage, Lake and Will Counties, lllinasd through our Internet Branch,
www.bankfinancial.com




The Bank’s primary business is making loans aneatong deposits. The Bank also offers our custoraesariety of financial products and
services that are related or ancillary to loansa@embsits, including cash management, funds tres)dfél payment and other online banking
transactions, automated teller machines, safe ddpmees, wealth management, and general insurageecy services.

The Bank’s primary lending area consists of thenties where our branch offices are located, andigwous counties in the State of lllinois.
We derive the most significant portion of our reves from these geographic areas. Through our Wélel&€mmercial Lending and National
Commercial Leasing Departments, we also engageulti-family lending activities in selected metroftah areas outside our primary lending
area and in commercial leasing activities on aomatide basis. The Bank’s primary market for deoisittoncentrated around the areas where
our full-service banking offices and Express Brafattilities are located.

Lending Activities

Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmetd business loans (multi-family, nonresidentall estate, commercial, construction and
land loans, and commercial leases), which repredefi.9% of our total loan portfolio at Decembey Z110. At December 31, 2010, $296.9
million, or 27.7%, of our total loan portfolio cdeged of multi-family mortgage loans; $282.0 miflicor 26.3%, of our total loan portfolio
consisted of nonresidential real estate loans;7@dllion, or 6.0%, of our total loan portfolio ceisted of commercial loans; $151.1 million, or
14.1%, of our total loan portfolio consisted of goercial leases; and $18.4 million, or 1.7%, of mial loan portfolio consisted of construct
and land loans. $256.3 million, or 23.9%, of ouatdoan portfolio consisted of one-to-four familysidential mortgage loans (of which $76.0
million, or 7.1%, were loans to investors in nonraroccupied single-family homes), including homeity loans and lines of credit.

Deposit Activities

Our deposit accounts consist principally of saviagsounts, NOW accounts, checking accounts, morakehaccounts, certificates of depc
and IRAs and other qualified plan accounts. We pi®eommercial checking accounts and related ses\dach as cash management. We also
provide low-cost checking account services. We oslyur favorable locations, customer service, agtitipe pricing, our Internet Branch and
related deposit services such as cash managemattitetct and retain deposit accounts.

At December 31, 2010, our deposits totaled $1.26rh Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.128dyi and noninterest-bearing demand
deposits totaled $112.5 million, which includedGillion in internal checking accounts such askbeeshier checks and money orders.
Savings, money market and NOW account depositketbf42.8 million, and certificates of deposittetd $380.1 million, of which $271.2
million had maturities of one year or less.

Related Products and Services

The Banks Wealth Management Group provides investmentniizh planning and other wealth management sert@esir customers throu
arrangements with a third-party broker-dealer. Baak's wholly-owned subsidiary, Financial Assuras&vices, Inc. (“Financial
Assurance”), sells life insurance, fixed annuitigmperty and casualty insurance and other inserpneducts on an agency basis. Financial
Assurance was engaged in the sale of title inserancan agency basis until March 15, 2008. Ondatg, Financial Assurance completed the
sale of its title insurance agency business tordynformed, third-party title insurance agency. Hade of the title insurance agency business
did not affect Financial Assurance’s other insueabhasinesses. During the year ended December 2@, Ehancial Assurance reported net
income of $209,000. At December 31, 2010, Finanksslurance had four full-time employees. The Baolfeer wholly-owned subsidiary, BF
Asset Recovery Corporation, is in the businessotifing title to and selling certain Bank-owned resfate, and reported a loss of $2.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2010.



Website and Stockholder Information

The website for the Company and the Bank is wwwkfinancial.com. Information on this website does not constituae pf this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

The Company makes available, free of charge, itsudhReport on Form 10-K, its quarterly reportsQumarterly Report on Form 10-Q, its
current reports on Formi8-and amendments to such reports filed or furnigheduant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Se@siExchange A
of 1934, as amended ( “Exchange Act”), as soorasanably practicable after such forms are fileth i furnished to the SEC. Copies of
these documents are available to stockholders ritfBaancial’s web site, www.bankfinancial.corander Stockholder Information, and at the
SEC'’s web site, www.sec.gov

Competition

We face significant competition in both originatitogins and attracting deposits. The Chicago melitaparea and some other areas in which
we operate have a high concentration of finanaistitutions, many of which are significantly largestitutions that have greater financial
resources than we have, and many of which arearapetitors to varying degrees. Our competitionidans and leases comes principally from
commercial banks, savings banks, mortgage bankingpanies, credit unions, leasing companies, inggranmpanies, real estate conduits and
other companies that provide financial servicelsusinesses and individuals. Our most direct cortipetior deposits has historically come

from commercial banks, savings banks and creddnmiWe face additional competition for depositgrfronline financial institutions and non-
depository competitors such as the mutual fundstrigiusecurities and brokerage firms and insur&ocepanies.

We seek to meet this competition by emphasizinggelized service and efficient decisimaking tailored to individual needs. In additiorg
reward longstanding relationships with preferred rates anehseon deposit products based on existing and petispdending business. We
not rely on any individual, group or entity for atarial portion of our loans or our deposits.

Employees

At December 31, 2010, we had 310 full-time empleyaed 27 part-time employees. The employees anepogsented by a collective
bargaining unit and we consider our working relasioip with our employees to be good.

Supervision and Regulation
General

As a federally chartered savings bank, the Bamkiisently regulated and supervised primarily by @féice of Thrift Supervision ( “OTS”).

The Bank is also subject to regulation by the Faldeeposit Insurance Corporation ( “FDIC”) in mdiraited circumstances because the
Bank’s deposits are insured by the FDIC. This regulaamiy supervisory structure establishes a compreleeframework of activities in whic
a financial institution may engage, and is intengeaharily for the protection of the FDI€'deposit insurance funds, depositors and the bg
system. Under this system of federal regulatiomritial institutions are periodically examined ts@re that they satisfy applicable standards
with respect to their capital adequacy, assetsag@ment, earnings, liquidity and sensitivity to kedrinterest rates. After completing an
examination, the OTS critiques the financial indi@n’s operations in a report of examination assigns it a rating (known as an institution’s
CAMELS rating). Under federal law, an institutioraynnot disclose its CAMELS rating to the public.

The Bank is a member of, and owns stock in, theeFddHome Loan Bank of Chicago ( “FHLBCyhich is one of the 12 regional banks in
Federal Home Loan Bank System. The Bank also islaggf to a lesser extent by the Board of Goverabtse Federal Reserve System with
regard to reserves it must maintain against depasitl other matters. The OTS examines the Banki@pdres reports for the consideration of
its Board of Directors on any identified operataficiencies. The Bank’s relationship with its dsipars and borrowers also is regulated in
some respects by both federal and state laws, iafipés matters concerning the ownership of depastounts, and the form and content of
Bank’s consumer loan documents.



The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumereetmn Act ( “Dodd-Frank Act”), which was signed the President on July 21, 2010,
provides for the transfer of the authority for rieging and supervising federal savings banks frioen@TS to the Office of the Comptroller of
the Currency (“*OCC"), and the authority for regudgtand supervising savings and loan holding corigsaand their non-depository
subsidiaries from the OTS to the Board of Govermdithe Federal Reserve Board ( “FRB”). The tran&feurrently scheduled to occur

July 21, 2011. The Dodd-Frank Act also createsvafeederal agency, the Consumer Financial Proted@iareau ( “CFPB”), as an independent
bureau of the Federal Reserve Board, to conduetmalking, supervision, and enforcement of fedewakamer financial protection and fair
lending laws and regulations. The CFPB will havaraiation and primary enforcement authority in agtion with these laws and regulatic
for depository institutions with total assets ofmathan $10 billion. Depository institutions witti@billion or less in total assets will continue
to be examined for compliance with these laws agailations by their primary federal regulators, aillremain subject to their enforcement
authority. Because of these changes, the OCC wtbime the primary federal regulator of the Bank twed-RB will become the primary
federal regulator of the Company on the transfée.dehe Bank will not be subject to the examinatiothe primary enforcement authority of
the CFPB.

There can be no assurance that laws, rules antatiegs will not change in the future, which coatdke compliance more difficult or
expensive or otherwise adversely affect our businf@sancial condition, results of operations agrects. Any change in these laws or
regulations, or in regulatory policy, whether bg fBCC, FDIC, the FRB, the OTS, the CFPB or Congeasld have a material adverse img
on the Company, the Bank and their respective tipesa

Federal Banking Regulation

Business ActivitiesAs a federal savings bank, the Bank derives itdifepand investment powers from the Home OwnersirLAct, as
amended, and the regulations of the OTS. Undeetla®ss and regulations, the Bank may invest in gagé loans secured by residential and
nonresidential real estate, commercial businescansumer loans, certain types of securities andiceother loans and assets. Specifically,
the Bank may originate, invest in, sell, or pur@haslimited loans on the security of residential estate, while loans on nonresidential real
property generally may not, on a combined basiseed 400% of the Bank’s total capital. In additisecured and unsecured commercial loans
and certain types of commercial personal propedgés may not exceed 20% of the Barssets; however, amounts in excess of 10% df
may only be used for small business loans. FurtherBank may generally invest up to 35% of itetss1 consumer loans, corporate debt
securities and commercial paper on a combined Jasisup to the greater of its capital or 5% ofgsets in unsecured construction loans. The
Bank may invest up to 10% of its assets in tangielesonal property, for rental or sale. Certairsésaon tangible personal property are not
aggregated with commercial or consumer loans feptirposes of determining compliance with the Etidins set forth for those investment
categories. The Bank also may establish subsiditiiet may engage in activities not otherwise pgsibie for the Bank directly, including real
estate investment and insurance agency activiie®lation of the lending and investment limitai®omay be subject to the same enforcement
mechanisms of the primary federal regulator asrotidations of a law or regulation.

Capital RequirementsThe regulations of the OTS require federal savireysks to meet three minimum capital standardsti@a e&tangible
capital to adjusted total assets of 1.5%; a rdtiDier 1 (core) capital to adjusted total assetd.686 (3% for institutions receiving the highest
rating on the CAMELS rating system); and a ratiaadél capital to total risk-adjusted assets oP8.0he prompt corrective action standards
discussed below, in effect, establish a minimumt&fgible capital standard.

The riskbased capital standard for federal savings bargusnes the maintenance of Tier 1, or core capdtad total capital (which is defined
core capital and supplementary capital) to riskglvtgd assets of at least 4% and 8%, respectiveljetermining the amount of risk-weighted
assets, all assets, including certain off-balaheesassets, are multiplied by a risk-weight facfd% to 100%, assigned by the OTS capital
regulation based on the risks inherent in the tyfpesset. Core capital is defined as common stddkhsl equity (including retained earnings),
certain noncumulative perpetual preferred stockratated surplus and minority interests in equigaunts of consolidated subsidiaries, less
intangibles other than certain mortgage servicights and credit card relationships. The componehssipplementary capital currently inclu
cumulative perpetual preferred stock, long-ternfgred stock, mandatory convertible securitiespsdimated debt and intermediate-term
preferred stock, allowance for loan and lease Bageto a maximum of 1.25% of risk-weighted asaatsup to 45% of net unrealized gains on
available-forsale equity securities with readily determinable ffigarket values. Overall, the amount of supplermgntapital included as part
total capital cannot exceed 100% of core capital.



At December 31, 2010, the Bank’s capital exceedleapalicable regulatory requirements.

Loans-to-One-Borrower A federal savings bank generally may not make a tweextend credit to a single or related groupafowers in
excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplusadditional amount may be loaned, equal to 10%nahpaired capital and surplus, if the
loan is secured by readily marketable collateralictv generally does not include real estate. ABedember 31, 2010, the Bank was in
compliance with the loans-to-one-borrower limitago

Qualified Thrift Lender TestAs a federal savings bank, the Bank is subjectdoaified thrift lender, or “QTL,” test. Under tH@TL test, the
Bank must maintain at least 65% of its “portfolgsats” in “qualified thrift investments” in at léasne months of the most recent 12-month
period. “Portfolio assetgjenerally means the total assets of a savingsutisti, less the sum of specified liquid assetsaup0% of total assel
goodwill and other intangible assets, and the vafygroperty used in the conduct of the federalregssbank’s business.

“Quialified thrift investments” include various typef loans made for residential and housing purdagestments related to those purposes,
including certain mortgage-backed and related $&esirand loans for personal, family, household e@rtain other purposes up to a limit of
20% of portfolio assets. “Qualified thrift investnts” also include 100% of an institutian¢redit card loans, education loans and smalhless
loans. The Bank also may satisfy the QTL test bglifping as a “domestic building and loan assooiatias defined in the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986. At December 31, 2010, the Bank meiathapproximately 76.95% of its portfolio assetsjualified thrift investments, and as
that date, satisfied the QTL test. A federal sasibgnk that fails the QTL test must operate undecified restrictions, including limits on
growth, branching, new investment and dividendsaAesult of the Dodd-Frank Act, noncompliance it QTL test is subject to regulatory
enforcement action as a violation of law.

Capital Distributions.The regulations of the OTS govern capital distiitng by a federal savings bank, which include ahiglidends, stock
repurchases and other transactions charged tastitition’s capital account. A federal savingstbarust file an application for approval of a
capital distribution if:

» the total capital distributions for the applicabldendar year exceed the sum of the institutioatamcome for that year to date plus
the federal savings ba’'s retained net income for the preceding two ye

« the institution would not be at least adequatefpitedized following the distributior
» the distribution would violate any applicable stafuregulation, agreement or C-imposed condition; ¢
» the institution is not eligible for expedited trewnt of its filings.

Even if an application is not otherwise requirecerg federal savings bank that is a subsidiary ledlding company must still file a notice with
the OTS at least 30 days before the board of directeclares a dividend or approves a capitalibligion. At December 31, 2010, the Bank
would be required to file an application for appabef a capital distribution to the Company.
The OTS may disapprove a notice or application if:

» the federal savings bank would be undercapitaliadwing the distribution

» the proposed capital distribution raises safetysmddness concerns;

» the capital distribution would violate a prohibiticontained in any statute, regulation or agreen
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Liquidity. A federal savings bank is required to maintainfidant amount of liquid assets to ensure its safd sound operation.

Community Reinvestment Act and Fair Lending Lawall federal savings banks have a responsibilityemtie Community Reinvestment Act
(“CRA™) and related regulations of the OTS to halpet the credit needs of their communities, inelgdow and moderate income
neighborhoods. In connection with its examinatiba éederal savings bank, the OTS is required tdwate and rate the federal savings bank’s
record of compliance with the CRA. In addition, thgual Credit Opportunity Act and the Fair Houshx prohibit lenders from discriminatil

in their lending practices based on the charatiesispecified in those statutes. A federal savivay’s failure to comply with the provisions
the CRA could, at a minimum, result in regulatoggtrictions on its activities. The failure to complith the Equal Credit Opportunity Act and
the Fair Housing Act could result in enforcemerntars by the OTS, as well as other federal regwyaagencies and the Department of Justice.
The OTS has rated the Bank’s CRA performance asst@uoding,” the highest possible rating, in the CIR&formance Evaluations the OTS
has completed on the Bank since 1999.

Privacy StandardsFinancial institutions are subject to regulatiompliementing the privacy protection provisions af tBramm-Leach-Bliley
Act. These regulations require the Bank to discltsprivacy policy, including identifying with whm it shares “nonpublic personal
information” to customers at the time of establighihe customer relationship and annually theredfieaddition, the Bank is required to
provide its customers with the ability to “opt-owtf or consent to having the Bank share their nbtippersonal information with unaffiliated
third parties before it can disclose such informmatisubject to certain exceptions. The implememtatf these regulations did not have a
material adverse effect on the Bank. The Gramm-hdlidey Act also allows each state to enact legish that is more protective of
consumers’ personal information.

The OTS and other federal banking agencies havetedguidelines establishing standards for safefjugucustomer information to impleme
certain provisions of the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Achelguidelines describe the agencies’ expectatimnthé creation, implementation and
maintenance of an information security program,clvhivould include administrative, technical and pbgissafeguards appropriate to the size
and complexity of a financial institution and theture and scope of its activities. The standartfosth in the guidelines are intended to ensure
the security and confidentiality of customer recoathd information, to protect against any anti@dahreats or hazards to the security or
integrity of such records, and to protect agaimstuthorized access to or use of such records er gtformation that could result in substantial
harm or inconvenience to any customer. The Bankrhpemented these guidelines, and such implemientatis not had a material adverse
effect on our operations.

Transactions with Related Parties federal savings bank’s authority to engage ingeactions with its “affiliates” is limited by OTS
regulations and by Sections 23A and 23B of the Fddeserve Act and its implementing regulationgtation W. The term “affiliates” for
these purposes generally means any company thebtsoar is under common control with an insuregatgtory institution, although
subsidiaries of federal savings banks are genemaligonsidered affiliates for the purposes of iBast23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve
The Company is an affiliate of the Bank. In genetralnsactions with affiliates must be on termg #ra as favorable to the federal savings |
as comparable transactions with non-affiliatesaddition, certain types of these transactions estricted to an aggregate percentage of the
federal savings bank’s capital. Collateral in sfiediamounts must usually be provided by affilidgtesrder to receive loans from the federal
savings bank. OTS regulations also prohibit a faldeavings bank from lending to any of its affdéiatthat are engaged in activities that are not
permissible for bank holding companies, and fromthasing the securities of any affiliate, othemtlaasubsidiary.

The Bank’s authority to extend credit to its diagst executive officers and 10% stockholders, dsageto entities controlled by such persons,
is currently governed by the requirements of Sesti22(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act aaguRition O of the Federal Reserve
Board. Among other things, these provisions reqgihiat extensions of credit to insiders be madesams that are substantially the same as, anc
follow credit underwriting procedures that are lesis stringent than, those prevailing for comparafansactions with unaffiliated persons and
that do not involve more than the normal risk gfaygment or present other unfavorable featuresnahéxceed certain limitations on the
amount of credit extended to such persons, indallgwand in the aggregate, which limits are bagegart, on the amount of the Baslcapital

In addition, extensions of credit in excess ofaiartimits must receive the prior approval of thenR’s Board of Directors.
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Enforcement.The OTS has primary enforcement responsibility dederal savings banks, and has the authorityitalemforcement action
against the Bank and all “institution-affiliatedrpas,” including stockholders, attorneys, appreisend accountants who knowingly or
recklessly participate in wrongful action likely have an adverse effect on an insured instituonmal enforcement action may range from
the issuance of a capital directive or cease anidtderder to the removal of officers and/or dioest receivership, conservatorship or the
termination of deposit insurance. Civil monetaryngiéies cover a wide range of violations and aaj@nd range up to $25,000 per day, unless
a finding of reckless disregard is made, in whiabecpenalties may be as high as $1 million per Hag.FDIC also has the authority to
recommend to the Director of the OTS that an emfmient action be taken with respect to a partickdaings institution. If action is not taken
by the Director, the FDIC has authority to také@acunder specified circumstances. The OTS’ enfoer@ authority over federal savings
banks is currently scheduled to be transferretiédQCC on July 21, 2011 pursuant to the Dodd-Frertk

Standards for Safety and SoundneFederal law requires each federal banking agenpyescribe certain standards for all insured deposi
institutions. These standards relate to, among dliegs, internal controls, information systems andit systems, loan documentation, credit
underwriting, interest rate risk exposure, asseivtt, compensation and other operational and maizhgéandards as the agency deems
appropriate. The federal banking agencies adoptieddgency Guidelines Prescribing Standards foet$aihd Soundness to implement the
safety and soundness standards required undeaféawr The guidelines set forth the safety anchsloess standards that the federal banking
agencies use to identify and address problemsatéd depository institutions before capital becoimgaired. The guidelines address internal
controls and information systems, internal audétesns, credit underwriting, loan documentatiorgriest rate risk exposure, asset growth,
compensation, fees and benefits. If the appropféateral banking agency determines that an ingtiitfils to meet any standard prescribed by
the guidelines, the agency may require the ingtituio submit to the agency an acceptable plarchiese compliance with the standard.

Prompt Corrective Action Regulatior. Under the prompt corrective action regulations,®&7S is required and authorized to take supervisory
actions against undercapitalized federal saving&sor this purpose, a federal savings bankaisgal in one of the following five categories
based on the federal savings bank’s capital:

« well-capitalized (at least 5% leverage capital, 6%Zligsk-based capital and 10% total 1-based capital

» adequately capitalized (at least 4% leverage daghatier 1 risl-based capital and 8% total r-based capital]

« undercapitalized (less than 3% leverage capitaltidfd risl-based capital or 8% total r-based capital’

» significantly undercapitalized (less than 3% legeraapital, 3% tier 1 ri-based capital or 6% total r-based capital); an
» critically undercapitalized (less than 2% tangitégital).

Generally, the banking regulator is required tocapipa receiver or conservator for a federal savipgnk that is “critically undercapitalized.”
The regulation also provides that a capital resitmmgplan must be filed with the OTS within 45 dafghe date a bank receives notice that it is
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitaliZedr “critically undercapitalized.” In addition, meerous mandatory supervisory actions
become immediately applicable to the federal sas/trank, including, but not limited to, restrictioms growth, investment activities, capital
distributions and affiliate transactions. The OT&ymalso take any one of a number of discretionapgsrvisory actions against undercapitali
federal savings banks, including the issuanceaafatal directive and the replacement of seniocetiee officers and directors.

At December 31, 2010, the Bank met the critericbfging considered “well-capitalized.”

Interest on DepositsFederal laws and regulations currently prohibitgad#ory institutions from paying interest on cormoi@ checking
accounts. The Dodd-Frank Act authorizes the paymkimterest on commercial checking accounts eiffeciuly 21, 2011.
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Insurance of Deposit AccountThe Bank’s deposits are insured up to applicabiédiby the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC. &frttie
FDIC's risk-based assessment system, insuredutistis are assigned to one of four risk categdréesed on supervisory evaluations,
regulatory capital levels and certain other fagtasigh less risky institutions paying lower assesais. An institution’s assessment rate depends
upon the category to which it is assigned, sulifgcertain adjustments specified by the FDIC’s.esssnent rates currently range from seven to
77.5 basis points of assessable deposits. The RFialCadjust the scale uniformly, except that no stdpent can deviate by more than three
basis points from the base scale without noticecamdment. No institution may pay a dividend ifstin default of the federal deposit insurance
assessment.

The Dodd-Frank Act requires the FDIC to revisepitscedures to base its assessments upon totas éssetangible equity instead of on
deposits. The FDIC recently issued a final rule thidl implement that change beginning the secoundrtgr of 2011.

The FDIC imposed on all insured institutions a sgleemergency assessment of five basis pointstaf &ssets minus Tier 1 capital (as of
June 30, 2009), capped at ten basis points ofsitution’s deposit assessment base, in orderterdosses to the Deposit Insurance Fund.
That special assessment was collected on Septe&d@h2009.

The FDIC provided for similar assessment authdatitsing the final two quarters of 2009, if deemedessary. In lieu of further special
assessments, the FDIC required insured institutmpsepay estimated quarterly risk-based assegsrfarthe fourth quarter of 2009 through
the fourth quarter of 2012. The estimated assessmadrich included an assumed annual base incréd&$é,overe recorded as a prepaid
expense asset as of December 31, 2009, and eatarghareafter, a charge to earnings is recordeddch regulator assessment with an
offsetting credit to the prepaid asset.

The Dodd-Frank Act increased the minimum targetd3@dnsurance Fund ratio from 1.15% of estimatesifed deposits to 1.35% of
estimated insured deposits. The FDIC must seekhizee the 1.35% ratio by September 30, 2020. &wsimstitutions with assets of $10 billi
or more are supposed to fund the increase. The {boalik Act eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund ratitstead leaving the ratio to the
discretion of the FDIC. The FDIC recently exercisiealt discretion by establishing a long-range frattb of 2%.

The FDIC has authority to increase insurance assa#s. A significant increase in insurance premiwasald be likely have an adverse effect
on the operating expenses and results of operatiothe Bank. The Bank cannot predict what theriasoe assessment rates will be in the
future.

An insured institution’s deposit insurance maydrentinated by the FDIC upon a finding that the tnsittn has engaged in unsafe or unsound
practices, is in an unsafe or unsound conditiocotgtinue operations or has violated any applickblg regulation, rule, order or regulatory
condition imposed in writing. The management of Blamk does not know of any practice, condition iotation that might lead to termination
of deposit insurance.

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the FinanCioigporation (“FICQO”) is authorized to impose andlect, with the approval of the FDIC,
assessments for anticipated payments, issuanceamsttustodial fees on bonds issued by the FIGReIA980’s to recapitalize the former
Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporationbdhels issued by the FICO are due to mature in 2@xbagh 2019. For the quarter ended
December 31, 2010, the annualized FICO assessnanéqual to 1.04 basis points for each $100 in ddméeposits maintained at an insured
institution.

Temporary Liquidity Guarantee ProgranOn October 14, 2008, the FDIC announced the Tempdigquidity Guarantee Program. This
program has two components — The Debt Guarantegdmoand the Transaction Account Guarantee ProgrammDebt Guarantee Program
guarantees newly issued senior unsecured delparttiaipating organization, up to certain limit¢asgished for each institution, issued betw
October 14, 2008 and June 30, 2009, later extetud@dtober 31, 2010. The Bank and the Company améetb participate in the Debt
Guarantee Program.

The Transaction Account Guarantee Program provides, fee, full federal deposit insurance coverfmganon-interest bearing transaction
deposit accounts, regardless of dollar amount| dutie 30, 2010, later extended to December 310.2De Bank participated in the
Transaction Account Guarantee Program. The Doddi=A&t extended unlimited federal deposit insuracmeerage for certain non-interest
bearing transaction accounts until December 312 2@ithout opportunity for opt out.
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U.S. Treasury’s Troubled Asset Relief Program CapiPurchase ProgramThe Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 200BESA”)
provided the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury withaldrauthority to implement certain actions to hekgore stability and liquidity to U.S.
markets. One of the provisions resulting from #gidlation is the Troubled Asset Relief Programi@&purchase Program (“TARP”), which
provides direct equity investment by the U.S. Toea®epartment in qualified financial institutiornthe TARP program was voluntary. The
Company did not participate in TARP.

Prohibitions Against Tying Arrangement. Federal savings banks are prohibited, subjectritesexceptions, from extending credit to or
offering any other service, or fixing or varyingethonsideration for such extension of credit oviser on the condition that the customer ob
some additional service from the institution oraf§liates or not obtain services of a competibthe institution.

Federal Home Loan Bank Systerithe Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Esyskem, which consists of 12 regional Federal H
Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank System gesva central credit facility primarily for membestitutions. As a member of the
FHLBC, the Bank is required to acquire and holdesaf capital stock in the FHLBC in an amounteaist equal to 1% of the aggregate
principal amount of its unpaid residential mortgémpns and similar obligations at the beginningac¢h year, or 1/20 of its borrowings from
the FHLBC, whichever is greater. As of DecemberZ110, the Bank was in compliance with this requieat.

The USA PATRIOT Act and the Bank Secrecy Act

The USA PATRIOT Act and the Bank Secrecy Act regdiinancial institutions to develop programs toedétind report money-laundering and
terrorist activities, as well as suspicious adgt The USA PATRIOT Act also gives the federal gownent powers to address terrorist threats
through enhanced domestic security measures, egganaveillance powers, increased information sigaaind broadened anti-money
laundering requirements. The federal banking agsnatie required to take into consideration theceffeness of controls designed to combat
moneyfaundering activities in determining whether to mgye a merger or other acquisition application aiember institution. Accordingly,

we engage in a merger or other acquisition, outrotmdesigned to combat money laundering woulddresidered as part of the application
process. In addition, non-compliance with theseslawd regulations could result in fines, penahied other enforcement measures. We have
developed policies and continue to augment proesdaind systems designed to comply with these ladsegulations.

Federal Reserve System

The FRB’s regulations require federal savings bdaksaintain noninterest-earning reserves agai®st transaction accounts, such as
negotiable order of withdrawal and regular checldngounts. At December 31, 2010, the Bank was mmptiance with these reserve
requirements. The balances maintained to meee8erve requirements imposed by the FRB may betosgatisfy liquidity requirements
imposed by the OTS.

Holding Company Regulation

The Company is a unitary savings and loan holdorgmany, and is currently subject to regulation sungervision by the OTS. The OTS also
currently has enforcement authority over the Corgand its non-savings institution subsidiaries. Awmother things, this authority permits
the OTS to restrict or prohibit activities that aetermined to be a risk to the Bank. The Dodd-kvact provides for the transfer of the
authority for supervising and regulating savingd bran holding companies and their ndepository subsidiaries from the OTS to the FRBe
transfer is presently scheduled to occur on Jujy2P11.

The Company’s activities are limited to the actéstpermissible for financial holding companiedarmultiple savings and loan holding
companies. A financial holding company may engagactivities that are financial in nature, incluglimnderwriting equity securities and
insurance, incidental to financial activities ormgaementary to a financial activity. A multiple $ags and loan holding company is generally
limited to activities permissible for bank holdingmpanies under Section 4(c) (8) of the Bank Hglddmmpany Act, subject to the prior
approval of the OTS, and certain additional adggitauthorized by OTS regulations.
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Federal law prohibits a savings and loan holdinggany, directly or indirectly, or through one ormasubsidiaries, from acquiring control of
another savings institution or holding company ¢eérwithout prior written approval of the OTSalso prohibits the acquisition or retention
of, with specified exceptions, more than 5% of¢lqeity securities of a company engaged in activitiat are not closely related to banking or
financial in nature or acquiring or retaining cahf an institution that is not federally insuréd.evaluating applications by holding compat
to acquire savings institutions, the OTS must aersihe financial and managerial resources anddyitospects of the savings institution, the
effect of the acquisition on the risk to the inswr@ fund, the convenience and needs of the comynané competitive factors.

Capital. Savings and loan holding companies are not cugrsathject to specific regulatory capital requiretseiithe Dodd-Frank Act,
however, requires the FRB to promulgate consoldiasgpital requirements for depository institutiamding companies that are no less
stringent, both quantitatively and in terms of caments of capital, than those applicable to thdis&liary depository institutions. As is
currently the case with bank holding companiegrimsents such as cumulative preferred stock arst-preferred securities will no longer be
includable as Tier 1 capital. However, instrumesssied by May 19, 2010 will be grandfathered fddhmy companies with assets of $15
billion or less. There is a five-year transitiorripd from the July 21, 2010 effective date of thedd-Frank Act before the capital requirements
will apply to savings and loan holding companies.

Source of Strength DoctrineThe “source of strength doctrine” requires bankdimg companies to provide financial assistancéedrt
subsidiary depository institutions in the eventshésidiary depository institution experiencesifiicial distress. The Dodd-Frank Act extends
the source of strength doctrine to savings and lamdding companies. The applicable regulatory agsnmust issue regulations requiring that
all bank holding companies and savings and loadihglcompanies serve as a source of strength tosthiesidiary depository institutions by
providing capital, liquidity and other support imes of financial distress.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 was enacted in respto public concerns regarding corporate accoilityain connection with certain
accounting scandals. The stated goals of the Sesb@rley Act are to increase corporate respongipith provide for enhanced penalties for
accounting and auditing improprieties at publichdied companies, and to protect investors by impgothe accuracy and reliability of
corporate disclosures pursuant to the securitigs.l&he Sarbanes-Oxley Act generally applies te@ihpanies that file or are required to file
periodic reports with the Securities and Exchangm@ission, under the Exchange Act.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act includes specific additiatistlosure requirements, requires the SecuritilsExchange Commission and national
securities exchanges to adopt extensive addititisalosure, corporate governance and other retated, and mandates further studies of
certain issues by the Securities and Exchange Cssioni.

Federal Securities Laws

The Company’s common stock is registered with theuities and Exchange Commission under the Exeh&ieg The Company is subject to
the information, proxy solicitation, insider tradinestrictions and other requirements of the Exgbakct.

Taxation

Federal TaxationThe Company and the Bank are subject to federahiectaxation in the same general manner as othpoiaions, with
some exceptions discussed below. The followingudision of federal taxation is intended only to siarige material federal income tax
matters and is not a comprehensive descriptiohefax rules applicable to the Company and the Bank

Method of Accounting. For federal income tax purposes, the Company ctlyregports its income and expenses on the acone#hod of
accounting and uses a tax year ending Decembenr3ilirig its consolidated federal income tax retsir

Bad Debt ReserveThe Small Business Protection Act of 1996 elimidatee use of the reserve method of accountingddrdebt reserves by
federal savings banks, effective for taxable ybaginning after 1995. Prior to the enactment of thwv, the Bank was permitted to establish a
reserve for bad debts for tax purposes and to raakaal additions to the reserve. These additionklcwithin specified formula limits, be
deducted in arriving at the Bank’s taxable incoBecause of the Small Business Protection Act 06188 Bank must use the specific charge-
off method in computing its bad debt deductiontfor purposes.
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Taxable Distributions and Recapturérior to the Small Business Protection Act of 198 debt reserves created prior to 1988 were &tubje
to recapture into taxable income if the Bank failedneet certain thrift asset and definition testsee Small Business Protection Act of 1996
eliminated these thrift-related recapture rulesweleer, under current law, pre-1988 reserves resatiject to tax recapture should the Bank
make certain distributions from its tax bad delserge or cease to maintain a financial institutibarter. At December 31, 2010, the Bank’s
total federal pre-1988 reserve was $14.9 millidmisTeserve reflects the cumulative effects of faebimx deductions by the Bank for which no
federal income tax provision has been made.

Alternative Minimum Tax.The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended sespan alternative minimum tax at a rate of 20% base of
regular taxable income plus certain tax preferenederred to as “alternative minimum taxable ineohThe alternative minimum tax is
payable to the extent alternative minimum taxabé®ime is in excess of an exemption amount. Netatiperlosses can, in general, offset no
more than 90% of alternative minimum taxable incamkess resulting from a loss carryback from 2008699 pursuant to the special
provisions of the Worker, Homeownership & Businassistance Act of 2009.

Net Loss CarryoversA financial institution may carry back net operatinsses to the preceding two taxable years (fipeo/ears for losses
incurred in 2008 or 2009 pursuant to the speciavigions of the Worker, Homeownership & Businessigtance Act of 2009) and forward to
the succeeding 20 taxable years. At December 3110,28e Company had a federal net operating lasgfoavard of $5.9 million that will
begin to expire in 2029. At December 31, 2010,Gbenpany had a state net operating loss carryforfearthe State of Illinois of $32.0 millic
that will expire in 2025. The net operating loskase resulted in the recording of deferred taxes.

Corporate DividendsThe Company may exclude from its income 100% ofdik@&lends it receives from the Bank as a membeéh@kame
affiliated group of corporations.

State and Local TaxationThe Company pays income tax to the State of I§indis a Maryland business corporation, the Compgngquired
to file annual returns and pay annual fees to taee®f Maryland, but these fees are not matemialhnount. At December 31, 2010, the
Company had a state net operating loss for the 8fdtlinois of $32.0 million, which will expireni 2025. Beginning in 2010 and 2009, the
Company and the Bank became subject to income taxhe States of Colorado and New Jersey, respygtidue to the physical presence of
regional National Commercial Leasing bankers is¢h@risdictions.

Deferred Income TaxesThe Company evaluates deferred taxes for recovgyalsing an approach that considers the reldtivyeact of
negative and positive evidence, including histdriteancial performance, projections of future takaincome, future reversals of existing
taxable temporary differences, tpkanning strategies and any available carrybackdap In evaluating the need for a valuation abmaee, the
Company estimates future taxable income based oragesment-approved business plans and ongoingdanriply. Only those tax planning
strategies that are both prudent and feasiblewdmch management has the ability and intent to @mp@nt, may be incorporated into the
analysis and assessment.

The Company’s historical financial performance imigs a cumulative loss over a three-year periodisting of the current year and the
previous two years. The most significant compoméihe cumulative loss was impairment losses tiaiGompany recorded on Freddie Mac
preferred stocks that it previously held in itséstment portfolio. The Company sold these secariti?009 so the impairment losses will not
recur. The most significant component of the Congfsanet loss in 2010 was the combined effects etHjr valuation allowances on
classified loans and write-downs on other realtestavned (“OREQ”), together with the expenses iredito resolve collection litigation and
manage the related collateral. In 2011, we expefitrther deploy our excess liquidity to generatdigional loanrelated interest income and
expect the negative effects from classified loard @ssets to diminish over time. In addition, wpeet further preax net income contributior
from our acquisition of Downers Grove National Bgeke Note 13 Subsequent Events of the Consolidated Financigé@tnts). After takin
these factors into account, we believe it morelyikiean not that the Company will return to prdfifety during 2011 and maintain profitability
in subsequent years such that it will fully reafire benefit of the deferred tax assets record&@keémber 31, 2010. Should the Company not
return to profitability in 2011 or in subsequenty® it may become necessary to record a valuatiowance for all or a portion of the deferred
tax asset.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

The risks set forth below may adversely affectlmusiness, financial condition and operating restitaddition to the risks set forth below and
the other risks described in Iltem 1, “Businessweod Looking Statements,” and Item 7, “Managemebiscussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations,” there may aks additional risks and uncertainties that atecnoently known to us or that we currently
deem to be immaterial that could materially andeaisigly affect our business, financial conditioroperating results. As a result, past financial
performance may not be a reliable indicator of feifperformance, and historical trends should natdsal to anticipate results or trends in
future periods.

Current Economic Conditions Present Higher Risks tadOur Loan Portfolio

At December 31, 2010, our loan portfolio includ&®6.9 million in multi-family mortgage loans, or.2Z% of total loans; $282.0 million in
nonresidential real estate loans, or 26.3% of totais; $151.1 million in commercial leases, orl%4 of total loans; $64.7 million in
commercial loans, or 6.0% of total loans; and $76illon in non owner occupied residential realastloans, or 7.1% of total loans; $103.3
million in residential real estate loans, or 16.@2total loans; and $18.4 million in constructiamddand loans, or 1.7% of total loans. Current
economic conditions, including high unemploymen¢saweakened consumer and business spending dedaiadeclining real estate valu
all present risks to our loan portfolio. Our histal loan underwriting standards presumed a reddemange of economic and operating
conditions for our borrowers and their underlyingimess or personal circumstances. The depth awtlsd the decline in economic activity
exceeded, and will continue to exceed, the findrazid management capabilities of certain borroweraeet their credit obligations.
Furthermore, the decline in real estate valued imarket segments not only diminishes an imporsanirce of repayment, but also diminishes
the economic interest of borrowers in investingitoigal financial resources into their businesseresidences. Though the risk of a sudder
catastrophic event in financial markets appealsate receded, persistently weak economic growtheérJ.S. and certain of its trading partr
will continue to depress the operating resultsesfain commercial lessees. These factors and d¢onsliand prudent loan portfolio managernr
have also combined to reduce the overall levecoéptable credit exposures available in the markstilting in lower loan portfolio balances
and reduced interest income from the loan portfolio

If Our Allowance for Loan Losses is Not Sufficiento Cover Actual Loan Losses, Our Earnings Could Deease

In the event that our loan customers do not repay toans according to their terms, and the oatldtsecuring the repayment of these loans is
insufficient to cover any remaining loan balance,auld experience significant loan losses or ime&esour provision for loan losses or both,
which could have a material adverse effect on garating results. At December 31, 2010, our allaedior loan losses was $22.2 million,
representing 2.07% of total loans and 48.5% of edigpming loans as of that date. In determiningaheunt of our allowance for loan losses,
we rely on our loan quality reviews, our experienoe our evaluation of economic conditions, amathgmofactors. In addition, we make
various estimates and assumptions about the caltigity of our loan portfolio, including the credibrthiness of our borrowers and the value of
the real estate and other assets, if any, sergmpléateral for the repayment of our loans. We afske judgments concerning our legal
positions and the priority of our interests in eated legal or bankruptcy proceedings, and at timesnay lack sufficient information to
establish specific reserves for loans involvediuichsproceedings. We base these estimates, assasptid judgments on information that we
consider reliable, but if an estimate, assumptiojudgment that we make ultimately proves to beinect, additional provisions to our
allowance for loan losses may become necessary.

We Have a Goodwill Asset that Could Be Classifiedsaimpaired in the Future. If the Goodwill Asset IsConsidered to Be Partially or
Fully Impaired in the Future, Our Earnings and the Book Values of This Asset Would Decrease

As of December 31, 2010, we maintained goodwikasisset in the amount of $22.6 million. We aseasgoodwill asset for impairment at
least annually. In fourth quarter, 2010, we engagedhdependent third-party valuation firm to assgsin our most recent goodwill impairment
testing as of December 31, 2010. In its valuatioalysis, the third-party valuation firm determirtédt the fair value of BankFinancial, F.S.B.,
the reporting unit pursuant to ASC 350-20-35-36s wafficient to support the carrying value of ooodwill asset. However, if our market
capitalization remains below its tangible book eatir if the fair value of the reporting unit wecedecline, future goodwill impairment testing
could result in a partial or full impairment of thalue of the Bank’s goodwill asset. If we deterenthat an impairment of our goodwill asset
exists at a given point in time, our earnings draook value of our goodwill asset will be redubgdhe amount of the impairment. An
impairment of our goodwill asset would have litleno impact on our tangible book value or regulatmpital levels.
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If the Company’s Deferred Tax Assets Require a Valation Allowance in the Future, Earnings Will Be Negtively Impacted

We periodically evaluate our deferred tax assetietermine whether a valuation allowance is neédiesome portion or all of our deferred tax
assets. A valuation allowance must be recognized tteferred tax asset if, based on the weighvaiable evidence, it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assknot be realized. We concluded from our moster® evaluation of our deferred tax assets
that it is more likely than not that we will readizhe $17.6 million in gross deferred tax assetswrere recorded at December 31,

2010. However, if we record net losses in 201Induiure years, this could call into question obifity to realize some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets that we have recorded andreaggito recognize a valuation allowance. The neitiog of a valuation allowance would
have a corresponding impact on our earnings ipéned it is recognized.

Changes in Market Interest Rates Could Adversely Atct Our Financial Condition and Results of Operatons

Our financial condition and results of operations significantly affected by changes in marketriest rates because our assets, primarily I
and our liabilities, primarily deposits, are momgtia nature. Our results of operations depend tambiglly on our net interest income, which is
the difference between the interest income tha¢ae on our interest-earning assets and the inexpsnse that we pay on our interiesaring
liabilities. We are unable to predict changes inketinterest rates that are affected by many fadteyond our control, including inflation,
recession, unemployment, money supply, domestidraachational events and changes in the UniteteStand other financial markets. Our
net interest income is affected not only by theelend direction of interest rates, but also byshape of the yield curve and relationships
between interest sensitive instruments and keyedriates, including credit risk spreads, and baihet sheet growth, customer loan and de
preferences and the timing of changes in thesabias which themselves are impacted by changesikeninterest rates. As a result, changes
in market interest rates can significantly impaat oet interest income as well as the fair marledtiation of our assets and liabilities.

The Risks Presented by the Acquisition of Other Intitutions Could Adversely Affect Our Financial Condition and Results of Operation:

If we acquire other institutions, we will be presshwith many risks that could have a material aslveffect on our financial condition and
results of operations. An institution that we acguinay have unknown asset quality issues or unkraveontingent liabilities that we did not
discover or fully recognize in the due diligenceg@ss, thereby resulting in unanticipated lossasicplarly in the case of FDIC-assisted
transactions due to the highly restrictive duegditice available to potential bidders. The acquisitif other institutions typically requires the
integration of different corporate cultures, loard @leposit products, pricing strategies, data @siog systems and other technologies,
accounting, internal audit and financial reportsygtems, operational processes, policies, procedung internal controls, marketing programs
and personnel of the acquired institution in ortdemake the transaction economically advantagethus integration process is complicated
time consuming, and could divert our attention frottner business concerns and be disruptive toustomers and the customers of the
acquired institution. Our failure to integrate agaired institution successfully could result ie fboss of key customers and employees, and
prevent us from achieving expected synergies astisavings. Acquisitions also result in professideas, purchase price adjustments, the
amortization of core deposit intangibles and othgrenses that could adversely affect our earnarysjn goodwill that could become
impaired, requiring us to recognize further char§®¥es may finance acquisitions with borrowed furtiereby increasing our leverage and
reducing our liquidity, or with potentially dilutevissuances of equity securities.
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Since Our Business is Concentrated in the Chicago éfropolitan Area, Local Economic Conditions May Ad\ersely Affect Our Business

Although we make certain types of loans and letsbsrrowers located in other states, our lendimdj deposit gathering activities are
concentrated primarily in the Chicago metropoliégaea. Our success can be affected by the generabeic conditions of this area and
surrounding areas. In addition, many of the loansur loan portfolio are secured by real estatatkat in the Chicago metropolitan area.
Negative conditions in the real estate markets wielateral for a mortgage loan is located couldessely affect the borrow’s ability to

repay the loan and the value of the collateral Seguhe loan. Real estate values are affectedabipus other factors beyond our control,
including real estate supply and demand, the impietortgage foreclosures and short sales, changgneral or regional economic

conditions and unemployment rates, interest rgmsrnmental rules or policies and natural disasfEne value of real estate located in many
segments of the Chicago metropolitan area has &egcontinues to be adversely impacted by manlgesfe factors, and this has had, and may
continue to have, a negative impact on our loamtrpour ability to collect certain loans accordiogheir terms, and our results of operations.

Difficult Economic Conditions Have Adversely Affeced the Banking Industry

National and local economic conditions have beéicdit in recent years, and this has resultedenlihing real estate values, a tightening

the availability of credit, illiquidity in certaisecurities markets, increasing loan delinquenonestgage foreclosures, personal and business
bankruptcies, rising unemployment rates, declimiogsumer confidence and spending, significant vaitens of asset values by financial
institutions and government-sponsored entities,aretluction of manufacturing and service busiaesigity and international trade. These
conditions have contributed to significant decliirethe trading prices of certain financial institun stocks, many of which have not fully
recovered. We do not expect that the national acal leconomies will fully recover over the shorbteand a continuation or worsening of
these conditions could exacerbate their adversetsffThe adverse effects of these conditions douldde increases in loan delinquencies and
chargeeffs, increases to the portion of our loan loseres that we base on national or local economitfacincreases to our specific loan
reserves due to the impact of these conditiongeniic borrowers or the collateral for their loadseclines in the value of our investment
securities, increases in regulatory and compliaosts, and declines in the trading price of our wmm stock.

If Our Investment in the Federal Home Loan Bank ofChicago is Classified as Other-Than-Temporarily Im@ired, Our Earnings Could
Decrease

We own FHLBC common stock to qualify for membersiniphe Federal Home Loan Bank System and to lgébédi to borrow funds under the
FHLBC's advance program. The aggregate cost oFbliBC common stock as of December 31, 2010 was®tilion based on its par
value. There is no market for our FHLBC common kt@ue to our receipt of stock dividends and a otida of our outstanding FHLBC
advances, we owned shares of FHLBC common stobleamber 31, 2010 with a par value that was $9lilommore than we were required
to own to maintain our membership, in the Fede@hid Loan Bank System and to be eligible to obtdiraaces (“excess” or “voluntary”
capital stock).

The FHLBC is subject to a cease and desist ordaeisby the Federal Housing Finance Board, now kresthe Federal Housing Finance
Agency (“FHFA”), in 2007. Among other things, thease and desist order requires the FHLBC to subapital plan to the FHFA, prohibits
certain capital stock repurchases and stock redengptincluding certain redemptions upon membersiliipdrawal, without the prior approval
of the Director of the Office of Supervision of thelFA ( “Director”), and prohibits the paymentsdi¥idends without the prior approval of the
Director. The FHLBC has reported that it has sutadit capital plan to the Director but that it hasyet been approved. The FHLBC did not
pay any dividends from the third quarter of 200fbtigh 2010, but in the first quarter of 2011, paidominal cash dividend at an annualized
rate of 10 basis points per share. The FHLBC regairt February 2011 that it had earnings of netrime of $366 million for 2010, comparec

a net loss of $65 million in 2009, and that itnscompliance with its regulatory capital requirertsen

Current accounting guidance requires us to evaluat&HLBC common stock for impairment based on“thémate recoverability” of the par
value of the security without regard to temporagglohes in value. We concluded from our most reg@pirment testing that it is probable
that the par value of our FHLBC common stock igmdtely recoverable based on the FHLBC's currentance with its regulatory capital
requirements, the net income that it reported 6dr(@} its receipt of regulatory approval to payadind in the first quarter of 2011 and
published reports indicating that it is continutegvork with its regulator to finalize a capitabpl However, if events were to occur that give
rise to substantial doubt about the ultimate recalviéity of the par value of our FHLBC common stptis investment could become other-
than-temporarily impaired, and the impairment libed we would be required to record would causeeaunings to decrease by the after-tax
amount of the impairment loss.
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Our Future Success is Dependent on Our Ability to @Gmpete Effectively in the Highly Competitive Bankirg Industry

We face substantial competition in all phases ofaperations from a variety of different compettoDur future growth and success will
depend on our ability to compete effectively irsthighly competitive environment. To date, we hgk@vn our business successfully by
focusing on our geographic markets and emphasthiedigh level of service and responsiveness debiyeour customers. We compete for
loans, deposits and other financial services wilieocommercial banks, thrifts, credit unions, len@ge houses, mutual funds, insurance
companies, real estate conduits, and specialinethidie companies. Many of our competitors offer petg&land services that we do not offer,
and many have substantially greater resourcesearttinlg limits, name recognition and market presehatbenefit them in attracting business.
In addition, larger competitors may be able to@t@ans and deposits more aggressively than wardbsmaller newer competitors may be
more aggressive in pricing loans and depositsderoto increase their market share. Some of tlanfial institutions and financial services
organizations with which we compete are not sulijetihe extensive regulations imposed on federahga banks and their holding compan
As a result, these nonbank competitors have ceathrantages over us in accessing funding and wiging various financial services.

Our Business May Be Adversely Affected by the Higlyl Regulated Environment in Which We Operate

We are subject to extensive federal and statelégigis, regulation, examination and supervisione Trodd-Frank Act and other recently
enacted legislation, the regulations promulgatedethand future legislation and regulations thag benacted or promulgated, could have an
adverse effect on our business and operationglditi@n, the OTS will cease to be the primary fedeegulator of the Company and the Bank
on July 21, 2011, and we may need to make adjusgneour policies and procedures to ensure com@diavith the rules and regulations of
the OCC and the FRB. Our success will be impacyeolu continued ability to comply with applicabbeas and regulations. Some of these
laws and regulations may increase our costs. Wigleannot predict what effect any future changdbkése laws or regulations or their
interpretations would have on us, these changegempretations may adversely affect our futurerapiens.

Trading Activity in the Company’s Common Stock Coul Result in Material Price Fluctuations

It is possible that trading activity in the Compangommon stock, including short-selling or sigcéfnt sales by current stockholders, could
result in material price fluctuations of the priper share of the Company’s common stock. In addisoch trading activity and the resultant
volatility could make it more difficult for the Cgpany to sell equity or equity-related securitiethia future at a time and price it deems
appropriate, or to use its stock as consideratioaf acquisitionSee “Our Ability to Successfully Conduct AcquisisdVill Affect Our Ability
to Grow Our Franchise and Compete Effectively im ®larketplace”.

Our Return on Stockholders’ Equity Will Continue to Be Low Due to Our High Capital Level

Net income divided by average stockhol’ equity, known as return on equity, is a ratio tinany investors use to compare the performan

a financial institution to its peers. Our capitahrains relatively high by industry standards pegdimmore optimal deployment of the additional
capital raised in our 2005 mutual-to-stock conwarslntil we can increase our net interest incone reoninterest income, we expect our
return on equity to continue to be below the histdrindustry average, which may negatively affibet value of our shares of common stock
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The Company'’s Ability to Pay Dividends is Affectedoy Regulatory Limitations on the Bank’s Ability to Pay Dividends and Other
Regulatory Limitations

The Company is a separate legal entity from itsislidries and does not have significant operatafrits own. Dividends from the Bank
provide a significant source of cash for the Conypdie availability of dividends from the Bank imlted by various statutes and regulations.
Under these statutes and regulations, the Banstipermitted to pay dividends on its capital stawkhe Company, its sole stockholder, if the
dividend would reduce the stockholders’ equityhef Bank below the amount of the liquidation accastablished in connection with the
mutual-to-stock conversion. The Bank may pay dintewithout the approval of its primary federalukegor only if the Bank meets its
applicable regulatory capital requirements beforg after the payment of the dividends and its tdtatdends do not exceed its net income to
date over the calendar year plus its retainednoatie over the preceding two years. Although thekBacapital exceeded applicable
regulatory requirements at December 31, 2010, #rkBlid not have sufficient net income over theepding two years to pay a dividend to
Company without the prior approval of its primaegléral regulator. If the Bank were to seek the @prof its primary federal regulator to p

a dividend, there can be no assurance that such\agdpvould be granted. If at some point in thaifetthe Company utilizes its available cash
for other purposes Bank is unable to pay dividdndhe Company, the Company may not have suffidiemds to continue to pay dividends on
its common stock. In addition, the Company’s apild pay dividends on its common stock could béer limited by the application of the
“source of strength doctrine,” which requires hnfgicompanies to provide financial support to tiseisidiary depository institutions if the
subsidiary is in financial distress, or by regutatorder.

We Continually Encounter Technological Change, and/lay Have Fewer Resources than Many of Our Competits to Continue to
Invest in Technological Improvements

The financial services industry is undergoing rapithnological changes, with frequent introductioheew technology-driven products and
services. The effective use of technology increa$ésency and enables financial institutions titbr serve customers and to reduce costs
future success will depend, in part, upon our gbib address the needs of our customers by usitgnblogy to provide products and services
that will satisfy customer demands for convenieasewell as to create additional efficiencies in gperations. Many of our competitors have
substantially greater resources to invest in teldgical improvements. We also may not be able fectif’ely implement new technology-
driven products and services or be successful mketiag these products and services to our custamer

Our Ability to Successfully Conduct Acquisitions Wil Affect Our Ability to Grow Our Franchise and Com pete Effectively in Our
Marketplace

We consider the possible acquisition of other battkifts and other financial services companieprimate or FDIC-assisted transactions to
supplement internal growth. Although we entered mtlefinitive agreement to acquire DG Bancorp, &md its subsidiary, Downers Grove
National Bank in the third quarter of 2010, ouref§ to acquire other financial institutions antbficial service companies in the future r

not be successful. Other potential acquirors dgrstnost acquisition candidates, creating compmetithat can affect the purchase price for
which the institution can be acquired. In many saser competitors have significantly greater resesi than we have, and greater flexibility to
structure the consideration for the transaction.rifég not participate in specific acquisition oppaities if we consider the proposed
transaction unacceptable, including the curremtadential future terms, conditions and limitatiomgposed by an FDI@ssisted transaction. \
also may not be the successful bidder in acquisijgportunities that we pursue due to the willirgger ability of other potential acquirors to
propose a higher purchase price or more attratgives and conditions than we are willing or ablertopose. The results of a merger or
acquisition could change materially based on futiv@nges in applicable accounting principles agdlegory requirements related to acquired
assets and liabilities. If we are unable to or dbaonduct acquisitions to supplement internal ghowur ability to deploy effectively the capi
we raised in the 2005 offering, expand our geograptesence and improve our results of operationdddbe adversely affected.

FDIC Deposit Insurance Premiums Have Increased antflay Increase Further in the Future

The Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as amendediresgihe FDIC to maintain a reserve ratio betweé5% and 1.50%. The FDIC's Board of
Directors is required to establish a designateeruesratio within that range and set assessmegg tatmeet that target within a time frame that
the FDIC’s Board of Directors deems appropriatéhéf reserve ratio falls below 1.15%, the FDIC'saBbof Directors is required to establish a
restoration plan to bring the reserve ratio back.ib% within five years. The FDIC's reserve ratexlined over the past several years due to
costs associated with bank failures, and it is ibtesshat the reserve ratio could be placed unttess due to future bank failures. As part of its
plan to restore the reserve ratio to 1.15%, thed®PBoard of Directors imposed a special assessetprdl to five basis points of assets less
Tier 1 capital as of June 30, 2009, which was pkyab September 30, 2009. In addition, the FDICGdased its quarterly assessment rates anc
amended the method by which rates are calculatedN@ember 12, 2009, the FDIC approved a final ratpiiring insured depository
institutions to prepay, on December 30, 2009, tesiimated quarterly riskased assessments for the fourth quarter of 20@dfoa all of 2010
2011, and 2012. Prepaid assessments are to becgpghinst the actual quarterly assessments whlsted, and may not be applied to any
special assessments that may occur in the futung uAused prepayments will be returned on Jun@@03. See “Supervision and Regulation —
Insurance of Deposit Accounts.” On December 3092t Bank paid the estimated assessment fedlsefdourth quarter of 2009 and prepaid
$6.8 million in estimated assessment fees throl@dl2 2These increased assessments have had anedidveast on our results of operations in
2009 and will continue to have an adverse impabiture years. If circumstances require the FDI@rtpose additional special assessments or
further increase its quarterly assessment ratesadkierse impact will be exacerbated.
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Various Factors May Make Takeover Attempts That YouWant to Succeed More Difficult to Achieve, Which May Affect the Value of
Shares of Our Common Stock

Provisions of our articles of incorporation andaws$, federal regulations, Maryland law and variother factors may make it more difficult
companies or persons to acquire control of the Gompvithout the consent of our board of directdi@u may want a takeover attempt to
succeed because, for example, a potential acqeondd offer a premium over the then prevailing eraf our shares of common stock. The
OTS regulations prohibit the direct or indirect aisition of more than 10% of any class of equitguséty of a converted savings institution
without the prior approval of the OTS. Provisiotior articles of incorporation and bylaws also magke it difficult to remove our current
board of directors or management if our board céalors opposes the removal. We have elected soltject to the Maryland Business
Combination Act, which places restrictions on mesgend other business combinations with large $ioiders. In addition, our articles of
incorporation provide that certain mergers and rogimailar transactions, as well as amendments tadicles of incorporation, must be
approved by stockholders owning at least two-thafdsur shares of common stock entitled to votéhenmatter unless first approved by at
least two-thirds of the number of our authorizescliors, assuming no vacancies. If approved bgaat ltwo-thirds of the number of our
authorized directors, assuming no vacancies, ttienaqust still be approved by a majority of ouasts entitled to vote on the matter. In
addition, a director can be removed from officet, dmly for cause, if such removal is approved lmgckholders owning at least twbirds of ou
shares of common stock entitled to vote on theandttowever, if at least two-thirds of the numbgowor authorized directors, assuming no
vacancies, approves the removal of a directorreh®val may be with or without cause, but must kélapproved by a majority of our voting
shares entitled to vote on the matter. Additiomaljsions include limitations on the voting riglisany beneficial owners of more than 10% of
our common stock. Our bylaws, which can only be rzshee by the board of directors, also contain piowisregarding the timing, content and
procedural requirements for stockholder proposadsreominations.

Non-Compliance with USA PATRIOT Act, Bank Secrecy At, Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, Truth-kLending Act or Other
Laws and Regulations Could Result in Fines or Sanicins, and Curtail Expansion Opportunities

Financial institutions are required under the USSsNTRIOT and Bank Secrecy Acts to develop programgravent financial institutions from
being used for money-laundering and terrorist &, Financial institutions are also obligatedil® suspicious activity reports with the U.S.
Treasury Department’s Office of Financial CrimegdEcement Network if such activities are deteciBukese rules also require financial
institutions to establish procedures for identifyand verifying the identity of customers seekin@pen new financial accounts. Failure or the
inability to comply with these regulations couldué in fines or penalties, curtailment of expansipportunities, intervention or sanctions by
regulators and costly litigation or expensive addil controls and systems. During the last fewgeseveral banking institutions have rece
large fines for non-compliance with these laws mglilations. In addition, the U.S. Government inggband will continue to expand laws and
regulations relating to residential and consumedileg activities that create significant new coraptie burdens and financial risks. We have
developed policies and continue to augment proesdaind systems designed to assist in complianbethgse laws and regulations.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of December 31, 2010 the net book value of eape@rties was $28.5 million. The following is at li§ our offices:

Burr Ridge (Executive Office)
15W060 North Frontage Road

Burr Ridge, IL 6052°

Calumet City
1901 Sibley Boulevard
Calumet City, IL 6040¢

Calumet Parl
1333 W. 127th Street
Calumet Park, IL 6082

Chicago - Hyde Park
1354 East 55th Street
Chicago, IL 6061!

Chicago- Hyde Park Eas
55th at Lake Park Avenue
Chicago, IL 6061!

Chicago Ridge
6415 W. 95th Street
Chicago Ridge, IL 6041

Chicago- Lincoln Park
2424 N. Clark Street
Chicago, IL 6061

Deerfield
630 N. Waukegan Road
Deerfield, IL 6001¢

Hazel Crest
3700 W. 183rd Street
Hazel Crest, IL 6042

Joliet
1401 N. Larkin
Joliet, IL 6043E

Lincolnshire
One Marriott Drive
Lincolnshire, IL 6006¢

Lincolnwood
3443 W. Touhy
Lincolnwood, IL 6071%

Naperville
1200 E. Ogden Avenue
Naperville, IL 6056:

North Libertyville
1409 W. Peterson Road
Libertyville, IL 60048

Northbrook
1368 N. Shermer Road
Northbrook, IL 6006

Olympia Fields
21110 S. Western Avenue
Olympia Fields, IL 6046:

Orland Park
48 Orland Square Drive
Orland Park, IL 6046

Schaumburg
1005 W. Wise Road
Schaumburg, IL 6019

South Libertyville
1123 S. Milwaukee Avenue
Libertyville, IL 60048

Except for our Chicago-Lincoln Park, Northbrookdattlyde Park East offices, which are leased, atiusfoffices are owned. In addition to the
above listed properties, we also operate threedsspBranch facilities, two satellite national comered leasing offices and two remote ATMs
on sites where we do not have a full-service bankifice.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company and its subsidiaries are subject iowsategal actions arising in the normal coursbuginess. In the opinion of management,
based on currently available information, the negoh of these legal actions is not expected teeltematerial adverse effect on the Company’s
results of operations.

ITEM 4. [ RESERVED
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our shares of common stock are traded on the NaGtdrpal Select Market under the symbol “BFIN.” Téqgproximate number of holders of
record of the Company’s common stock as of Decer@be010 was 1,820. Certain shares of the Compammyrhmon stock are held in
“nominee” or “street” name, and accordingly, thentner of beneficial owners of such shares is notkmor included in the foregoing number.

The following table presents quarterly market infation provided by the Nasdaq Stock Market forGloenpany’s common stock and cash
dividends paid for the periods ended December 310 2nd 2009.

Cash
2009 and 2010 Quarterly Periods High Low Close Dividends Paic
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $ 9.9C $9.0€ $9.7% $ 0.07
Quarter ended September 30, 2! 9.3¢ 8.12 9.17 0.07
Quarter ended June 30, 2C 9.9¢ 8.2¢ 8.31 0.07
Quarter ended March 31, 20 10.1¢ 9.01 9.17 0.07
Quarter ended December 31, 2( $10.4(C $9.07 $9.9C $ 0.07
Quarter ended September 30, 2! 11.0¢ 8.7t 9.6( 0.07
Quarter ended June 30, 2C 11.1C 8.07 8.8¢ 0.07
Quarter ended March 31, 20 11.1C 7.1¢ 9.97 0.07

The Company is subject to state law limitationgrmpayment of dividends. Maryland law generaliyits dividends to an amount equal to the
excess of our capital surplus over payments thaidvoe owed upon dissolution to stockholders whmrséerential rights upon dissolution are
superior to those receiving the dividend, and tamount that would not make us insolvent providedyever, that even if the Company’s
assets are less than the amount necessary ty shésequirement set forth above, the Company male a distribution from: (A) the
Company’s net earnings for the fiscal year in whtah distribution is made; (B) the Company’s nehewys for the preceding fiscal year; or
(C) the sum of the Company’s net earnings for tleegqding eight fiscal quarters. Dividends from Baak provide a significant source of cash
for the Company. The availability of dividends frahe Bank is limited by various statutes and retiuta. For a discussion of the Bank’s
ability to pay dividends, see Part |, Iltem 1, Basisi -“Supervision and Regulation—Federal BankinguReion—Capital Distributions.”

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
The Company had no sales of unregistered stochkgitie quarter ended December 31, 2010.

Repurchases of Equity Securities

Our Board of Directors has authorized the repurettdisip to 5,047,423 shares of our common stockctimrdance with this authorization, we
had repurchased 4,239,134 shares of our commok asoaf December 31, 2010. There were no shareaieases conducted in the fourth
quarter of 2010. The current share repurchase azdtion will expire on May 16, 2011, unless exteddby our Board of Directors.
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Stock Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infotima shall not be deemed “soliciting material” av be “filed” with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, nor shall such informatiomberporated by reference into any future filingden the Securities Act of 1933
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, each as amendedpeto the extent that the Company specificattpiiporates it by reference into such
filing.

We completed our mutual-to-stock conversion on 812005, in connection with which the Companylsm aggregate of 24,466,250 shares
of common stock at a price of $10.00 per share.Gtmmpany’s common stock began trading on the NaStiack Market under the symbol
“BFIN" on June 24, 2005, and the per share clogirice of one share of the Company’s common stocthanhdate was $13.60. The following
graph represents $100 invested in our common stbttle $13.60 per share closing price on June@k.2The graph illustrates the compari

of the cumulative total returns for the common ktotthe Company, the Russell 2000 Index, the NAgDBank Index and the America’s
Community Bankers NASDAQ Index for the periods aated.

There can be no assurance that our stock perfoenaiticcontinue in the future with the same or danirend depicted in the graph below. We
will not make or endorse any predictions as torkistock performance.

200
150
100 P
80
e T T T o = §
12r31/05 12731/06 1213107 1213108 12/31/09 123110
L ] = xX C
BankFinancial Russell 2000 MNASDAG Bank Amaerica's
Caorporation Iruchax index I:u;hrl:lmurli'.y Hankars
HASDAD Index
12/31/200! 12/31/2001 12/31/200 12/31/200: 12/31/200! 12/31/201(
BankFinancial Corporatio 107.94 132.3¢ 119.6¢ 78.5¢ 78.4¢% 79.41
Russell 2000 Inde 107.4¢ 127.2¢ 125.2¢ 82.9¢ 105.4¢ 133.7¢
NASDAQ Bank Inde» 102.5¢ 113.8¢ 88.7¢ 67.51 55.0z 61.5¢
Americe’s Community Bankers NASDAQ Ind 103.6¢ 114.9: 86.4: 69.51 54.6¢ 59.71
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following information is derived from the awetitconsolidated financial statements of the Compgag additional information, reference
made to Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and AnslgsFinancial Condition and Results of Operaticensd the Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company and related notes indlatdewhere in this Annual Report.

At December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands)

Selected Financial Condition Data

Total asset $1,530,65' $1,566,96. $1,554,85! $1,480,71. $1,613,15I
Loans, ne 1,050,76! 1,218,541 1,268,12; 1,254,16 1,329,94.
Loans hel-for-sale 2,71¢ — 872 17z 29¢
Securities, at fair valu 120,74 102,12¢ 124,91¢ 77,04¢ 117,85:
Goodwill 22,56¢ 22,56¢ 22,56¢ 22,56¢ 22,57¢
Core deposit intangibl 2,70C 4,29¢ 5,98t 7,76¢ 9,64¢
Deposits 1,235,37 1,233,39! 1,069,85! 1,073,65! 1,129,58!
Borrowings 23,74¢ 50,78¢ 200,35( 96,43: 138,14
Equity 253,28! 263,60: 266,79: 291,13° 326,01!

Years Ended December 31
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Selected Operating Data

Interest and dividend incon $ 6493 $ 74,10¢ $ 77,96( $ 91,950 $ 94,08¢
Interest expens 13,18¢ 20,557 25,667 38,30 37,48¢

Net interest incom 51,75( 53,55: 52,29: 53,64¢ 56,59’
Provision (credit) for loan lossi 12,08 8,811 5,092 697 (13€)

Net interest income after provision (credit) foafolosse: 39,66 44,74 47,201 52,95 56,73
Noninterest incom 7,12¢ 7,23¢ 10,41¢ 9,66¢ 10,55¢
Noninterest expense ( 53,84¢ 52,73: 89,05¢ 52,49¢ 52,41¢
Income (loss) before income tax expe (7,059 (757) (31,43)) 10,11¢ 14,87:
Income tax expense (benel (2,749 (13) (12,049 2,96: 4,82¢

Net income (loss $ (4,30) $ (73¢) $ (19,389 $ 7,15t $ 10,04¢
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ 022 $ (0.0 $ (099 $ 03 % 0.4t
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ (0.22) $ (0.0 $ (0.9¢) % 03 % 0.4t

(footnotes on following pag
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Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data

Performance Ratios:
Return on assets (ratio of net income (loss) toamestotal
assets

Return on equity (ratio of net income (loss) torage equity’

Net interest rate spread (

Net interest margin (<

Efficiency ratio (4)

Noninterest expense to average total as

Average interest-earning assets to average intbesstng
liabilities

Dividends declared per she

Dividend payout ratic

Asset Quality Ratios:

Nonperforming assets to total assets
Nonperforming loans to total loa

Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming lo:
Allowance for loan losses to total loa

Net charg-offs to average loans outstand|

Capital Ratios:

Equity to total assets at end of per
Average equity to average ass
Tier 1 leverage ratio (Bank onl

Other Data:
Number of ful-service offices
Employees (fu-time equivalents

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009
(0.26)% (0.05%
(1.64) (0.2€)

3.3€ 3.3¢
3.57 3.6¢
91.4¢ 86.7¢
3.4t 3.3¢
122.5¢ 123.4¢
$ 0.2¢ $ 0.2¢
N.M. N.M.
3.9%% 3.42%
4.2€ 4.01
48.5¢ 37.6¢
2.07 151
0.7¢ 0.3¢

16.55% 16.82%
16.71 17.0:
12.4¢ 12.44

18 18
32¢ 372

2008

(1.39%

(6.82)
3.3t
3.8¢

142.0:
6.0¢

127.8¢
$ 0.2¢
N.M.

0.94%
1.07
107.9%
1.1¢
0.11

17.1¢%
19.3¢
12.0¢

18
39¢

2007 2006
0.47% 0.61%
2.3C 3.0z
2.94 2.8¢
3.7¢ 3.6

82.9: 78.0¢
3.4z 3.1¢

130.9¢ 132.6%

$ 0.2¢ $ 0.1¢
90.¢% 44.5%
0.87% 0.57%
0.9t 0.6¢
91.6¢ 115.1¢
0.87 0.7¢
0.0z 0.07

19.6€% 20.21%

20.3:Z 20.2¢

13.9¢ 15.0¢

18 18
42t 43¢

(1) Noninterest expense for the years ended Decembh@089 and 2008 includes $401,000 and $35.9 mjlliespectively, of impairmel

loss on securitiet

(2) The netinterest rate spread represents the differbetween the yield on average inte-earning assets and the cost of average in-

bearing liabilities for the periot

(3) The net interest margin represents net interestirecdivided by average total inter-earning assets for the peric
(4) The efficiency ratio represents noninterest expeligded by the sum of net interest income and miamest income

(5) Nonperforming assets include nonperforming loarts@ther real estate owned and in proc

N.M. Not Meaningful
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The discussion and analysis that follows focusetheractors affecting our consolidated financ@dition at December 31, 2010 and 2009,
and our consolidated results of operations fotthinee years ended December 31, 2010. The consaldidiatincial statements, the related notes
and the discussion of our critical accounting peappearing elsewhere in this Annual Report gshbalread in conjunction with this
discussion and analysis.

Overview

Loans.Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmentd business loans (multifamily, nonresidential estate, commercial, construction
and land loans, and commercial leases), which hegehake up 75.9% of gross loans at December 31. 20et loans receivable decreased
$167.8 million, or 13.8%, to $1.051 billion at Dedeer 31, 2010, from $1.219 billion at DecemberZ109. Multi-family mortgage loans
decreased by $32.3 million, or 9.8%, due in suliitbpart to a HUD refinancing that was completgdcalrelated group of borrowers.
Commercial loans decreased by $23.4 million, 06%6.due to the combined impact of loan pay dowmsraduced originations. Commercial
leases decreased by $25.7 million, or 14.5%, asdsdbd lease payments outpaced originations. Nolergial real estate loans decreased §
million, or 10.9%, primarily due to principal paymnts of $56.6 million, which were partially offseg B15.3 million in draws on existing credit
commitments. Construction and land loans decreg$é@® million, or 43.5%, primarily due to projeetiss and conversions to permanent
amortizing loans. One-to-four family residential myage loans decreased $33.3 million, or 11.5%nanily due to refinancings that were not
replaced with new originations. Future loan groaohild be adversely affected by our unwillingnessdmpete for loans by relaxing our
historical underwriting standards.

Securities.Securities increased $18.6 million, or 18.2%, ta®&Y million at December 31, 2010, from $102.1 imillat December 31, 2009.
The primary reason for the increase was $50.5anilin purchases, offset by $31.8 million of priradipepayments and maturities of securities.
During 2010 we utilized FDIC insured certificatdsdeposit as an investment option.

Deposits Deposits increased $2.0 million, or 0.2%, to $1.B8on at December 31, 2010, from $1.233 billanDecember 31, 2009. We
increased our core deposits (savings, money mar&ainterestbearing demand and NOW accounts) by $25.5 milliwh reduced our balanc
of wholesale deposits by $14.7 million during tleag Core deposits increased as a percentageabfiggiosits, representing 69.2% of total
deposits at December 31, 2010, compared to 67.3¢alfdeposits at December 31, 2009.

Borrowings.Borrowings decreased $27.0 million, or 53.2%, t8.82nillion at December 31, 2010, from $50.8 miiliat December 31, 2009,
due to our repayments of maturing FHLBC advances.

Stockholder’ Equity. Total stockholders’ equity was $253.3 million atd@mber 31, 2010, compared to $263.6 million at Dewr 31, 2009.
The decrease in total stockholders’ equity was arilpdue to the combined impact of our repurchafsg56,411 shares of our common stock
during 2010 at a total cost of $3.1 million, ouckdeation and payment of cash dividends totaling@ $8illion, the $4.3 million net loss that we
recorded for 2010 and a $50,000 decrease in acateaubther comprehensive income. These items veetially offset by a $3.1 million
increase in total stockholders’ equity that resliftem the vesting of stock-based compensationEEB@P shares earned. The unallocated
shares of common stock that our ESOP owns werectefl as a $14.2 million reduction to stockholderplity at December 31, 2010,
compared to a $15.2 million reduction to stockho$tequity at December 31, 2009.

Net LossWe recorded a net loss of $4.3 million for the yeraded December 31, 2010, compared to net lossg&38{000 and $19.4 million
for 2009 and 2008, respectively. The net loss ih02@as due in substantial part to our recordind2 B million provision for loan losses, $7.3
million for nonperforming asset management expemsktoperations of other real estate owned combiriida $1.8 million decrease in net
interest income. The net loss in 2009 was due piiyn® the recording of an $8.8 million provisidor loan losses, a $2.1 million increase in
FDIC expense and $1.4 million in combined pre-tessés that we recorded in connection with the impait and subsequent sale of our
Freddie Mac preferred stocks. The impact of thiesas was partially offset by a $1.3 million gaiatkve recognized on the sale of our
merchant processing operations in 2009. The nstito2008 was due in substantial part to a $35IBomipre-tax impairment loss that we
recorded on our Freddie Mac preferred stocks &fteddie Mac was placed into conservatorship. Osiclass per common share was $0.22,
$0.04 and $0.98 for the years ended December 3D, 2009 and 2008, respectively.
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Net Interest IncomeWe recorded net interest income of $51.8 milliontfe year ended December 31, 2010, compared té $&8ion for
2009 and $52.3 million for 2008. The decrease irinterest income for 2010 reflected a $9.2 milldetrease in interest income, which was
partially offset, by a $7.4 million decrease ireirgst expense. Our net interest rate spread wé%3J@ the years ended December 31, 2010
and 20009.

Provision for Loan LossesWe recorded a provision for loan losses of $12 lianifor the year ended December 31, 2010, conmptre8.8
million for 2009 and $5.1 million for 2008. The pision for loan losses that we recorded in 20180t$ the combined impact of a $4.4 mill
increase in the portion of the specific allowanzeldan losses that we allocate to impaired loaas%8.5 million in net chargeffs, which wer:
partially offset by a $794,000 decrease in the ggr@mponent of the allowance for loan losses.

Noninterest IncomeNoninterest income for the year ended Decembe2@10 was $7.1 million, compared to $7.2 million 2209 and $10.4
million for 2008. Our noninterest income for 20h@luded service charges and fees of $3.0 milliompmared to $3.4 million for 2009 and $.
million for 2008. Earnings on bank-owned life inance were $430,000 for the year ended Decemb@03D, compared to a $20,000 loss for
2009 and earnings of $586,000 for 2008. Our noresténcome for 2009 included a $988,000 loss erstie of our Freddie Mac preferred
stocks and a $1.3 million gain on the sale of oarahant processing operations. Our noninterestiiecimr 2008 included a $1.4 million pre-
tax gain on the sale of shares of Visa, Inc. CBasemmon stock that we received in connection Witha, Inc.’s initial public offering, and a
$1.2 million pre-tax gain on additional shares @&/ Inc. Class B common stock that were allocttads in the initial public offering and are
currently held in a litigation escrow under VisagI's retrospective responsibility plan. The gdiattwe recorded on the escrowed shares of the
Visa, Inc. Class B common stock reduced our okibgetio indemnify Visa USA under Visa, Inc.’s retpestive responsibility plan.

Noninterest ExpenseNoninterest expense for the year ended Decemb&@03D was $53.9 million, compared to $52.7 millfon2009 and
$89.1 million for 2008. Noninterest expense for @icluded $3.3 million in nonperforming asset ngaraent expenses, compared to
$770,000 in 2009. Operations of other real estaiged totaled $4.0 million in 2010, compared to $hiBion in 2009. Noninterest expense for
2009 included a $401,000 pre-tax impairment loas we recorded on our holdings of Freddie Mac pretestocks. Expense for FDIC deposit
insurance totaled $2.1 million during the year ehBecember 31, 2010, compared to $2.2 million fil@Pand $162,000 for 2008. The
increase in our 2009 expense for FDIC deposit arsee was due to the combined effect of the FDIGCsdase in its quarterly assessment rate,
the FDIC’s imposition of a special assessment agaithinsured institutions and the full utilizatiof the FDIC assessment credits that we
previously had available to offset or reduce FDL@uerly assessments. Noninterest expense for ip60&led a $35.9 million pre-tax
impairment loss that we recorded on our holdingsrefidie Mac preferred stocks and a $2.0 millieax loss on the early extinguishment of
borrowings that we recorded in connection withphepayment of a $25 million FHLBC term advance.

Income TaxesWe recorded an income tax benefit of $2.7 millionthe year ended December 31, 2010, compared3@®1 and $12.0

million for 2009 and 2008. The effective tax rateere 38.94%, 1.73% and 38.32% for the years endegbber 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. For 2009, the difference betweenGAAP basis (fair market value at the date of grant) the tax basis (fair market value at the
date of vesting) of equity-based compensation gdhint prior years reduced our income tax benefie ihcome tax benefit for 2008 was due in
substantial part to the recording of an impairmess on our Freddie Mac preferred stocks.

Key Strategic Initiatives and Events

Stock Repurchase ProgranOur Board of Directors has authorized the repureltdsip to 5,047,423 shares of our common stock. Th
authorization permits shares to be repurchasegén market or negotiated transactions, and purgaarty trading plan that may be adopte
accordance with Rule 10bbef the Securities and Exchange Commission. Thigoaization may be utilized at management's digamesubjec
to the limitations set forth in Rule 10b-18 of thecurities and Exchange Commission and other aipdidegal requirements, and to price and
other internal limitations established by the Boaf@®irectors. The repurchase authorization wilbiee on May 16, 2011, unless extended by
the Board of Directors. As of December 31, 2018,@ompany had repurchased 4,239,134 shares aitsion stock pursuant to the
repurchase authorization.
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Quarterly Cash DividendsOur Board of Directors declared four quarterly cdstidends of $0.07 per share during 2010. Castiends
totaling $5.9 million were paid in 2010. On January 2011, the Board of Directors declared a qugreash dividend of $0.07 per share th:
payable on March 4, 2011.

Pending Acquisition.On September 13, 2010, we entered into a definggreement to acquire DG Bancorp, Inc., the baditng company
for Downers Grove National Bank, a privately hetaenunity bank with approximately $219 million insa¢s and $213 million in deposits as
of December 31, 2010. Downers Grove National Baasktlvo banking offices located in Downers Grove Wfestmont, lllinois. We have
received all regulatory approvals that are requicecbnsummate the transaction and the closinggeaed to occur during the first quarter of
2011, subject to customary closing conditions. DemsriGrove National Bank will be merged into the Baa part of the consummation of the
transaction.

We are in the process of negotiating the acquisitioa portfolio of performing loans from CitibabkA. with an aggregate unpaid principal
balance of approximately $155.8 million. The pustha scheduled to close in March 2011, subjectisbomary closing conditions. This loan
portfolio consists of multifamily loans originatég Citibank N.A. or the former Citibank, F.S.B. att@ loans are secured by real estate
collateral located in the Chicago metropolitan neadrea. The portfolio consists of 470 loans witlogerall weighted average effective yield
of 5.87%. All loans in the portfolio were current all payments due as of the month prior to thetmanwhich the purchase is scheduled to
close. Upon the closing of the purchase, we exjoefiie a Current Report on Form 8-K further debitrg the portfolio acquisition transaction
and the portfolio characteristics.

Economic and Competitive Conditions

General U.S. financial market conditions furthexbdized during 2010. The national economy begaarg modest expansion but local
economic conditions remained largely unchanged 2609. Pricing and underwriting for multi-family dlcommercial real estate loans were
generally favorable, but we experienced relatively demand for these loan types throughout 201i@irfer for commercial leases became less
favorable during 2010 amid weak supply as lesseptayed excess cash and several competitoestered the market during the year. Den
for the Bank’s traditional adjustable-rate residE@nhortgage loans remained low due to an overwhmgyrmarket preference for fixed-rate
residential mortgage loans given low market interates and our underwriting standards.

We experienced net declines in all loan portfobonponent balances during 2010 due to several fgdtariuding overall weak loan demand,
loan payoffs, our decisions to exit certain creeliationships and transfers of certain loans to ORipon the conclusion of formal collection
proceedings. We expect a return to modest growthdst loan portfolio segments if real estate maviahiations stabilize and the supply of
commercial lease opportunities improves based olbajjimacroeconomic conditions.

Our loan portfolio quality metrics reflected theevall economic environment in 2010. The net inagdasonaccrual loans and a related
increase in our loan loss reserves resulted priyniaom a corresponding material decline in theuagions of the underlying collateral and a
decline in effective rents and occupancies in @eitecome-producing properties; however, effectiepts and occupancies in multifamily
properties began to stabilize late in 2010. We atsted a continued influx of personal and busiteskruptcy cases; of these, the majority of
borrowers sought to avoid their obligations whilmimority sought to restructure their debt to con& ownership of their assets. General
market conditions and efforts by various governrakentities and local courts to further slow thegaf foreclosures continued to affect the
pace of our progress in resolving classified asbetiswe expect the pace of resolutions to incr@gag11. We continue to believe that
unemployment, consumer spending and borrower peocepof residential and commercial real estateat&ns will be the primary factors
affecting loan portfolio quality in 2011.

As we expected, our general loan loss reservesnueat to increase. As part of our computation efréquired level for our general loan loss
reserve, our model incorporates the changes inmadtand local economic risk factors, the changedke levels of classified loans by loan ty
and the impact of the additional specific valuat@diowances or charge-offs recorded on classifiah$é. Our underwriting standards remain
consistent with our historical standards, althoaghcredit analyses incorporate somewhat more ceasee assumptions with respect to
effective rents, expenses and occupancies giveouttient economic environment.
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Deposits increased slightly in 2010. Pricing coiodis for local deposits, whether low-balance carpasits, certificates of deposits or high-
balance, high-yield transaction accounts, remafaedrable during the year due to very low marketds and continued weak industry-wide
loan demand. We continued to moderate our compefitdsition given the weak lending environment andexcess liquidity position. We
expect a similar competitive environment for thstfhalf of 2011, and we will continue our marketiefforts to further enhance the depth and
quality of our deposit portfolio.

Our net interest spread declined in 2010 as thiéngeia loan portfolio balances and, to a lesseemt the impact of loans placed on non-
accrual status offset the benefits of a favora@édycurve and improved credit spreads. Given thentjty and volatility of the variables
affecting our net interest margin and net intespséad, we are unable to confidently predict otiinterest margin and net interest spread in
2011.

Nonr-interest income decreased in 2010 due to a miyeloaver net gain on the sale of securities ardlied deposit-related fee income, which
was partially offset by higher income from insurarand annuities and other fee income. Wealth manageperformed slightly better than our
expectations for 2010.

Nor-interest expense increased slightly in 2010 agréfieant increase in expenses related to nonepetihg assets and wridewns on ORE(
offset the favorable impact of our focus on imprayefficiency through operational reviews and texdbgy deployments. We expect that the
expenses related to non-performing loans and fledsisset management will decline in the lattet ph2011 in conjunction with the
anticipated gradual decline of the levels of norfgrening assets.

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are defined as thdee are reflective of significant judgments andentainties, and could potentially result in
materially different results under different asstioms and conditions. We believe that the mostoaditaccounting policies upon which our
financial condition and results of operation deperd which involve the most complex subjectiveigiens or assessments, are as follows:

Allowance for Loan Losse. Arriving at an appropriate level of allowance foah losses involves a high degree of judgment.a&lowance fo
loan losses provides for probable incurred losssgd upon evaluations of known and inherent riske loan portfolio. We review the level
of the allowance on a quarterly basis and estabiistprovision for loan losses based upon histblizen loss experience, the nature and vol
of the loan portfolio, information about specifiorbower situations, estimated collateral valuespeeic conditions and other factors to assess
the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Ajitba material estimates that we must make to ksitabe allowance are loss exposure at
default; the amount and timing of future cash flamsaffected loans; the value of collateral; amttermination of loss factors to be applied to
the various elements of the loan portfolio. Alltbése estimates are susceptible to significantgdahithough we believe that we use the best
information available to us to establish the allos&for loan losses, future adjustments to thenaliwe may be necessary if borrower finan
collateral valuation or economic conditions diferbstantially from the information and assumptiosed in making the evaluation. In additi
as an integral part of their examination processregulatory agencies periodically review thewHloce for loan losses. These agencies may
require us to recognize additions to the allowdrased on their judgments of information availabléhem at the time of their examination. A
large loss could deplete the allowance and reduooreased provisions to replenish the allowancechvivould negatively affect earnings.

Intangible Asset:. Acquisitions accounted for under purchase accogmgnuire us to record as assets on our finantitdraents both

goodwill, an intangible asset that is equal togkeess of the purchase price which we pay for @amatbmpany over the estimated fair value of
the net assets acquired, and identifiable intargiBkets such as core deposit intangibles andoropeate agreements. We evaluate our
goodwill asset at least annually, or when otheiciaithrs suggest that an impairment may have ocguvkée are required to reduce the carrying
value of our goodwill asset through a charge tmiegs if an impairment exists. Core deposit anepitientifiable intangible assets are
amortized to expense over their estimated usefetland are reviewed for impairment at least atywu@l whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amoutth@fasset may not be fully recoverable. The valnagchniques that we use to determine the
carrying value of tangible and intangible assetpiaed in acquisitions and the estimated liveslehtifiable intangible assets involve estimates
for discount rates, projected future cash flows timeé period calculations, all of which are sus@#ptto change based on changes in economic
conditions and other factors. Future events or gbain the estimates that we used to determineatirging value of our goodwill and
identifiable intangible assets or which otherwidgexsely affect their value or estimated lives dduhve a material adverse impact on our
results of operations. As of December 31, 2010,mangible assets consisted of a goodwill ass&2at6 million and core deposit intangibles
of $2.7 million.
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In performing its analysis, the third-party valwatifirm considered three general approaches tatialu the asset-based approach, the market
approach, and the income approach. In its valuatienthird-party valuation firm used two methodthim the market approach and one
method within the income approach. The methodzetdiwithin the income approach was the discourasti éow method, which relies upon
the perception of a future stream of benefits ptesent value of which represents the indicatiovadiie of BankFinancial FSB, the reporting
unit pursuant to applicable ASC 350 guidance. Tlkéwds utilized within the market approach weregtieleline public company method and
guideline transaction method. The guideline puttimpany method utilizes the pricing of guidelindlgzicompanies, which in our case were
publicly-traded banks and bank holding companiesibg certain similarities to the reporting unitciuding asset size, geographic region, and
profitability. The third-party valuation firm conaled that the fair value of the reporting unit,eeded its carrying value as of the valuation
date, and therefore, there was no impairment ofjoodwill asset pursuant to the first step of tbedyvill impairment test prescribed by ASC
350, Intangibles — Goodwill and Other. We concurrtth the methodology and the conclusion of theddgarty valuation firm.

Income TaxesWe consider accounting for income taxes a criicalounting policy due to the subjective natureesfain estimates that are
involved in the calculation. We use the assetflighinethod of accounting for income taxes in whigferred tax assets and liabilities are
established for the temporary differences betwherfihancial reporting basis and the tax basisunfassets and liabilities. We must assess the
realization of the deferred tax asset and, to ¥tent that we believe that recovery is not likelyaluation allowance is established.
Adjustments to increase or decrease the valuatiowance are charged or credited, respectiveljncome tax expense. No valuation
allowance was required at December 31, 2010. Ajhoue have determined a valuation allowance igemuired for any deferred tax assets at
December 31, 2010, there is no guarantee thatuatiah allowance will not be required in the future

Statement of Financial Condition at December 31, 2M and December 31, 2009

Total assets decreased $36.3 million, or 2.3%1t63 billion at December 31, 2010, from $1.56%dyilat December 31, 2009, primarily due
to a $167.8 million decrease in net loans, to $1L8ion at December 31, 2010, from $1.219 billanDecember 31, 2009, partially offset k
$112.6 million increase in net cash and cash etpntsito $220.8 million at December 31, 2010, fi$h98.2 million at December 31, 2009.

Our loan portfolio consists primarily of investmetd business loans (multi-family, nonresidentall estate, commercial, construction and
land loans, and commercial leases), which togettake up 75.9% of gross loans. Net loans receivddtecased $167.8 million, or 13.8%, to
$1.051 billion at December 31, 2010, from $1.21Bdni at December 31, 2009. Nonresidential reatesibans decreased $34.6 million, or
10.9%, primarily due to principal payments of $5@ilion, which were partially offset by $15.3 nidh in draws on existing credit
commitments. Multi-family mortgage loans decrealse®$32.3 million, or 9.8%, due in substantial gara HUD refinancing that was
completed by a related group of borrowers. Comrakloans decreased by $23.4 million, or 26.6%, theecombined impact of loan pay
downs and reduced originations. Commercial leasesedsed by $25.7 million, or 14.5%, as sched@asd payments outpaced originations.
Construction and land loans decreased $14.2 mijltiod3.5%, primarily due to project sales and @rawns to permanent amortizing loans.
One-to-four family residential mortgage loans dasezl $33.3 million, or 11.5%, primarily due to meficings that were not replaced with new
originations.

Our allowance for loan losses increased by $3.6amjlto $22.2 million at December 31, 2010, froB8% million at December 31, 2009. The
increase reflects the combined impact of a $4.4aniincrease in the portion of the specific allowa for loan losses that we allocate to
impaired loans and $8.5 million in net chamfés, which were partially offset by a $794,000 hase in the general component of the allow
for loan losses. Increases in the specific portibthe allowance for loan losses occurred pringypal the following areas: multi-family
mortgage loans ($2.6 million); non-residential resate loans ($131,000); commercial loans ($1llom); construction and land loans
($729,000); and commercial leases ($72,000). Natedses in the specific portion of the allowaneddan losses that we allocate to impaired
loans occurred for investor-owned one-to-four fgmésidential loans ($283,000), due to the transfgroperties to other real estate owned
during 2010.

29



Securities increased by $18.6 million, or 18.2%$1@0.7 million at December 31, 2010, from $102illion at December 31, 2009. The
primary reason for the increase was $50.5 millioedcurity purchases, which were partially offse$B1.8 million in principal repayments,
sales and maturities of securities. In 2010, wizat investments in FDIC insured certificates epdsit as an investment option.

We owned common stock of the FHLBC with a statedvadue of $15.6 million at December 31, 2010 a@82 The FHLBC did not declare
or pay any dividends from the third quarter of 2@@bugh 2010. In the first quarter of 2011, thelB€ declared and paid a cash dividend at
an annualized rate of 10 basis points per share.

In late 2009, we prepaid our estimated quartes-biased assessments for the remainder of 2009peall of 2010, 2011, and 2012, pursuant
to the FDIC final rule requiring the prepaymentefposit insurance assessments by insured deposistitytions. At December 31, 2010, the
remaining prepaid FDIC assessment was $4.8 million.

In conjunction with the sale of our Freddie Macfpreed stocks in 2009, we recorded an income tegivable of $11.7 million at
December 31, 2009. We received $11.3 million inrefxnds during 2010. Other assets increased $#i6mto $15.1 million at December 31,
2010, from $12.2 million at December 31, 2009, @ritly due to a $2.7 million increase in deferrexi aasets.

Deposits increased $2.0 million, or 0.2%, to $1.B8%n at December 31, 2010, from $1.233 billanDecember 31, 2009, primarily due to
increased money market account, savings and noestieearing demand balances. Money market accountsased $18.9 million, or 5.9%,
$341.0 million at December 31, 2010, from $322.1iom at December 31, 2009. Savings accounts irsa@&2.8 million, or 2.9%, to $98.9
million at December 31, 2010, from $96.1 millionC&cember 31, 2009, and noninterest-bearing demeraunts increased $4.2 million to
$112.5 million at December 31, 2010, from $108.8iom at December 31, 2009. Total core depositsifgs, money market, noninterest-
bearing demand and interest-bearing NOW accoumts@@ased as a percentage of total deposits, reypirgg€9.2% of total deposits at
December 31, 2010, compared to 67.3% of total depasDecember 31, 2009.

Borrowings decreased $27.0 million, or 53.2%, t8.%2million at December 31, 2010, from $50.8 milliat December 31, 2009, due to our
repayments of maturing FHLBC advances.

Total stockholders’ equity was $253.3 million atd@mber 31, 2010, compared to $263.6 million at brdmr 31, 2009. The decrease in total
stockholders’ equity was primarily due to the congal impact of our repurchase of 356,411 sharesiof@mmon stock during 2010 at a total
cost of $3.1 million, and our declaration and pagte# cash dividends totaling $5.9 million, the 34nillion net loss that we recorded for 2010
and a $50,000 decrease accumulated other compredémsome. These items were partially offset 84l million increase in total
stockholders’ equity that resulted from the vestifigtock-based compensation and ESOP shares edimednallocated shares of common
stock that our ESOP owns were reflected as a $ndlidn reduction to stockholdergquity at December 31, 2010, compared to a $15Ibrm
reduction to stockholders’ equity at December IDR

Loans

We originate multi-family mortgage loans, nonresititd real estate loans, commercial loans, comraklkeases, and construction and land
loans. In addition, we originate oneftmir family residential mortgage loans and consulbans, and purchase and sell loan participaticora
time-to-time. The following briefly describes ouwirgipal loan products.

Multi -family Mortgage LoansLoans secured by multi-family mortgage loans tat&296.9 million, or 27.7%, of our total loan poftb, at
December 31, 2010. At December 31, 2010, $73.0amitf our multi-family mortgage loan portfolio csisted of loans originated in carefully
selected metropolitan markets outside the Bankfaay lending area, and these loans represent&d@df our multi-family mortgage loan
portfolio and 6.8% of our total loan portfolio. Misfamily mortgage loans generally are secured lojtifiamily rental properties such as
apartment buildings, including subsidized apartmanits. The majority of our multi-family mortgageans have adjustable interest rates
following an initial fixed-rate period, typicallydtween three and five years.
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Nonresidential Real Estate Loar. Loans secured by nonresidential real estate to%#8@&.0 million, or 26.3%, of our total loan potifg at
December 31, 2010. We emphasize nonresidentiabstale loans with initial principal balances beiw&1.0 million and $5.0 million. The
nonresidential real estate properties securingetto@s are predominantly office buildings, ligidustrial buildings, shopping centers and
mixed-use developments, and to a lesser extent sp@cialized properties such as nursing homesthied healthcare facilities. Substantially
all of our nonresidential real estate loans arergetby properties located in our primary markegaOur nonresidential real estate loans are
typically written as three- or five-year adjustabte mortgage loans or mortgage loans with ballmaturities of three or five years.
Amortization of these loans is typically based 6n @ 25-year payout schedules. We also originatees15-year fixed-rate, fully amortizing
loans.

Commercial LoansCommercial loans totaled $64.7 million, or 6.0%paf total loan portfolio, at December 31, 2010isTbtal includes
unsecured commercial loans with an aggregate oulisig balance of $7.8 million. We generally makenceercial loans to customers in our
primary market area to finance equipment acquisitexpansion, working capital and other generainass purposes. The terms of these loans
generally range from less than one year to fiveas/€ghe loans either carry a fixed-rate or adjustaiierest rates indexed to a lending rate that
is either determined internally or based on a stesrh market rate index.

Commercial LeasesCommercial leases totaled $151.1 million, or 14.d¥%gur total loan portfolio, at December 31, 200w commercial
leases primarily involve technology equipment, matéandling equipment, medical equipment and otagital equipment. The transactions
are generally structured as a non-recourse assigrisgehe leasing company of the payment streatihehease supplemented by the grant of a
security interest in the lease and the leased ewnp Consequently, we underwrite leases by exaithie creditworthiness of the lessee
rather than the lessor. The lessee generally atpessnd the lease payments directly to us. Aseafember 31, 2010, 57.7% of our commercial
lease portfolio involved lessees with investmeratdgrrated public debt, 39.9% involved publicly-gddessees with no public debt and thus no
public debt rating, and 2.4% involved privatelythédssees or lessees with a below investment-grabléc debt rating. Debt ratings are
determined by Moody’s, Standard & Poors, Fitch, ABést or an equivalent rating firm. Commerciaklestypically have a maximum

maturity of seven years and we limit our maximuntstanding credit exposure to $10.0 million to aimgke lessee. Leases to companies with
no public debt ratings generally involve companigh a net worth in excess of $25.0 million anditgtly have a maximum maturity of five
years.

Construction and Land LoansConstruction and land loans totaled $18.4 millimn1.7%, of our total loan portfolio at December 2@10.
These loans generally consist of land acquisitiams$ to help finance the purchase of land intefigiefiirther development, including single-
family homes, multi-family housing and commerciadme property, development loans to builders mnoarket area to finance
improvements to real estate, consisting mostlyirafle-family subdivisions, typically to finance ticest of utilities, roads, sewers and other
development costs. These builders generally relthersale of single-family homes to repay develapneans, although in some cases the
improved building lots may be sold to another besijdften in conjunction with development loansgémeral, the maximum loan-t@lue ratic
for raw land acquisition loan is 65% of the appedisalue of the property, and the maximum ternhe$é loans is two years. The maximum
amount loaned on a development loan is generatligdd to the cost of the land and public improvetagand advances are made in accord
with a schedule reflecting the cost of the improeeats. Advances are generally limited to 90% of @otonstruction costs and, as required by
applicable regulations, a 75% loan to completedaippd value ratio. We have discouraged new coetstrulending for the past several years
and have had only limited interest in site acqigisitoans for future construction.

One-to-Four Family Residential Mortgage Lendingonforming and non-conforming fixed-rate and adjbl-rate residential mortgage loans
totaled $256.3 million, or 23.9%, of our total loportfolio at December 31, 2010. Our residentiattgege loan portfolio includes traditional
one-to-four family residential mortgage loans, hagaity loans and home equity lines of credit #ratsecured by the borrower’s primary
residence, and loans to investors in non-owner{giedusingle-family homes. At December 31, 2010, b@quity loans totaled $9.8 million, or
0.9%, of total loans, home equity lines of credtated $79.7 million, or 7.4%, of total loans, dadns to investors in non-owner-occupied
single-family homes totaled $76.0 million, or 7. b¥dotal loans. We generally originate both fixesd adjustable-rate loans in amounts up to
the maximum conforming loan limits as establishgd-annie Mae, which currently is $417,000 for s@gfdmily homes in our market area.
Private mortgage insurance is required for firstigege loans with loan-to-value ratios in exces80%6. At December 31, 2010, our
adjustable-rate residential first mortgage loartfpbo totaled $129.6 million, and included $18.@lman in loans that re-price once a year and
$111.0 million in loans that re-price periodicadifter an initial fixed-rate period of three yearswore.
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We also originate loans above conforming limitéemned to as “jumbo loans,” that are underwrittertite credit standards of Fannie Mae given
the demand for these loans in the Chicago metrapotirea. We also originate loans that do not fulget the credit standards of Fannie Mae if
they are considered acceptable risks given theoréble compensating risk factors. In general, waak originate or purchase loans with

underwriting characteristics that, taken togethes, materially lower than the credit standardsafrite Mae, and as part of the underwriting
process, we consider the availability of purchagarfumbo and other nonconforming loans.
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Loan Portfolio Composition
The following table sets forth the composition af tban portfolio, excluding loans held-for-salg,tgpe of loan at the dates indicated.

At December 31,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
(Dollars in thousands)

One-to-four

family

residential $ 256,30( 23.92% $ 289,62 23.4%% $ 312,39( 24.3% $ 345,24! 27.3% $ 397,54! 29.71%
Multi-family

mortgage 296,91¢ 27.71 329,227 26.6¢ 305,31¢ 23.8¢ 291,39 23.07 297,13: 22.2(
Nonresidentia

real estatt 281,98° 26.31 316,60° 25.62 342,58: 26.7¢ 325,88! 25.8( 320,72¢ 23.91%
Construction an

land 18,39¢ 1.72 32,57 2.64 50,687 3.9¢ 64,48 5.1C 85,22: 6.37
Commercial

loans 64,67¢ 6.04 88,067 7.1z 92,67¢ 7.2% 87,77 6.9¢ 94,30¢ 7.0E
Commercial

leases 151,10° 14.1( 176,82: 14.31 174,64 13.6: 144,84 11.4% 139,16 10.4(
Consume 2,182 0.2C 2,53¢ 0.21 2,65¢ 0.21 3,50¢ 0.2¢ 4,04¢ 0.3C

Total loans 1,071,56¢ 100.0(% 1,235,46: 100.00% 1,280,951 100.0% 1,263,13. 100.0(% 1,338,14. 100.0(%

Net deferrec

loan
origination
costs 1,371 1,701 1,912 2,08¢ 2,42¢
Allowance for
loan losse: (22,180 (18,629 (14,749 (11,05) (10,629
Total
loans,
net $1,050,76! $1,218,541 $1,268,12. $1,254,16 $1,329,94.
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Loan Portfolio Maturities

The following table summarizes the scheduled regatsof our loan portfolio at December 31, 2010m@ed loans, loans having no stated

repayment schedule or maturity and overdraft I@aeseported as being due in one year or less.

One Year
Within Through Beyond
One Year Five Years Five Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Scheduled Repayments of Loans
One-to-four family residentia $ 31,86¢ $ 66,17¢ $158,25! $ 256,30(
Multi-family mortgage 59,27¢ 91,42¢ 146,20t 296,91¢
Nonresidential real esta 110,52¢ 162,89: 8,56¢ 281,98
Construction and lan 14,73¢ 3,66( 4 18,39¢
Commercial loans and leas 127,05 86,56 2,16 215,78t
Consume 1,02¢ 758 404 2,182
Total loans $344,49( $411,47¢ $315,60: $1,071,56!
Total
Loans Maturing After One Year:
Predetermined (fixed) interest ra $ 360,10¢
Adjustable interest rate 366,97
Total loans $ 727,07¢
Past Due Loans
The following table reflects investment and businlesns past due less than 90 days:
Total
30 -59 Day: 60 -89 Day: 30 -89 Day:
Past Due Past Due Past Due
(Dollars in thousands)
Multi -family mortgage loan $ 8,34¢ $ 4,23t $ 12,58!
Nonresidential real estate loe 9,331 16,24 25,57¢
Construction and land loal 1,26( 1,26¢ 2,52¢
Commercial 8,52 88€ 9,40¢
Past due investment and business I¢ $ 27,45¢ $ 22,63 $ 50,09:
Matured loan: $ 17,40: $ 12,12¢ $ 29,52/
% of past due investment and business matured
loans 63.31% 53.56% 58.9%%

At December 31, 2010, multifamily, naesidential real estate, construction and develop@aed commercial loans past due loans totaledL:
million. Of the $50.1 million, $29.5 million or 58% were “Pass” rated matured loans in the procksmnewal and $8.4 million or 16.8% were

on non-accrual status. The remaining $13.0 milbo24.5% were subject to informal collection adtivio bring the loan current.

34



Nonperforming Loans and Assets

We review loans on a regular basis, and generédigedoans on nonaccrual status when either pighcipinterest is 90 days or more past due.
In addition, we place loans on nonaccrual statusnawhe do not expect to receive full payment ofriggeor principal. Interest accrued and
unpaid at the time a loan is placed on nonaccrtatisis reversed from interest income. InteregtrEats received on nonaccrual loans are
recognized in accordance with our significant actimg policies. Once a loan is placed on nonaccstals, the borrower must generally
demonstrate at least six months of payment perfoceaefore the loan is eligible to return to ackstatus. We may have loans classified a
days or more delinquent and still accruing. Gemgrale do not utilize this category of loan clagsition unless: (1) the loan is repaid in full
shortly after the period end date; (2) the loawéd secured and there are no asserted or penelya barriers to its collection; or (3) the
borrower has remitted all scheduled payments anthirwise in substantial compliance with the teahthe loan, but the processing of loan
payments actually received or the renewal of tlaa lloas not occurred for administrative reason®ddember 31, 2010, we had four loans
totaling $818,000 in this category.

We typically obtain new third-party appraisals oliateral valuations when we place a loan on nonedstatus or when we commence formal
collection action, unless the existing valuatiofoimation for the collateral is sufficiently curiteio comply with the requirements of our
Appraisal and Collateral Valuation Policy ( “ACV IRy”). We also obtain new third-party appraisafscollateral valuations when the judicial
foreclosure process concludes with respect toestake collateral, and when we otherwise acquitghor constructive title to real estate
collateral. We use updated valuation informatiogdabon Multiple Listing Service data, broker opirté@f value, actual sales prices of similar
assets sold by us, and approved sales pricespgongs to offers to purchase similar assets ownagshy provide interim valuation information
for financial statement and management purposesAQGY Policy establishes the maximum useful lifeaofeal estate appraisal at 18 months.
As of December 31, 2010, the average life of tlreltharty appraisals on collateral supporting tbenputation of ASC 310-10-35 specific
valuation allowances was 12 months and the avéifegef the appraisals supporting the net realiraldlue of OREO was nine months.
Because appraisals and updated valuations utilsterttal or “ask-side” data in reaching valuatmnclusions, the appraised or updated
valuation may or may not reflect the actual salésepthat we will receive at the time of sale.

Real estate appraisals may include up to threeoaphes to value: the sales comparison approacimabme approach (for income-producing
property) and the cost approach. Not all appraistilige all three approaches. Depending on thaneadf the collateral and market conditions,
we may emphasize one approach over another inndigieg the fair value of real estate collateral pAgisals may also contain different
estimates of value based on the level of occupangjanned future improvements. “As-is” valuatiorpresent an estimate of value based on
current market conditions with no changes to theearscondition of the real estate collateral. “Aakdlized” or “as-completed” valuations
assume the real estate collateral will be imprdeeal stated standard or achieve its highest artdusesn terms of occupancy. “As-stabilized”
or “as-completed” valuations may be subject toesent value adjustment for market conditions ostifedule of improvements.

As part of the asset classification process, weldgvan exit strategy for real estate collaterdDBEO by assessing overall market conditions,
the current use and condition of the asset, andgtsest and best use. For most income-producigestate, investors value most highly a
stable income stream from the asset; consequevelgonduct a comparative evaluation to determinetiadr conducting a sale on an “as-is,”
“as-stabilized” or “as-improved” basis is most likéo produce the highest net realizable valugvdfdetermine that the “as-stabilized” or “as-
improved” basis is appropriate, we then complegerthcessary improvements or tenant stabilizatiskstawvith the applicable time value
discount and improvement expenses incorporatecoumt@stimates of the expected costs to sell. A3safember 31, 2010, impaired real estate
loans and OREO valued on an “as-is” basis was $2illi®n, or 74.0% of the total principal balanckimpaired real estate loans, and $10.3
million, or 70.7% of the net book value of OREO.

Our estimates of the net realizable value of retdte collateral also include a deduction for tkgeeted costs to sell the collateral or such other
deductions from the cash flows resulting from tperation and liquidation of the asset as are ap@t@p For most real estate collateral subject
to the judicial foreclosure process, we apply &¥ddeduction to the value of the asset to deterthieexpected costs to sell the asset. This
estimate includes one year of real estate taxss sammissions and miscellaneous repair and gagists. If we receive a purchase offer that
requires unbudgeted repairs, or if the expectealugsn period for the asset exceeds one yearhee include, on a case-by-case basis, the
costs of the additional real estate taxes and repai any other material holding costs in the etquecosts to sell the collateral. For OREO,
only apply a 5.0% deduction to determine the exgubcbsts to sell, as expenses for real estate saxksepairs are expensed when incurred.
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Nonperforming Assets Summary
The following table below sets forth the amountd eategories of our nonperforming loans and nomperihg assets at the dates indicated.
At December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands)

Nonaccrual loans:

One-to-four family residentia $10,05¢ $11,45: $ 2,20t $ 2,19¢ $2,21z
Multi-family mortgage 13,22¢ 13,96: 2,101 4,18¢ 1,165
Nonresidential real esta 12,42¢ 11,07¢ 2,961 2,822 4,37¢
Construction and lan 6,13¢ 8,841 5,14k 98¢ —
Commercial loan 3,76¢ 4,16( 1,141 1,751 1,41¢
Commercial lease 72 — 10E 112 47
Consume 3 — — 2 5
Total nonaccrual loar 45,69t 49,48¢ 13,65¢ 12,05¢ 9,22¢
Other real estate owned
One-to-four family residentia 2,77(C 601 58¢ 252 —
Multi-family mortgage 2,48¢ 97¢€ 13< — —
Nonresidential real esta 5,83¢ 1,41¢ — 56¢ —
Land 1,74 1,091 234 — —
Total other real estate own 12,83¢ 4,08 95k 82C —
Other real estate owned in process
One-to-four family residentia 24¢ — — — —
Nonresidential real esta 1,541 — — — —
Total other real estate own 1,78¢ — — — —
Total nonperforming asse $60,31" $53,57¢ $14,61: $12,87¢ $9,22¢
Ratios:
Nonperforming loans to total loa 4.26% 4.01% 1.0 0.95% 0.6%%
Nonperforming assets to total ass 3.94 3.4z 0.94 0.87 0.57

Loans on Nonaccrual Status

At December 31, 2010, nonaccrual loans declinegghtlli due principally to transfers of loans to ORE@H resolutions of pending cases. The
decline was partially offset by isolated increasasonaccrual loans in the commercial real estatecmammercial lease categories. Nonaccrual
loans decreased by $3.8 million to $45.7 millio®atember 31, 2010, from $49.5 million at Decen@ir2009. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, no accrued interest on nonddoares had been recognized.

At December 31, 2010, our total non-performing kawolved 105 borrower relationships, or an averaig$435,000 loan per borrower
relationship. Therefore, there are no specific eotrations of credit risk such that a majority @dis involves only a few borrower
relationships. Our three largest non-performingdeer relationships represent 31.9% of total norigpming loans. These loans are briefly
described as follows:

*  We have a $5.8 million nonperforming loan thatdswged by a retail shopping center located in oumgry Chicago metropolitan
market. As of December 31, 2010, this loan wasamancrual status and had a $787,000 specific vafuatiowance that was bas
on an updated “as improved” third party apprai$hke shopping center is 92% occupied by businesseste affiliated with
investors in the entity that owns the shopping @erfthe loan is further secured by additional ¢eta pledged by the investors,
is supported by the personal guarantees of thesiarge The business operations of the existingsraf the shopping center,
together with the supplementary personal resowttee guarantors, were not sufficient to complytwthe planned payment
schedule of principal and interest. Accordinglyrquant to applicable regulatory guidance, futureevgals of the loan will be
classified as a troubled debt restructuring (“TDRIRd the loan will remain on nonaccrual statud tht borrower’s business
operations demonstrate the capability to sustaieast six months of debt service on a fully anzanty basis
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*  We have a $4.4 million nonperforming loan thatdéswged by a 242-unit multifamily residential buiidilocated outside of our
primary Chicago metropolitan market. This loamigliided in our Wholesale Commercial Lending categdioans. As of
December 31, 2010, this loan was on nonaccrualstatid had a $1.5 million specific valuation alloe& that was based on an
updated “as improved” third-party appraisal. Therbwer initially filed a Chapter 11 bankruptcy gietn, but the bankruptcy case
was recently dismissed. A court-appointed recdsaow in place. We recently received two sepanéfers to purchase this
property for prices in excess of our net book vahrel tentatively expect this matter to be fullyaleed in 2011

*  We have a $4.4 million credit exposure to a silgleower, that is secured by a completed s-family residence that the borrow
constructed for the purposes of sale, a parcehchnt land, and the borrower’s personal residehitef the real estate collateral is
located in our primary Chicago metropolitan market.of December 31, 2010, the loans were on nonatstatus and had a $1.2
million specific valuation allowance based on upddtas is” third-party appraisals. The Bank hasteggpointed mortgagee-in-
possession of the completed single family resideaice the pending foreclosure action is expectemteiude in 2011

Other Real Estate Owned or In Process

Real estate that is acquired through foreclosuged®ed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as @QRE OREO in process until it is sold. When
real estate is acquired through foreclosure ord®ddn lieu of foreclosure, it is recorded at &8 falue, less the estimated costs of disposal as
discussed above. If the fair value of the propertgss than the loan balance, the differenceasggd against the allowance for loan losses.

Balance at Balance at
December 31 December 31
Write -
2009 Additions downs Charge-Offs Sale 2010

(Dollars in thousands)
Other real estate owned and in proces:

One-to-four family residentia $ 601 $ 3,777  $(1,19¢) $ — $ (167) $ 3,01t
Multi-family mortgage 97€ 5,037 (609) (52) (2,867) 2,48¢
Nonresidential real esta 1,41¢ 7,21¢ (407 — (852) 7,37¢
Land 1,091 1,40/ (84) (45) (621) 1,74¢
Total other real estate owned and in
process $ 4,08 $17,437 $2,29) $ (96) $4,507) $ 14,62

As discussed above, the appraised value of reatkeassets may or may not reflect the actual gaies that will be received. We market real
estate for sale based on our estimate of its adizable value. Depending on the levels of manktdrest received during the initial period of
market exposure, we may reduce the offering priceubsequent periods; if we do so, the new offepitige becomes the new net realizable
value. We may also accept an offer to purchaseengieal estate asset at a price below the nexabe value if there has been limited interest
at the original offering price and we conclude thather market exposure time (even at a price favan the current offering price but higher
than the proposed actual sales price) will not pcedmaterially better results given the holdingts@®d management risks incurred over time.
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Loan Extensions and Modifications

Maturing loans are subject to our standard loarenmdting policies and practices. Due to the needHtain updated borrower and guarantor
financial information, collateral information or prepare revised loan documentations, loans ipitheess of renewal may appear as past due
because the information needed to underwrite avahef the loan is not available to us prior to thaturity date of the loan. At times, short-
term administrative extensions, which are typic@llydays in duration, are granted to facilitatepgrounderwriting. In general, loan
modifications are subject to a risk-adjusted pgamalysis. We do not grant loan modification rexgsi¢hat involve belownarket interest rate
Other than split-note restructurings conductedoinfermance with applicable Federal Financial lositins Examination Council (“FFIEC”)
workout guidance, we do not grant loan modificasitimat involve principal concessions. We also dognant loan modifications that suspend
all loan payments for any period; however, we mangloan modifications that involve the short-tesuspension of principal amortization
payments. Typically, we grant loan modifications tliree to six month periods, at the conclusiowbich the loan will either mature or return
in all material respects to its original terms aodditions. During 2010, the Bank conducted thitteemmercial loan modifications to eight
borrowers totaling $7.1 million (or 0.66% of totahns as of December 31, 2010) that did not quakfyroubled debt restructurings due to the
fact that no concessions were made to the borroethes than those which we would grant in the aadircourse of business. The
modifications involved actions such as reducinglbove-market interest rate to a market interestoaextending a shorter-duration
amortization period to a longer amortization petilogat remained in compliance with our normal undéimg standards. We also conducted
loan modifications to four residential borrowershwa total exposure of $410,296. These modificatigenerally involved the repayment of ¢
due principal and/or interest loan payments oulree- to six-month period of time, in exchangeddorbearance of our legal remedies.

When appropriate, we evaluate loan extensions d@ifinations in accordance with ASC 310-40 and esddederal regulatory guidance
concerning TDRs and the FFIEC workout guidanceetemine the required treatment for nonaccrualistand risk classification purposes. In
general, if we grant a loan modification or extensihat involves either the absence of principabdization (other than for revolving lines of
credit which are customarily granted on interedtré@rms), or if we grant a material extension pfexisting loan amortization period in excess
of our underwriting standards, the loan will begagld on nonaccrual status and impairment testinguwtied to determine whether a specific
valuation allowance or loss classification / chaoffeis required. If the loan is well secured byatrundance of collateral and the collectability
of both interest and principal is probable, thenlogay remain on accrual status, but it will be sif#sd as a TDR due to the concession made in
the loan principal amortization payment compon@nban in full compliance with the payment requiremts specified in a loan modification
will not be considered as past due, but may noifethde placed on nonaccrual status or be cladsifie@ TDR, as appropriate under the
circumstances.

In accordance with the FFIEC workout guidance réseailting “A” promissory note in a split-note rastturing will be considered a TDR at the
time of the restructuring and will remain so cléssli for at least 12 months. The resulting “B” nat#l be either placed on nonaccrual status or
charged-off and any payments on the “B” promisgarie will be treated as a recovery of principalessithe note is fully collateralized
pursuant to our underwriting standards and we telibat the collection of both the principal antemest of the “B” note is probable.
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Troubled Debt Restructurings
The following table sets forth the troubled delstnecturings by loan category as of December 31,

2010 2009

(dollars in thousands)

Multi -family mortgage $1,67¢ $ —
Nonresidential real esta 1,69¢ 7,40¢€
Troubled debt restructured loa— accrual loan: 3,37¢ 7,40¢€

Multi -family mortgage 13 —
Nonresidential real esta 3,137 2,152
Troubled debt restructured loa— nonaccrual loan 3,15( 2,152
Total troubled debt restricted loa $ 6,524 $ 9,55¢

TDR loans decreased $3.0 million in 2010. Totahkalassified as TDRs represented 0.61% of thélaztas at December 31, 2010.

Of the $6.5 million in loans that were classifisdT@Rs at December 31, 2010, 52% were on accraiissand continued to perform according
to the terms of the applicable loan agreementsh©%$9.6 million in loans that were classified &R6 at December 31, 2009, $7.4 million, or
77%, remained on accrual status as of that dateseguiently, approximately 50% of the TDRs that wereaccrual status at December 31, :
were placed on nonaccrual status during 2010 dueipally to an inability of the borrowers to comtie debt service on a fully-amortizing
basis.

Risk Classification of Assets

Our policies, consistent with regulatory guidelingsovide for the classification of loans and otassets that are considered to be of lesser
quality as substandard, doubtful, or loss assetdesignated as special mention.

An asset is considered substandard if it is inadesiy protected by the current net worth and pagiyggacity of the obligor or the collateral for
the loan, if any. Substandard assets include tbloamcterized by the distinct possibility that wil sustain some loss if the deficiencies are
corrected. Assets classified as doubtful havefah®weaknesses inherent in assets classifiedatandard with the added characteristic that
the weaknesses present also make collection adéitjian in full, on the basis of currently existifarts, conditions and values, highly
guestionable and improbable. Assets classifiedssdre those considered uncollectible and of ktiehvalue that their continuance as assets
is not warranted; such balances are promptly cliaoffeas required by applicable federal regulatichis asset designated as special mention
has potential weaknesses that deserve close attarid, if left uncorrected, these potential weakee may result in deterioration of the
repayment prospects for the asset or in the itistitis credit position with respect to the assei@he future date. Assets designated special
mention assets are not adversely classified ambtiexpose an institution to sufficient risk to veart adverse classification.

Based on a review of our assets at December 3D, 20issified assets consisted of substandardsass$60.4 million, doubtful assets of
$477,000, and no loans classified as loss assstsf Becember 31, 2010, we had $25.9 million oétssdesignated as special mention.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

We establish provisions for loan losses, whichciig@rged to operations in order to maintain thenadloce for loan losses at a level we consider
necessary to absorb probable incurred credit ldashe loan portfolio. In determining the leveltbk allowance for loan losses, we consider
past and current loss experience, trends in nonatlrans, evaluations of real estate collatetakent economic conditions, volume and type
of lending, adverse situations that may affect adyeer’s ability to repay a loan and the levelsiohperforming and other classified loans. The
amount of the allowance is based on estimatestenditimate losses may vary from the estimatesae nformation becomes available or
events change.

We provide for loan losses based on the allowanethod. Accordingly, all loan losses are chargetthéorelated allowance and all recoveries
are credited to it. Additions to the allowance Ifzan losses are provided by charges to income basedrious factors that, in our judgment,
deserve current recognition in estimating probaiderred credit losses. We review the loan porfolin an ongoing basis and make provisions
for loan losses on a quarterly basis to maintagnalfowance for loan losses in accordance with @aiiog principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. The allowance for loass&s consists of two components:

» specific allowances established for any impairesiential owner or non-owner occupied mortgage tifiaanily mortgage,
nonresidential real estate, construction and laachmercial, and commercial lease loans for whiehrétorded investment in the
loan exceeds the measured value of the loan

» general allowances for loan losses for each loassdbased on historical loan loss experience; djndtanents to historical loss
experience (general allowances), maintained torconeertainties that affect our estimate of probabturred credit losses for each
loan class

The adjustments to historical loss experience aseth on our evaluation of several factors, includiévels of, and trends in, past due and
classified loans; levels of, and trends in, chasfje-and recoveries; trends in volume and termsanfis, including any credit concentrations in
the loan portfolio; experience, ability, and depthending management and other relevant staff;retbnal and local economic trends and
conditions.

We evaluate the allowance for loan losses based tippcombined total of the specific and generatponents. Generally, when the loan
portfolio increases, absent other factors, theaaloce for loan loss methodology results in a higiediar amount of estimated probable
incurred credit losses than would be the case wittie increase. Conversely, when the loan podtfidicreases, absent other factors, the
allowance for loan loss methodology generally rssial a lower dollar amount of estimated probabksés than would be the case without the
decrease.

We review our loan portfolio on an ongoing basisiébermine whether any loans require classificadiod impairment testing in accordance
with applicable regulations and accounting prire§plWhen we classify loans as either substandaddwdstful and in certain other cases, we
review the collateral and future cash flow projecst to determine if a specific reserve is neces3drg allowance for loan losses represents
amounts that have been established to recognimer@ttcredit losses in the loan portfolio that laoéh probable and reasonably estimable a
date of the financial statements. When we clagsifplem loans as loss, we charge-off such amounts.

We refined the calculation of the general compoieétihe allowance for loan losses during the fougptlarter of 2010 in response to the new
FASB disclosure requirement to segment each loatfigtio category into specific loan classes (FASRrilards Update 2010-20 (ASU 210-
20), “Receivables (Topic 310): Disclosures aboat@nedit Quality of Financing Receivables and thiewance for Credit Losses”)oan clas:
segmentation tables are presented in Note 4 — LRansivable of the Consolidated Financial Statemekg a matter of consistency, the loan
class segmentation was also applied within theusttgr loss history used to calculate the genemralponent of the allowance for loan losses,
an adjustment of the inherent risk factor weiglhgibgsed on our evaluation of their relevance tom#we loan classes, and the elimination of
duplicative historical loss factors as a resulthef segmentation of the portfolio by class. Thedmements were applied to the loan balances,
net of impaired loans, to calculate a $12.8 millggmeral component of our allowance for loan loséd3ecember 31, 2010. The refinements
resulted in a net reduction of $1.7 million to tfeneral component of our allowance for loan losgéé3ecember 31, 2010, principally due to
establishment of loan class segments that had Ibistrical loss ratios than the general loan aatieg to which they belong. Specifically, the
refinements reduced the portion of the general aorapt of the allowance for loan losses attributadleommercial leases by $908,000, the
portion attributable to commercial loans by $788,00e portion attributable to non-residential restlate loans by $195,000, and the portion
attributable to multi-family mortgage loans by $18@0. These reductions were partially offset by3845000 increase in the portion of the
general component of the allowance for loan losisaisis attributable to one-to-four family mortgdgens.
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While we use the best information available to makaluations, future adjustments to the allowaneg become necessary if conditions differ
substantially from the information that we usedrnaking the evaluations. Our determinations aseaitk classification of our loans and the
amount of our allowance for loan losses are sultjerview by our regulatory agencies, which cajuie that we establish additional loss
allowances.

Net Charge-offs and Recoveries
The following table sets forth activity in our alance for loan losses for the years indicated.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at beginning of ye $18,62: $14,74¢ $11,05: $10,62: $11,51¢
Charge-offs:
One-to-four family residentia (2,292) (461) (24¢) (10 —
Multi-family mortgage (2,385 (297) (169) — —
Nonresidential real esta (2,897) (1,519 (605) — —
Construction and lan (52%) (2,262) (115) — —
Commercial loan (2,174 (463) (130 (237) (94€)
Commercial lease — (22 — — —
Consume (16) (42 (14€) (58) (26)
Total charg-offs (9,289 (5,06%) (1,419 (30%) (972)
Recoveries:
One-to-four family residentia 69 82 1 — —
Multi-family mortgage 3 — — — —
Nonresidential real esta 632 36 4 — —
Construction and lan 58 — — — —
Commercial loan 1 3 1 14 —
Commercial lease — 6 — — —
Consume — 3 10 23 4
Total recoverie! 764 13C 16 37 4
Net charg-offs (8,525 (4,935 (1,397 (26€) (96€)
Allowance of acquired bar — — — — 212
Provision (credit) for loan lossi 12,08 8,811 5,092 697 (136€)
Balance at end of ye: $22,18( $18,62: $14,74¢ $11,05: $10,62:
Ratios:
Net charg-offs to average loans outstand| 0.75% 0.3%% 0.11% 0.02% 0.07%
Allowance for loan losses to nonperforming loi 48.5¢ 37.6: 107.97 91.6¢ 115.1¢
Allowance for loan losses to total loa 2.07 1.51 1.1t 0.87 0.7¢

Net charg-offs and total charge-offs were $8.5 million ar@d3million, respectively, for the year ended Deben31, 2010, compared to $4.9
million in net charge-offs and $5.1 million in tbtharge-offs for the year ended December 31, 2808,$1.4 million in net charge-offs and
total charge-offs for the year ended December B282Total recoveries were $764,000 in 2010, corghsr $130,000 in 2009 and $16,000 in
2008.

We recorded a provision for loan losses of $12llianiin 2010, compared to $8.8 million in 2009 &bl 1 million in 2008. Of the $12.1

million provision for loan losses that we recorde@010, $4.4 million is attributable to the spéexifortion of the allowance for loan losses that
we allocate to impaired loans and $8.5 million liugye-offs, which were partially offset by a $7®0@ecrease in the general portion of the
allowance for loan losses.

A loan balance is classified as a loss and chaofiedthen it is confirmed that there is no readipparent source of repayment for the amou

the loan that is classified as loss. Confirmatian occur upon the receipt of updated third-parfyraigsal valuation information indicating that
there is a low probability of repayment upon sdlthe collateral, the final disposition of collaa¢where the net proceeds are insufficient to

the loan balance in full, our failure to obtain pession of certain consumer-loan collateral wittértain time limits specified by applicable
federal regulations, the conclusion of legal proiiegs where the borrower’s obligation to repayegdlly discharged (such as a federal Chapter
7 bankruptcy proceeding), or when it appears tindhér formal collection procedures are not likidyesult in net proceeds in excess of the
costs to collect.
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Included in 2010 charge-offs of $9.3 million we@&million in chargesffs related to final disposition of collateral aher loan resolutions,
which $1.7 million occurred in the fourth quart&1®. $6.0 million of charge-offs recorded at timeetireal estate transferred to other real estate
owned, of which $3.8 million occurred in the fougharter 2010.
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Allocation of Allowance for Loan Losses

The following table sets forth our allowance foamoosses allocated by loan category. The allowésrdean losses allocated to each category
is not necessarily indicative of future lossesny particular category and does not restrict treeafghe allowance to absorb losses in other
categories.

At December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Percent Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans of Loans
in Each in Each in Each
Allowance Category Allowance Category Allowance Category
Loan Loan Loan
for Loan Balances by to Total for Loan Balances by to Total for Loan Balances by to Total
Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans

(Dollars in thousands)

One-to-four family residentia  $ 3,55¢ $ 256,30( 23.9% $ 3,33 $ 289,62 23.4% $ 2,04C $ 312,39( 24.3%

Multi-family mortgage 7,032 296,91¢ 27.71 3,591 329,22° 26.6¢ 2,37( 305,31¢ 23.8¢
Nonresidential real esta 5,71¢ 281,98 26.31 5,69¢ 316,60° 25.6: 4,65¢ 342,58: 26.7¢
Construction and lan 2,461 18,39¢ 1.72 1,861 32,571 2.6£ 1,89¢ 50,68 3.9¢
Commercial loan 2,87¢ 64,67¢ 6.04 2,52( 88,067 7.1% 2,05¢ 92,67¢ 7.2%
Commercial lease 51¢ 151,10° 14.1( 1,591 176,82: 14.31 1,66¢ 174,64 13.6:
Consume 20 2,182 0.2C 24 2,53¢ 0.21 52 2,65¢ 0.21
Total $22,18( $1,071,56! 100.00% $18,62: $1,235,46. 100.0(% $14,74¢ $1,280,95 100.00%6
At December 31,
2007 2006
Percent Percent
of Loans of Loans
in Each in Each
Allowance Category Allowance Category
Loan Loan
for Loan Balances by to Total for Loan Balances by to Total
Losses Category Loans Losses Category Loans
(Dollars in thousands)
One-to-four family residentia $ 1,82 $ 345,24 27.3% $ 1,85t $ 397,54 29.71%
Multi-family mortgage 2,20¢ 291,39 23.0i 1,90¢ 297,13: 22.2C
Nonresidential real esta 3,05t 325,88! 25.8( 2,84¢ 320,72¢ 23.9i
Construction and lan 937 64,48: 5.1C 1,12C 85,22 6.37
Commercial loan 1,79¢ 87,77 6.9t 1,741 94,30¢ 7.0t
Commercial lease 1,17¢ 144,84 11.47 1,112 139,16 10.4C
Consume 57 3,50¢ 0.2¢ 40 4,04¢ 0.3C
Total $11,05! $1,263,13. 100.0% $10,62: $1,338,14 100.0(%
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Securities

Our investment policy is established by our BodrBioectors. The policy emphasizes safety of theegiment, liquidity requirements, poten
returns, cash flow targets, and consistency withirtterest rate risk management strategy.

At December 31, 2010, our mortgage-backed secsidtiel collateralized mortgage obligations (“CMQ®Tfjected in the following table were
issued by U.S. governmegponsored enterprises and agencies, Freddie Manid-slae and Ginnie Mae, and are obligations wthehfedera
government has affirmed its commitment to suppidie equity securities reflected in the 2008 columrthie table consist of Freddie Mac
preferred stocks. All securities reflected in thblé were classified as available-for-sale at Déxr31, 2010, 2009 and 2008.

We hold the FHLBC common stock to qualify for memgtgp in the Federal Home Loan Bank System aneteligible to borrow funds under
the FHLBC's advance program. The aggregate costioFHLBC common stock as of December 31, 2010%4&s6 million based on its par
value. There is no market for FHLBC common stocke@o our receipt of stock dividends in prior yeansl the amount of our outstanding
FHLBC advances, we owned shares of FHLBC commarksitbDecember 31, 2010 with a par value that v@a8 #illion more than we were
required to own to maintain our membership in teddfal Home Loan Bank System and to be eligibtebtain advances (“excess” or
“voluntary” capital stock).

The following table sets forth the composition, atized cost and fair value of our securities atdages indicated.

At December 31,
2010 2009 2008
Amortized
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands)

Securities:

Certificate of deposit $ 27,76¢ $ 27,766 $ — $ — $ 50C $ 50C

Municipal securitie: 67¢ 70¢ 1,22¢ 1,308 1,73t 1,811

SBA guaranteed loan participation certifica 10z 10t 114 11¢& 131 12t

Equity securities

Freddie Mac — — — — 2,35¢ 352
Total 28,54« 28,58( 1,33¢ 1,41¢ 4,72% 2,78¢

Mortgage-backed Securities:

Mortgage-backed securitie- residentia 41,03¢ 42,43t 33,00¢ 34,057 41,86¢ 41,97¢

CMOs and REMIC:+ residentia 48,26: 49,73: 64,79: 66,65 79,42¢ 80,15«
Total mortgag-backed securitie 89,29¢ 92,167 97,79¢ 100,70¢ 121,29( 122,13(
Total $117,84(  $120,747 $99,13¢ $102,12¢ $126,01: $124,91¢

The fair values of marketable equity securitiesgaeerally determined by quoted prices, in actiegkets, for each specific security. If quoted
market prices are not available for a marketablétggecurity, we determine its fair value basedhmquoted price of a similar security traded
in an active market. The fair values of debt semsriare generally determined by matrix pricingjcliis a mathematical technique widely u

in the industry to value debt securities withouyirey exclusively on quoted prices for the specffecurities, but rather by relying on the
securities’ relationship to other benchmark quatecurities. The fair value of a security is useddtermine the amount of any unrealized
losses that must be reflected in our other commprgfie income and the net book value of our seestiti

We evaluate marketable investment securities vigthificant declines in fair value on a quarterlysisato determine whether they should be
considered other-than-temporarily impaired underant accounting guidance, which generally provithed if a marketable security is in an
unrealized loss position, whether due to generaketaonditions or industry or issuer-specific tast the holder of the securities must assess
whether the impairment is other-than-temporary.
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We also periodically evaluate our FHLBC common ktachich is not a marketable investment security,ifnpairment in accordance with
Statement of Position (SOP) 01-6 (ASC 942-325-86Founting by Certain Entities (Including Entitiedth Trade Receivables) that lend to or
Finance the Activities of Others. SOP 01-6 provitieg when evaluating FHLB stock for impairmeng,ulue should be determined based on
the ultimate recovery of its par value rather thgmmecognizing temporary declines in value.

The FHLBC is subject to a cease and desist ordaeisby the FHFA, in 2007. Among other things,déase and desist order requires the
FHLBC to submit a capital plan to the FHFA, prokshiertain capital stock repurchases and stockmptiens, including certain redemptions
upon membership withdrawal, without the prior apalmf the Director, and prohibits the paymentsliofdends without the prior approval of
the Director. The FHLBC has reported that it hdsnsitted a capital plan to the Director but thdtas not yet been approved. The FHLBC did
not pay any dividends from the third quarter of 2@rough 2010, but in the first quarter of 2014idpa nominal cash dividend at an annual
rate of 10 basis points per share. The FHLBC replairt February 2011 that it had earnings of netrime of $366 million for 2010, comparec
a net loss of $65 million in 2009, and that it @srpliance with its regulatory capital requirements.

We considered the above evidence in accordanceS@th 01-6 and concluded that it is probable tisgtatr value is ultimately recoverable
based on the FHLBC's current compliance with igufatory capital requirements, the net income ith@tported for 2010, its receipt of
approval from the Director to pay a dividend in finst quarter of 2011 and published reports intligathat it is continuing to work with the
FHFA to finalize a capital plan.
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Portfolio Maturities and Yields

The composition and maturities of the securitiedfplio and the mortgage-backed securities porfali December 31, 2010 are summarized in
the following table. Maturities are based on tmaficontractual payment dates, and do not reftexctrhpact of prepayments or early
redemptions that may occur. Municipal securitieddg have not been adjusted to a tax-equivalems testhe amount is immaterial.

More than One Year More than Five Years
One Year or Less through Five Years through Ten Years More than Ten Years Total Securities
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Amortized Amortized Amortized Amortized
Average Average Average Average Amortized Average
Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Fair Value
(Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-
backed
Securities:
Pass-through
securities
Fannie
Mae $ — — % $ 17€ 45(% $ 94¢€ 5.87% $19,35¢ 3.2%86 $ 20,48 3.3 $ 21,57¢
Freddie
Mac — — 98 3.1: 581 2.11 4,54¢ 5.0t 5,22¢ 4.6¢ 5,512
Ginnie
Mae — — — — — — 15,32¢ 2.3 15,32¢ 2.34 15,34«
CMOs and
REMICs — — — — 154 3.11 48,10¢ 4.0¢ 48,26: 4.0¢ 49,73:
Total — — 27€ 4.0z 1,681 4.32 87,33¢ 3.64 89,29¢ 3.6€ 92,167
Securities:
Certificates of
deposit 22,71 0.5¢ 5,054 0.74 — — — — 27,76¢ 0.61 27,76¢
Municipal
securities 16C 4.1¢ 51t 4.47 — — — — 67t 4.3¢ 70¢
SBA guarantee
loan
participation
certificates — — — — 103 1.7t — — 103 1.7 10E
Total 22,87 0.6( 5,56¢ 1.0¢ 103 1.7 — — 28,54« 0.7C 28,58(

Total securitie:  $22,87: 0.6(% $ 5,84 1.22% $ 1,78¢ 4.17% $87,33¢ 3.6% $117,84( 2.9%06 $120,74°

46



Sources of Funds

Deposits. At December 31, 2010, our deposits totaled $1HBBN. Interest-bearing deposits totaled $1.b#Bon and noninterest-bearing
demand deposits totaled $112.5 million. NOW, saviagd money market accounts totaled $742.8 millmminterestearing demand depos

at December 31, 2010 included $6.0 million in intdrchecking accounts, such as accounts for Basthieas checks and money orders. At
December 31, 2010, we had $380.1 million of cexifes of deposit outstanding, of which $271.2 orillhad maturities of one year or less.
Although we have a significant portion of our dess shorter-term certificates of deposit, weideat, based on historical experience and our
current pricing strategy, that we will retain arsfgcant portion of these accounts upon maturity.

We originate deposits predominantly from the axghsre our branch offices are located. We rely anfavorable locations, customer service,
competitive pricing, our Internet Branch and refladeposit services such as cash management tot atrd retain these deposits. While we
accept certificates of deposit in excess of the@&®Heposit insurance limits, we generally do raicit such deposits because they are more
difficult to retain than core deposits and at tiraes more costly than brokered deposits.

The following table sets forth the distributiontofal deposit accounts, by account type, for théope indicated.

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average Average Average Average
Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate Balance Percent Rate

(Dollars in thousands)

Non-interest bearing deman

Retail $ 26,30¢ 2.11% — % $ 28,05¢ 2.3% — % $ 25,617 2.45% — %
Commercial 75,98¢ 6.0¢ — 77,27¢ 6.5 — 79,09¢ 7.5¢ —
Total nor-interest bearin
demanc 102,29: 8.1¢ — 105,33 8.9 — 104,71t 9.9¢ —
Savings deposil 98,33¢ 7.87 0.43 97,181 8.2 0.51 98,17: 9.3t 0.7
Money market accoun 347,25( 27.81 0.94 270,58 22.9¢ 1.6€ 210,85 20.0¢ 2.5¢€
Interes-bearing NOW
accounts 295,72 23.6¢ 0.4¢ 284,58: 24.1: 0.77 311,88t 29.71 1.5t
Certificates of depos 405,18t 32.4¢ 1.7¢ 421,64( 35.7¢ 2.6¢ 324,23¢ 30.8¢ 3.4z
Total deposit: $1,248,791  100.0(% $1,179,331  100.0(% $1,049,86! 100.0(%

The following table sets forth certificates of dejpdy time remaining until maturity at December 2010.

Maturity
3 Months or Over 3to € Over 6 to 12
Over 12
Less Months Months Months Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Certificates of deposit less than $100,! $ 52,47 $51,44¢ $ 75817 $ 63,34¢ $243,08:
Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or m 23,72¢ 26,13: 41,64¢ 45,48¢ 136,99(
Total certificates of depos $ 76,20 $77,58. $117,46. $108,83: $380,07-
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Borrowings. Our borrowings consist primarily of Federal Holrean Bank advances and repurchase agreementsollwifig table sets fort
information concerning balances and interest ratesur borrowings at the dates and for the periodisated.

At or For the Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
(Dollars in thousands)
Balance at end of ye: $23,74¢ $ 50,78¢ $200,35(
Average balance during ye 37,65: 101,78t 110,03¢
Maximum outstanding at any month € 50,38¢ 141,97( 200,35(
Weighted average interest rate at end of 2.0(% 2.44% 1.32%
Average interest rate during ye 2.21% 2.02% 3.3(%

At December 31, 2010, we had the capacity to boanwadditional $240.5 million under our credit fiieis with the FHLBC. Furthermore, we
had unpledged securities that could be used toostippexcess of $71.4 million of additional FHLB®rrowings.

At December 31, 2010, we had a pre-approved ovierifégleral funds borrowing capacity of $28.0 milliand a line of credit with the Federal
Reserve Bank of Chicago for $425,000. At Decemlie2810, there were no outstanding federal fundeolongs and there was no
outstanding balance on the line of credit.

Statement of Operating Results for the Years Ende®ecember 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008
Net Income

Comparison of Year 2010 to 200We recorded a net loss of $4.3 million for the yeatled December 31, 2010, compared to net loss of
$738,000 for the year ended December 31, 2009n&hiwss for 2010 was attributable in substan@at o the combined impact of a $12.1
million provision for loan losses and $7.3 milliar nonperforming asset management expense andtapes of other real estate owned. The
2009 results included an $8.8 million provision limein losses and a $401,000 loss on impairmerga@frgies. The impact of these items in
2009 was partially offset by a $1.3 million gaimthve recognized on the sale of our merchant psieg®perations. Our loss per share of
common stock for year ended December 31, 2010 @22 $er share, compared to $0.04 per share forelieended December 31, 2009.

Comparison of Year 2009 to 2008Ve recorded a net loss of $738,000 for the yeaeeéimkcember 31, 2009, compared to net loss of $19.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2008. Téelass for 2009 was attributable in substantial fsathe combined impact of an $8.8
million provision for loan losses, a $401,000 pag-impairment loss on our Freddie Mac preferredkstpand a $998,000 pre-tax loss that we
recognized upon the subsequent sale of these Sesuhi addition, we recorded a $2.2 million exgercompared to $162,000 in 2008, for
FDIC quarterly and special assessments in 2009altiee combined effect of the FDIC’s increase snqtiarterly assessment rate, the FDIC’s
imposition of a special assessment against alréasdepository institutions and the full utilizatiof the FDIC assessment credits that we
previously had available to offset or reduce FDL@uerly assessments. The impact of these itemparsislly offset by a $1.3 million gain
that we recognized on the sale of our merchantgasing operations in 2009. The net loss for 2008 premarily due to a $35.9 million pre-tax
impairment loss that we recorded on our Freddie praterred stocks. Our loss per share of commarkdto year ended December 31, 2009
was $0.04 per share, compared to a loss of $0.98naee for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Net Interest Income

Comparison of Year 2010 to 200WNet interest income decreased by $1.8 million,.4#3 to $51.8 million for the year ended Decemlder 3
2010, from $53.6 million for the year ended Decengie 2009. Our net interest rate spread remaih8d&% for the years ended

December 31, 2010 and 2009. Our net interest malegreased by 12 basis points to 3.57% for the geded December 31, 2010, from 3.6

for the year ended December 31, 2009. Our averdgeest-earning assets remained at $1.451 biliothe year ended 2010 and 2009, and our
average interest-bearing liabilities increased $&Mon to $1.184 billion in 2010, from $1.176 kdn in 2009.
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Interest income decreased by $9.2 million, or 12.#664.9 million for the year ended December211,0, from $74.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009. The decrease in intaeane resulted primarily from a 64 basis point dase in the average yield on interest
earning assets to 4.47% for the year ended DeceBih@010, from 5.11% for the year ended DecembePB09, and a decrease in average
loans receivable.

Interest income on loans, the most significantiporof interest income, decreased by $8.2 millmm11.9%, to $60.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2010, from $69.2 million forytaar ended December 31, 2009. The average yieldams decreased 10 basis points to
5.34% for the year ended December 31, 2010, fr@#% .for the year ended December 31, 2009. Intaresine on loans and the average
on loans were impacted by a $130.2 million, or ¥).8ecrease in average loans receivable to $1.illihtor the year ended December 31,
2010, from $1.271 billion for the year ended Decentil, 2009, and a net increase of $381,000 inetherve for uncollected interest relatin
loans that were placed on nonaccrual status dtimgear ended December 31, 2010.

Interest income on securities decreased $1.3 mjlbo 27.6%, to $3.5 million for the year ended &maber 31, 2010, from $4.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease ieshiacome on securities was due in substantiatpa $26.6 million, or 23.6%, decre:

in the average balance of securities to $86.0anilfor the year ended December 31, 2010, from ¥lidllion for the year ended

December 31, 2009. The average yield on secudgeseased by 23 basis points to 4.05% for the ¢reded December 31, 2010, from 4.28%
for the year ended December 31, 2009.

The FHLBC did not pay dividends on its common stcR010 or 2009.

Interest income on interebearing deposits in other financial institutionsreg|msed $399,000 to $522,000 for the year endedrbeer 31, 201
from $123,000 for the year ended December 31, ZDB8.increase was primarily due to a $156.7 millimrease in the average balance of our
interest bearing deposits in other financial ingitins to $208.7 million for the year ended Decengie 2010, from $52.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009. The average yield omeenest-bearing deposits in other financial infitus increased one basis point to 0.25%
for the year ended December 31, 2010, from 0.24%htoyear ended December 31, 2009.

Interest expense decreased by $7.4 million, or985t6 $13.2 million for the year ended December2R1L0, from $20.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009, representing a decreasghiinterest expense on deposits and interegtsepon borrowings.

Interest expense on deposits decreased by $6idmitlr 33.3%, to $12.3 million for the year end®ecember 31, 2010, from $18.5 million
the year ended December 31, 2009. The decreastemest expense on deposits was primarily duebt lzasis point decrease in the average
rates paid on deposits, which was partially offset $72.5 million, or 6.8%, net increase in therage balance of deposits. The average ci
deposits was 1.08% for the year ended Decemb&(1, compared to 1.72% for the year ended DeceBhe2009. The average rate paid on
savings accounts decreased eight basis pointd38dfrom 0.51%. On a year over year basis, theagescost of money market accounts
decreased 72 basis points to 0.94%, from 1.66%a\keage cost of NOW accounts decreased 28 basis po 0.49%, from 0.77%, and the
average cost of certificates of deposit decreaddub8is points to 1.78% from 2.69%. The averaganoals of money market accounts incre
$76.7 million, or 28.3%, the average balance of N@wounts increased $11.1 million, or 3.9%, andhtrerage balance of savings accounts
increased $1.2 million, or 1.2% for the year enBedember 31, 2010. These increases were partifdigtdy a decrease in the average
balances of certificates of deposit of $16.5 millior 3.9% for the year ended December 31, 2010.

Interest expense on borrowings decreased by $1lidmir 58.5%, to $853,000 for the year ended delber 31, 2010, from $2.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009. This decreasdueas substantial part to a decrease in the gedralance of borrowings of $64.1
million, or 63.0%, to $37.7 million at December 2010, from $101.8 million at December 31, 200% Tecrease was partially offset by a 25
basis point increase in the average cost of bormgsvio 2.27% for the year ended December 31, Zodf,2.02% for the year ended
December 31, 2009.
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Comparison of Year 2009 to 2008et interest income increased by $1.3 million, @92, to $53.6 million for the year ended Decemlier 3
2009, from $52.3 million for the year ended Decengie 2008. Our net interest rate spread improwedne basis point to 3.36% for the year
ended December 31, 2009, from 3.35% for the yede@mecember 31, 2008. Our net interest marginedsed by 19 basis points to 3.69%
the year ended December 31, 2009, from 3.88% toydar ended December 31, 2008. Our average iEagsng assets increased $102.2
million to $1.451 billion in 2009, from $1.349 bdh in 2008, and our average interest-bearingllias increased $120.6 million to $1.176
billion in 2009, from $1.055 billion in 2008.

Interest income decreased by $3.9 million, or 5.89474.0 million for the year ended December DX from $78.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008. The decrease in inteashie resulted primarily from a 68 basis point dase in the average yield on interest
earning assets to 5.10% for the year ended DeceBih@009, from 5.78% for the year ended DecembePB08. This decrease was partially
offset by a $102.2 million increase in total averagerest-earning assets to $1.451 billion forytaar ended December 31, 2009, from $1.349
billion for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Interest income on loans, the most significantiporof interest income, decreased by $4.8 millmmg.5%, to $69.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009, from $74.0 million for the yeaded December 31, 2008. Interest income on loashshee average yield on loans were
reduced by a net increase of $1.7 million in treeree for uncollected interest that we establighetbans that were placed on nonaccrual
status during the year ended December 31, 2008.ifittiease accounts for 34.4% of the decreasédrest income from loans. In addition, the
average yield on loans decreased 52 basis poiBtd486 for the year ended December 31, 2009, fr@®% for the year ended December 31,
2008. These decreases were partially offset bydeb®aillion, or 2.4%, increase in the average bedaof loans outstanding to $1.271 billion
the year ended December 31, 2009, from $1.242biflbr the year ended December 31, 2008.

Interest income on securities increased $955,0024 3%, to $4.8 million for the year ended Decengie 2009, from $3.9 million for the ye
ended December 31, 2008. The increase in intarestrie on securities resulted primarily from a $28illion, or 35.0%, increase in the
average balance of securities to $112.7 milliortfieryear ended December 31, 2009, from $83.5aniflor the year ended December 31,
2008. This increase was partially offset by a 3&idpoint decrease in the average yield on seesititi 4.28% for the year ended December 31,
2009, from 4.63% for the year ended December 30820

The FHLBC did not pay dividends on its common sticR009 or 2008.

Interest income on interest-bearing deposits iemofimancial institutions increased $7,000, or 6,8845123,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2009, from $116,000 for the year efskmEmber 31, 2008. The increase was primarilytd@e$43.5 million increase in the
average balance of our interest bearing depos#52d million for the year ended December 31, 26@8n $8.5 million for 2008. This
increase was partially offset by a decrease oflEk3s points in the average yield on our interestring deposits to 0.24% for the year ended
December 31, 2009, from 1.37% for the year endezkBder 31, 2008.

Interest expense decreased by $5.1 million, or%9t6 $20.6 million for the year ended DecemberZ2D9, from $25.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2008. The decrease was duertaded interest expense on deposits and borrowings

Interest expense on deposits decreased by $3i6mitir 16.0%, to $18.5 million for the year end@ecember 31, 2009, from $22.0 million
the year ended December 31, 2008. The decreasteiest expense on deposits was primarily duestb laasis point decrease in the average
rates paid on deposits, partially offset by a $828illion, or 13.6%, net increase in the averadarze of deposits. The average cost of def
was 1.72% for the year ended December 31, 2009 amad to 2.33% for the year ended December 31,.Z0G8average rate on savings
accounts decreased 22 basis points to 0.51% fré8%0.0n a year over year basis, the average cosbpnéy market accounts decreased 90
basis points to 1.66%, from 2.56%, the average @odsOW accounts decreased 78 basis points to Q.7o¥ 1.55%, and the average cost of
certificates of deposit decreased 73 basis pan2s&9% from 3.42%. The average balances of morskehaccounts increased $59.7 million,
or 28.3%, and the average balance of certificateeposit increased $97.4 million, or 30.0%, far ftear ended December 31, 2009. These
increases were partially offset by a decreasedratierage balances of NOW accounts of $27.3 mjltoi8.8%, and a decrease in the average
balances of savings accounts of $984,000, or 1d¥%hé year ended December 31, 2009.
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Interest expense on borrowings decreased by $1li6mbr 43.4%, to $2.1 million for the year endedcember 31, 2009, from $3.6 million
for the year ended December 31, 2008. This decreasalue in substantial part to a 128 basis p@otahse in the average cost of such
borrowings to 2.02% for the year ended DecembeBQ9, from 3.30% for the year ended December @@82and a decrease in the average
balance of borrowings of $8.3 million, or 7.5% %b01.8 million at December 31, 2009, from $110.0iom at December 31, 2008.
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Average Balance Sheets

The following table sets forth average balance tshewerage yields and costs, and certain otherrirdtion for the periods indicated. No tax-
equivalent yield adjustments were made, as thetedfethese adjustments would not be material. Agerbalances are daily average balances.
Nonaccrual loans are included in the computatioaverage balances, but have been reflected iratie &s loans carrying a zero yield. ~
yields set forth below include the effect of deéelfees and expenses, discounts and premiums,gsgrelccounting adjustments that
amortized or accreted to interest income or expense

Years Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
Average Average Average
Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate

(Dollars in thousands)

Interest-earning Assets:

Loans $1,140,86!  $60,92¢ 5306 $1,271,02. $69,17( 5.4 $1,241,51i $73,98: 5.9€%
Securities 86,03: 3,48¢ 4.0t 112,64! 4,81¢ 4.2¢ 83,45t 3,861 4.6%
Stock in FHLBC 15,59¢ — — 15,59¢ — — 15,59¢ — —
Other 208,74 522 0.2t 52,03: 128 0.24 8,48 11€ 1.37
Total interest-earning
asset: 1,451,23 64,93¢ 4.47 1,451,29 74,10¢ 5.11 1,349,05! 77,96( 5.7¢
Noninteres-earning asse! 111,31 115,87¢ 113,95
Total asset $1,562,55. $1,567,17! $1,463,01!
Interest-bearing
Liabilities:
Savings deposil $ 98,33¢ 421 04: $ 97,181 49t 051 $ 98,17 71F 0.72
Money market accoun 347,25( 3,252 0.94 270,58: 4,50 1.6€ 210,85’ 5,391 2.5¢
NOW account: 295,72 1,441 0.4¢ 284,58: 2,17¢ 0.77 311,88¢ 4,84« 1.5
Certificates of depos 405,18t 7,21¢ 1.7¢ 421,64( 11,32¢ 2.6¢ 324,23 11,07% 3.42
Total deposit: 1,146,49 12,33: 1.0¢ 1,073,99 18,50! 1.72 945,15: 22,03: 2.3
Borrowings 37,65 852 2.27 101,78! 2,05¢ 2.0z 110,03 3,63¢ 3.3C
Total interes-bearing
liabilities 1,184,14 13,18¢ 1.11 1,175,77 20,557 1.7 1,055,19: 25,66" 2.4%
Noninteres-bearing deposi 102,29: 105,33° 104,71¢
Noninteres-bearing
liabilities 14,00: 19,28¢ 19,447
Total liabilities 1,300,441 1,300,40: 1,179,35!
Equity 262,10 266,77. 283,66(
Total liabilities and
equity $1,562,55. $1,567,17! $1,463,01!
Net interest incom $51,75( $53,55: $52,29:
Net interest rate spread ( 3.36% 3.36% 3.35%
Net interes-earning asse!
2 $ 267,08t $ 275,52 $ 293,86t
Net interest margin (¢ 3.5 3.6%% 3.88%

Ratio of interest-earning
assets to interest-bearir
liabilities 122.5(% 123.4% 127.8"%

(1) Netinterest rate spread represents the differbateeen the yield on average inte-earning assets and the cost of average interest-
bearing liabilities

(2) Netinteres-earning assets represents total int-earning assets less total inte-bearing liabilities

(3) Netinterest margin represents net interest incdivided by average total inter-earning asset:
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table presents the dollar amountltdrrges in interest income and interest expengdomajor categories of our interestening
assets and interest-bearing liabilities. Informai®provided for each category of interest-earrisgets and interest-bearing liabilities with
respect to changes attributable to changes in v@l{iie., changes in average balances multipliethéyrior-period average rate), and changes
attributable to rate (i.e., changes in averagematitiplied by prior-period average balances). porposes of this table, changes attributable to
both rate and volume that cannot be segregatedbdeereallocated proportionately to the change dweltume and the change due to rate.

Years Ended December 31

2010 vs. 2009 2009 vs. 2008
Increase (Decrease) Due t In-lc;(r)gse Increase (Decrease) Due t In-cl;cr)ézlse
Volume Rate (Decrease Volume Rate (Decrease
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets
Loans $ (6,989 $ (1,255 $(8,249) $ 1,72t $ (6,53)) $(4,819
Securities (1,082 (24¢) (1,329 1,26¢ (311) 95¢
Stock in FHLBC — — — — — —
Other 394 5 39¢ 171 (164) 7
Total interes-earning asse! (7,677 (1,496 (9,179 3,162 (7,019 (3,857
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings deposil 6 (80) (74) @) (213 (220
Money market accoun 1,04t (2,296 (1,257 1,28¢ (2,187 (8949)
NOW account: 83 (820) (737) (392 (2,274 (2,66¢€)
Certificates of depos (42%) (3,68)) (4,10€) 2,917 (2,669 24¢
Borrowings (1,43)) 22¢ (1,209 (255) (1,329 (1,57¢)
Total interes-bearing liabilities (722 (6,649 (7,37)) 3,541 (8,657) (5,110
Change in net interest incor $ (6,955 $ 515¢ $(1,807) $ (385 $ 1,644 $ 1,25¢

Provision for Loan Losses

We establish provisions for loan losses, whichcir@rged to operations in order to maintain thenadloce for loan losses at a level we consider
necessary to absorb probable incurred credit ldase loan portfolio. In determining the leveltbk allowance for loan losses, we consider
past and current loss experience, evaluationsabiestate collateral, current economic conditimedyme and type of lending, adverse situat
that may affect a borrower’s ability to repay arl@nd the levels of nonperforming and other classibans. The amount of the allowance is
based on estimates and the ultimate losses mayfreamnysuch estimates as more information becomasadole or events change. We asses
allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basisraakie provisions for loan losses in order to mamtaée allowance.

Comparison of Year 2010 to 200%e recorded a provision for loan losses of $12 lionifor the year ended December 31, 2010, contpare
to a provision for loan losses of $8.8 million fbe year ended December 31, 2009. The 2010 provisidoan losses reflects the combined
impact of a $4.4 million increase in the speciftetipn of the allowance for loan losses that wealte to impaired loans and $8.5 million in
charge-offs, which were partially offset by a $70 decrease in the general portion of the alloedacloan losses.

Net loan charc-offs for 2010 were $8.5 million, or 0.75% of avgedoans, compared to $4.9 million, or 0.39% ofrage loans, in 2009. Our
allowance for loan losses was $22.2 million, of7200f total loans, at December 31, 2010, comparyékd 8.6 million, or 1.51% of total loans,
at December 31, 2009. The allowance for loan losggesented 48.5% of nonperforming loans at Deeerdb, 2010. To the best of our
knowledge, we have recorded all losses that ate frobable and reasonable to estimate for eachtieg@eriod.
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Comparison of Year 2009 to 2008Ve recorded a provision for loan losses of $8.8ionilfor the year ended December 31, 2009, compiared
a provision for loan losses of $5.1 million for tywar ended December 31, 2008. The 2009 provisioloén losses reflects a $2.4 million
increase in the specific portion of the allowanzeldan losses that we allocate to impaired loarfsl.5 million increase in the general portion
of the allowance for loan losses, and $4.9 miliionet charge-offs. We increased the general podfaghe allowance by $1.5 million based on
the continued deterioration in national and loacar®mic risk factors included in our model for detaing the proper level of general reser

Net loan charc-offs for 2009 were $4.9 million, or 0.39% of avgedoans, compared to $1.4 million, or 0.11% ofrage loans, in 2008. Our
allowance for loan losses was $18.6 million, orl¥%5of total loans, at December 31, 2009, comparyé&d 4.7 million, or 1.15% of total loans,
at December 31, 2008. The allowance for loan losggesented 37.6% of nonperforming loans at Deeerdb, 2009. To the best of our
knowledge, we have recorded all losses that ate fratbable and reasonable to estimate for eachitieg@eriod.

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31 Change
2010 2009 2008 2010/200 2009/2008
(Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest Income:

Deposit service charges and fi $ 3,02( $ 3,36: $ 3,571 $ (343 $ (209
Other fee incom: 1,86¢ 1,81¢ 1,944 52 (128)
Insurance commissions and annuities inct 77E 71t 794 6C (79
Gain on sale of loans, n 501 69¢ 11¢ (19¢) 581
Gain (loss) on sales of securit 31 (988 1,38t 1,01¢ (2,377
Gain on unredeemed VISA sto — — 1,24(C — (1,240
Gain (loss) on disposition of premises and equigr (19 (40) (302) 21 262
Loan servicing fee 604 653 771 (49 (118)
Amortization and impairment of servicing ass (475) (44¢€) (524) (29) 78
Earnings (loss) on bank owned life insura 43C (20) 58€ 45(C (60€)
Other 392 1,48 83t (1,094 652

Total noninterest incom $7,12¢ $7,23¢ $10,41¢ $(111 $(3,179

Comparison of Year 2010 to 200®ur noninterest income decreased by $111,000 tbr$ilion for the year ended December 31, 2010nfro
$7.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2@%. noninterest income for 2010 included $31,008 ga the sale of securities, compare
$988,000 pre-tax loss relating to the sale of aed#lie Mac preferred stocks in 2009. Additionatdes affecting the change in noninterest
income from year-to-year included a $343,000, 02%) decrease in deposit service charges andde¥&@ million, from $3.4 million for
2009. Income from insurance commissions and armsuiticreased by $60,000, or 8.4%, to $775,00thyear ended December 31, 2010,
compared to $715,000 for 2009. Gains on the sdleanfs decreased by $198,000, or 28.3%, to $501d@®0pared to $699,000 for 2009. We
recognized a net loss of $19,000 on the disposigfgremises and equipment during 2010, comparednet loss of $40,000 in 2009. Loan
servicing fees decreased $49,000, or 7.5%, to $604pr the year ended December 31, 2010, from $883for the year ended December 31,
2009. Mortgage servicing rights amortization exgeinsreased $67,000 or 13.9%, to $549,000 for &z gnded December 31, 2010,
compared to $482,000 for 2009. We recorded a resecovery of $74,000 on our mortgage servicingtsgn 2010, compared to a reserve
recovery of $36,000 on our mortgage servicing 8ght2009. Bank-owned life insurance produced egshof $430,000 for 2010, compared to
a loss of $20,000 for 2009. Other income for 20@9uded a $1.3 million gain on the sale of our rhart processing operations.

Comparison of Year 2009 to 200®ur noninterest income decreased by $3.2 millioa@ million for the year ended December 31, 2009,
from $10.4 million for the year ended DecemberZ108. Our noninterest income for 2009 included 883300 pre-tax loss relating to the sale
of our Freddie Mac preferred stocks, compared t6 $llion in pre-tax gains relating to the redeehamd unredeemed shares of Visa, Inc.
Class B common stock that were allocated to ukérirtitial public offering that Visa, Inc. condudta March of 2008. Additional factors
affecting the change in noninterest income fronryeayear included a $208,000, or 5.8%, decreaskeposit service charges and fees to $3.3
million, from $3.6 million for 2008. Other fee ino® decreased $128,000, or 6.6%, to $1.8 milliompared to $1.9 million for 2008. Income
from insurance commissions and annuities decreag&d9,000, or 10.0%, to $715,000 for the year dridecember 31, 2009, compared to
$794,000 for 2008, due to decreased sales act@ains on the sale of loans increased by $581®@6%9,000, compared to $118,000 for
2008. We recognized a net loss of $40,000 on thgodition of premises and equipment during 2008ypaoed to a net loss of $302,000 in
2008. Loan servicing fees decreased $118,000,.824,50 $653,000 for the year ended December 319 ,Z0om $771,000 for 2008. Mortga
servicing rights amortization expense increasedBor 16.4%, to $482,000 for the year ended Déeerd1, 2009, compared to $414,00(
2008. We recorded a reserve recovery of $36,008uomortgage servicing rights in 2009, compared $110,000 reserve that we recordec
2008. Bank-owned life insurance produced a losg26f000 for 2009, compared to income of $586,00@008, due to our decision to
temporarily move investable policy funds into a lgiglding money market sub-account at the end 0B28s a means of protecting the
underlying value of the policy. Other income tota$1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2@08pared to $835,000 for 2008, due
primarily to the recording of a $1.3 million gain the sale of our merchant processing operatiotigifiourth quarter of 2009.
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Noninterest Expense

Years Ended December 31, Change
2010 2009 2008 2010/200! 2009/200¢
(Dollars in thousands)

Noninterest Expense:

Compensation and benef $26,33¢  $29,04¢ $30,53t $(2,707) $ (1,489
Office occupancy and equipme 6,38( 6,84t 6,87¢ (465) (29
Advertising and public relatior 1,277 1,321 1,361 (44) (40)
Information technolog 3,73: 3,63 3,66% 96 (25)
Supplies, telephone and post: 1,59¢ 1,81¢ 2,07C (223 (25))
Amortization of intangible: 1,59t 1,69( 1,78¢ (95) (99)
Nonperforming asset managem 3,34z 77C — 2,572 77C
Operations of other real estate owi 3,972 1,27: 434 2,69¢ 83¢
Loss on impairment of securiti — 401 35,91¢ (401) (35,519
Loss on early extinguishment of borrowir — — 1,97¢ — (1,975
FDIC insurance premiurr 2,12¢ 2,22t 162 (99 2,06:
Other 3,48¢ 3,70¢ 4,28( (215) (576)

Total noninterest expen: $53,84¢ $52,73. $89,05¢ $ 1,118  $(36,32))

Comparison of Year 2010 to 200%or the year ended December 31, 2010, nonintexpsinge increased by $1.1 million, or 2.1%, to $53.8
million, from $52.7 million for the year ended Deuler 31, 2009. Noninterest expense for 2010 inc @3 million in expenses for
nonperforming asset management and operationhef ceal estate owned. Noninterest expense for R@d@ded a $401,000 pre-tax
impairment loss that we recorded on our holdingSrefidie Mac preferred stocks. Additional factdfecting the change in noninterest
expense from year-tgear included a $2.7 million, or 9.3%, decreaseompensation expense to $26.3 million for the weated December 3
2010, from $29.0 million for the year ended Decen8ie 2009. The decrease was due in part to a@ee@ 44 full-time equivalent
employees from 372 in 2009 to 328 in 2010. SupptiEephone and postage expenses decreased $22%;A@03%, to $1.6 million, and
intangible amortization expense decreased by $95/06t expenses for nonperforming asset manageiore2®10 included legal expenses of
$876,000, receiver fees of $372,000, and realetats and insurance of $1.9 million. Net expefwesperations of other real estate owned
totaled $4.0 million for 2010, compared to $1.3liwil for the same period in 2009. Net expensesparations of other real estate owned
included $2.4 million in write-downs on OREO andL$/400 of losses upon sale of OREO.

Comparison of Year 2009 to 200&or the year ended December 31, 2009, nonintexpsinge decreased by $36.3 million, or 40.8%, ta®52
million, from $89.1 million for the year ended Dedeer 31, 2008. Noninterest expense for 2008 incw&d$35.9 million pre-tax impairment
loss that we recorded on our holdings of Freddie ptaferred stocks and a $2.0 million pre-tax espehat we recorded in connection with
the prepayment of a $25 million FHLBC term advanfedditional factors affecting the change in noniett expense from year-to-year
included a $1.5 million, or 4.9%, decrease in consp¢ion expense to $29.0 million for the year eridedember 31, 2009, from $30.5 million
for the year ended December 31, 2008. The decreaselue in part to a decrease of 21 full-time egjeivt employees from 393 in 2008 to 372
in 2009, resulting from the implementation of fuoogl staffing reviews. Expense relating to equiased compensation and benefits totaled
$3.0 million in 2009, compared to $4.6 million chgi2008. Supplies, telephone and postage expepsesaged $251,000, or 12.1%, to $1.8
million, and intangible amortization expense desesbby $94,000. These expense reductions weralpadifset by an increase in our net
expense from other real estate owned operatiof%.®million for the year ended December 31, 2@@%pared to $434,000 for 2008. Net
operations from other real estate owned for theectiryear included $973,000 in write-downs or lssse other real estate owned, compared to
$289,000 in write-downs or losses in 2008. Our espdor FDIC deposit insurance increased to $2lllomiduring the year ended

December 31, 2009, compared to $162,000 duringdhee period of 2008. The increase in our expendeDtC deposit insurance was due to
the combined effect of the FDIC’s increase in itaderly assessment rate, the FDIC’s impositioa sfpecial assessment against all insured
depository institutions and the full utilization thie FDIC assessment credits that we previouslyaladable to offset or reduce FDIC quarterly
assessments. Other expenses increased by $19dr@DB%, to $4.5 million in 2009.
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Income Tax Benefit

Comparison of Year 2010 to 200%or the year ended December 31, 2010, we recoml@tame tax benefit of $2.7 million, compared to a
income tax benefit of $13,000 for the year endeddb@ber 31, 2009. The effective tax rates were 38.84d 1.73% for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. For 2B@difference between the GAAP basis (fair maviatie at the date of grant) and the tax
basis (fair market value at the date of vestingdafity-based compensation granted in prior yesdtaged our income tax benefit.

Comparison of Year 2009 to 200&or the year ended December 31, 2009, we recoml@tame tax benefit of $13,000, compared to an
income tax benefit of $12.0 million for the yeaded December 31, 2008. For 2009, the differenoadrt the GAAP basis (fair market value
at the date of grant) and the tax basis (fair mar&kie at the date of vesting) of equity-based pansation granted in prior years reduced our
income tax benefit. The income tax benefit for 20@& primarily due to the impairment loss that eeorded on our Freddie Mac preferred
stocks.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Companys financial statements and the related notes hee prepared in accordance with accounting priesigenerally accepted in
United States of America (“GAAP”). GAAP generallguires the measurement of financial position gretating results in terms of historical
dollars without considering changes in the relafivechasing power of money over time due to inflatiThe impact of inflation, if any, is
reflected in the increased cost of our operatitimike industrial companies, our assets and ligedliare primarily monetary in nature. As a
result, changes in market interest rates haveaeagreanpact on performance than the effects o&tidh.

Management of Interest Rate Risk

Qualitative AnalysisA significant form of market risk is interest ratek. Interest rate risk results from timing digeces in the maturity or
repricing of our assets, liabilities and off balarsheet contracts.g., forward loan commitments), the effect of loan psgpants and deposit
withdrawals, the difference in the behavior of lexgdand funding rates arising from the use of défe indices and “yield curve risk” arising
from changing rate relationships across the spectiumaturities for constant or variable credikrisvestments. In addition to directly
affecting net interest income, changes in markerast rates can also affect the amount of new doiginations, the ability of borrowers to
repay variable rate loans, the volume of loan pyepnts and refinancings, the carrying value of #twveent securities classified as available-
for-sale and the flow and mix of deposits.

The general objective of our interest rate risk agament is to determine the appropriate levels#f given our business strategy and then
manage that risk in a manner that is consistertt auitr policy to reduce, to the extent possible ekjgosure of our net interest income to
changes in market interest rates. Our Asset/Lighilianagement Committee (“ALCQO”), which consistsceftain members of senior
management, evaluates the interest rate risk inhareertain assets and liabilities, our operagngironment and capital and liquidity
requirements, and modifies our lending, investing deposit gathering strategies accordingly. Thar8of Directors’ Asset/Liability
Management Committee then reviews the ALCO’s aitiviand strategies, the effect of those stratemiesur net interest margin, and the
effect that changes in market interest rates whalge on the economic value of our loan and seearjiortfolios as well as the intrinsic valu
our deposits and borrowings, and reports to tHeBfodrd of Directors.
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We actively evaluate interest rate risk in conrmttvith our lending, investing and deposit actestiln an effort to better manage interest-rate
risk, we have de-emphasized the origination ofdessial mortgage loans, and have increased our &sigphn the origination of nonresidential
real estate loans, multi-family mortgage loans, c@rcial loans and commercial leases. In additiepedding on market interest rates and our
capital and liquidity position, we generally sdll@ a portion of our longer-term, fixed-rate rsntial loans, usually on a servicing-retained
basis. Further, we primarily invest in shorter-diara securities, which generally have lower yietdsnpared to longer-term investments.
Shortening the average maturity of our interestiearassets by increasing our investments in shteten loans and securities, as well as loans
with variable rates of interest, helps to bettetalnahe maturities and interest rates of our assaddiabilities, thereby reducing the exposure of
our net interest income to changes in market isteeges. Finally, we have classified all of owrdstment portfolio as available-feale so as
provide flexibility in liquidity management.

We utilize a combination of analyses to monitor Baak’s exposure to changes in interest rates.etbaomic value of equity analysis is a
model that estimates the change in net portfolloes€'NPV”) over a range of interest rate scenarfdBYV is the discounted present value of
expected cash flows from assets, liabilities ariebafance sheet contracts. In calculating chang®HV, we assume estimated loan
prepayment rates, reinvestment rates and depasiydates that seem most likely based on histoexaérience during prior interest rate
changes.

Our net interest income analysis utilizes the datéved from the dynamic GAP analysis, describddweand applies several additional
elements, including actual interest rate indicabmargins, contractual limitations such as interat floors and caps and the U.S. Treasury
yield curve as of the balance sheet date. In amditve apply consistent parallel yield curve shiiftsboth directions) to determine possi
changes in net interest income if the theoretiggtycurve shifts occurred instantaneously. Nedriest income analysis also adjusts the dyn
GAP repricing analysis based on changes in prepalyrates resulting from the parallel yield curvétsh

Our dynamic GAP analysis determines the relatiartze between the repricing of assets and liadslitiver multiple periods of time (ranging
from overnight to five years). Dynamic GAP analyisisludes expected cash flows from loans and mgedaacked securities, applying
prepayment rates based on the differential betwleourrent interest rate and the market intesgstfor each loan and security type. This
analysis identifies mismatches in the timing ofeasad liability repricing but does not necessapilgvide an accurate indicator of interest rate
risk because it omits the factors incorporated theonet interest income analysis.

Quantitative AnalysisThe following table sets forth, as of DecemberZ110, the estimated changes in the Bank’s NPV anhéhterest
income that would result from the designated irtstagous parallel shift in the U.S. Treasury yieldve. Computations of prospective effect
hypothetical interest rate changes are based ormus assumptions including relative levels of retinkterest rates, loan prepayments and
deposit decay, and should not be relied upon asdtide of actual results.

Increase (decrease) in Estimate

Estimated Increase in NPV Net Interest Income
Change in Interest Rates (basis points Amount Percent Amount Percent
+400 $ 28,87 12.39% $ (687 (1.45)%
+300 22,427 9.5¢ (30€) (0.64)
+200 16,367 6.9¢ (97) (0.20)
+100 8,83¢ 3.7 27% 0.5¢

0 — — — —

The Company has opted not to include an estimata flecrease in rates at December 31, 2010 asshks are not relevant given the current
targeted fed funds rate of the Federal Open Ma&ketmittee. The table set forth above indicatesah&tecember 31, 2010, in the event of an
immediate 200 basis point increase in interessrdbe Bank would be expected to experience a 6ii8féase in NPV and a $97,000 decrease
in net interest income. This data does not refi@gt actions that we may undertake in responseang#s in interest rates, such as changes in
rates paid on certain deposit accounts based ahdompetitive factors, which could reduce the atimpact on NPV and net interest income,
if any.
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Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodolagd in the above interest rate risk measuremitodeling changes in NPV and net
interest income requires that we make certain agans that may or may not reflect the manner inciactual yields and costs respond to
changes in market interest rates. The NPV andntetest income table presented above assume$éhabmposition of our interest-rate-
sensitive assets and liabilities existing at thgimi@ng of a period remains constant over the gebeing measured and, accordingly, the data
does not reflect any actions that we may underitakesponse to changes in interest rates, suchaagjes in rates paid on certain deposit
accounts based on local competitive factors. Thie talso assumes that a particular change in Bitestes is reflected uniformly across the
yield curve regardless of the duration to matusitghe repricing characteristics of specific assets liabilities. Accordingly, although the NF
and net interest income table provides an indicadioour sensitivity to interest rate changes padicular point in time, such measurements
not intended to and do not provide a precise fatechthe effect of changes in market interestsrate our net interest income and will differ
from actual results.

Liquidity Management

Liquidity Management- Bank. The overall objective of our liquidity managemesntoé ensure the availability of sufficient cashdarno meet
all financial commitments and to take advantagmeéstment opportunities. We manage liquidity idearto meet deposit withdrawals on
demand or at contractual maturity, to repay borngsias they mature, and to fund new loans and imesgs as opportunities arise.

Our primary sources of funds are deposits, prin@pd interest payments on loans and securitiek, tara lesser extent, wholesale borrowings,
the proceeds from maturing securities and shont-tavestments, and the proceeds from the salesaotland securities. The scheduled
amortization of loans and securities, as well as@eds from borrowings, are predictable sourcdésrafs. Other funding sources, however,
such as deposit inflows, mortgage prepayments arthage loan sales are greatly influenced by manketest rates, economic conditions and
competition.

Our cash flows are derived from operating actigitiavesting activities and financing activitiesraported in the Consolidated Statements of
Cash Flows in our Consolidated Financial Statementis primary investing activities are the origioatfor investment or sale of one-to-four
family residential mortgage loans, the originatfioninvestment of multi-family mortgage, nonresitlehreal estate, commercial leases,
construction and land, and commercial loans angbtinehase of investment securities and mortgagkeobsecurities. During the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 our loans origilfatr sale totaled $19.7 million, $40.8 millionda$23.4 million, respectively. During the
years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008pans briginated for investment totaled $676.4 omlli$796.3 million and $818.7 millio
respectively. Purchases of loans totaled $2.7 onill$$19.4 million and $12.7 million for the yeargded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. Purchases of securities totaled $50lln and $103.0 million for the years ended Beaber 31, 2010 and 2008, respectively.
There were no purchases of securities in 2009.

These activities were funded primarily by principgpayments on loans and securities, and the S&lams and securities. During the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, prinapalyments on loans totaled $817.4 million, $852ltiam and $810.6 million,
respectively. During the years ended December @10,22009 and 2008, principal repayments on séesiibtaled $30.1 million, $22.7 million
and $9.1 million, respectively. During the yeardeh December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, proceedsmraturities and sales of securities
totaled $1.8 million, $2.8 million and $17.5 milliprespectively. During the years ended Decembg2@10, 2009 and 2008, the proceeds f
the sale of loans totaled $17.5 million, $42.4 imilland $22.8 million, respectively.

Loan origination commitments totaled $16.7 milli@nDecember 31, 2010, and consisted of $14.3 mibiofixed-rate loans and $2.4 million
of adjustable-rate loans. Unused lines of creditstandby letters of credit granted to customeeded $138.2 million and $1.7 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2010. At DecembeRB10, commitments to sell mortgages totaled $3lzom

Deposit flows are generally affected by the leviaharket interest rates, the interest rates andrdérms and conditions on deposit products
offered by our banking competitors, and other fexctéVe had a net deposit increase of $2.0 mill@rtlie year ended December 31, 2010,
compared to a net increase of $163.5 million ferybar ended December 31, 2009 and net outflo®8.8fmillion for the year ended
December 31, 2008. At times during recent periagshave not actively competed for higher cost dig@sounts, including certificates of
deposit, choosing instead to fund loan growth ftmloan and lease repayments. Certificates ofsiefiat are scheduled to mature in one
year or less from December 31, 2010 totaled $2ilibn. Based upon prior experience and our curpeiting strategy, we believe that
will retain a significant portion of these depositson their maturities.
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We anticipate that we will have sufficient fundsaéable to meet current loan commitments and lofasredit and maturing certificates of
deposit that are not renewed or extended. We ginezenain fully invested and utilize additionalwsoes of funds through FHLBC advances,
of which $16.0 million were outstanding at Decem®&r2010. At December 31, 2010 we had the aldityorrow an additional $240.5 milli
under our credit facilities with the FHLBC. Furthesre, we have unpledged securities that could bd tssupport borrowings in excess of
$71.4 million. Finally, at December 31, 2010 we laadilable pre-approved overnight federal fundsdweing lines of $28.0 million and a line
of credit available with the Federal Reserve Bah&licago of $425,000. At December 31, 2010, theags no outstanding balance on these
credit lines.

We minimize the funds required to originate ondetor family residential mortgage loans in two waWée sell in the secondary market
virtually all of our eligible fixed-rate one-to-fodiamily residential mortgage loans. From timeitod, we also securitize the conforming
adjustable-rate one-to-four family residential gage loans that we originate and hold the secsinitie receive in exchange. The resulting
mortgage-backed securities that we retain on olamnica sheet can be sold more readily to meet quidlity or interest rate management needs.
Because the securities carry a lower risk-weightivegn the underlying loans, the securitizatione &sver our regulatory capital requirements.
We did not securitize any loans during 2010 and200

Liquidity Management- Company.The liquidity needs of the Company on an unconstdid basis consist primarily of operating expenses,
dividends to stockholders and stock repurchases pfimary sources of liquidity for the Company emtty are $16.4 million of cash and cash
equivalents and periodic cash dividends from thekBa

Under the rules of the OTS, the Bank is not peeditb pay dividends on its capital stock to the @any, its sole stockholder, if the dividend
would reduce the Bank’s stockholder’s equity betbe amount of the liquidation account establisimedonnection with the Company’s
mutual-to-stock conversion. The Bank may pay dinttewithout the approval of the OTS only if the Baneets its applicable regulatory
capital requirements before and after the paymetiteodividends and its total dividends do not extés net income to date over the calendar
year in which the dividend is paid plus retainetineome over the preceding two years. The OT Sdisasetion to prohibit permissible capi
distributions on general safety and soundness gi®oand must be given 30 days advance notice ofpital distributions from the Bank to the
Company, including dividends.

During 2010, we used $3.1 million of existing castd cash equivalents to repurchase shares of aunoa stock and $6.0 million of existing
cash and cash equivalents to pay cash dividenalsrtstockholders.

As of December 31, 2010, we were not aware of amop trends, events or uncertainties that had oe weasonably likely to have a material
impact on our liquidity. As of December 31, 201& kad no other material commitments for capitakexfitures.

Capital Management

Capital Management - BankThe overall objectives of our capital managemeattarensure the availability of sufficient capialsupport loar
deposit and other asset and liability growth opyaities and to maintain capital to absorb unforadesses or write-downs that are inherent in
the business risks associated within the bankidgstry. We seek to balance the need for highetaldpvels to address such unforeseen risks
and the goal to achieve an adequate return orggiieatinvested by our stockholders.

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requirate@dministered by the federal banking agenciaidurfé to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory, arssindy additional discretionary, actions by the Qf&, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on the Barkfinancial statements. Under capital adequacysjinies and the regulatory framework for prompt eoctive action
the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines ifnatlve quantitative measures of the Bank’s asdetsilities, and certain off-balance-sheet
items as calculated under regulatory accountingtjpes. The Banlg capital amounts and classification are also stibjequalitative judgmen
by regulators about components, risk weightingd, @her factors.

The prompt corrective action regulations provide ftlassifications, including well capitalized, gdately capitalized, undercapitalized,
significantly undercapitalized, and critically umdapitalized, although these terms are not useepiesent overall financial condition.
Adequately capitalized institutions require regoifgtapproval to accept brokered deposits. If unalgitalized, a financial institution’s capital
distributions, asset growth and expansion are dichiand for the submission of a capital restorasaequired.
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At year-end, actual capital ratios and minimum megglratios for the Bank were:

Minimum Minimum Required to Be
Required for
Well Capitalized Under

Capital Prompt Corrective Action
Adequacy
Actual Ratio Purposes Provisions

December 31, 201
Total capital (to ris-weighted asset: 18.3¢% 8.0(% 10.00%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risweighted asset: 17.2C 4.0C 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total ass 12.4¢ 4.0C 5.0C
December 31, 200
Total capital (to ris-weighted asset: 16.4(% 8.0(% 10.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to ri-weighted asset: 15.31 4.0C 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total ass 12.4¢ 4.0C 5.0C

See Note 11 — “Regulatory Matters” in our ConsdbdaFinancial Statements for a reconciliation &f Bank’s equity under GAAP to
regulatory capital.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the OTS categgbilze Bank as well capitalized under the regwair@mework for prompt corrective
action. There are no conditions or events sinceemmtifications that management believes haveggththe institution’s capitalization
category.

Capital Management - Companydn June 23, 2005, the Company completed its mutusiock conversion and sold 24,466,250 shares of
common stock in a subscription offering at $10.80$hare and raised $240.3 million in offering peds, net of offering expenses. The
Company contributed $120.9 million of the net pexdteto the Bank, paid off $30 million of term bawings, loaned $19.6 million to our ESt
and retained the remaining net proceeds of $72amilAs a result of the offering, the Company hagital levels substantially above those
required to support the current size and risk peaff the Company and its subsidiary, the Bank.

Total stockholderséquity totaled $253.3 million at December 31, 2Qdd@mpared to $263.6 million at December 31, 200% decrease in to
stockholders’ equity was primarily due to the condal impact of our repurchase of 356,411 sharesiof@mmon stock during 2010 at a total
cost of $3.1 million, and our declaration and pagte# cash dividends totaling $5.9 million, the 34nillion net loss that we recorded for 2010
and a $50,000 decrease accumulated other compredémsome. These items were partially offset 84l million increase in total
stockholders’ equity that resulted from the vestiigtock-based compensation and ESOP shares earned

The OTS has no specific quantitative capital retiphs for savings and loan holding companies dmeei consolidated or unconsolidated
basis. There are several capital measurementthth&TS uses to evaluate the adequacy of a saaimgkan holding company’s capital. One
measurement is the tangible capital ratio. Theibd@gapital ratio (the ratio of tangible capitaltangible total assets (stockholders’ equity less
goodwill and intangible assets divided by totakéssess goodwill and intangible assets)) for tbenffany on a consolidated basis measures the
percentage of consolidated tangible equity capitpborting our consolidated tangible total asSets. Company'’s tangible capital ratio was
14.74% at December 31, 2010, compared to 15.149eeember 31, 2009.

Our strategy for utilizing the capital encompassegeral components, including debt reduction, fogdiur ESOP, financing acquisitions,
paying dividends to stockholders, repurchasingeshaf our common stock and for other general catpgourposes.
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Our Board of Directors has authorized the repuretodisip to 5,047,423 shares of our common stock.dththorization permits shares to be
repurchased in open market or negotiated transes;tand pursuant to any trading plan that may betad in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 of
the Securities and Exchange Commission. The autitarn may be utilized at management’s discresaibject to the limitations set forth in
Rule 10b-18 of the Securities and Exchange Comanisamnd other applicable legal requirements, argite and other internal limitations
established by the Board of Directors. The repweteuthorization will expire on May 16, 2011, uslestended by the Board of Directors. As
of December 31, 2010, the Company had repurcha288.4 34 shares of its common stock out of theB4RB shares that have been
authorized for repurchase.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Aggregate Contrdual Obligations

CommitmentsAs a financial services provider, we routinely angarty to various financial instruments with oéfllince-sheet risks, such as
commitments to extend credit, standby letters eflity unused lines of credit and commitments tblsahs. While these contractual obligatic
represent our future cash requirements, a signifipartion of commitments to extend credit may expvithout being drawn upon. Such
commitments are subject to the same credit polaiesapproval process afforded to loans that weemakhough we consider commitments
extend credit in determining our allowance for ldagses, at December 31, 2010, we had made nospyovor losses on commitments to
extend credit, and had no specific or general alove for losses on such commitments, as we havadhibtorical loss experience with
commitments to extend credit and we believed tbatnobable and reasonably estimable losses weeggnhin our portfolio as a result of our
commitments to extend credit. For additional infation, see Note 14 - “Loan Commitments and Othé&Bafance Sheet Activities” in our
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Contractual Obligationsln the ordinary course of our operations, we eimt@r certain contractual obligations. Such obligas include
operating leases for premises and equipment.

The following table summarizes our significant fixend determinable contractual obligations andrdtireding needs by payment date at
December 31, 2010. The payment amounts represesg imounts due to the recipient and do not incugeunamortized premiums or
discounts or other similar carrying amount adjusttee

Payments Due by Perioc

More than
One to
Less than Three Three to Five
Contractual Obligations One Year Years Five Years Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)

Certificates of depos $271,24: $94,877 $1395¢ $ — $380,07-
Borrowings 20,74¢ 3,00 — — 23,74¢
Standby letters of crec 1,59¢ 10C — — 1,69¢
Operating lease 56( 1,084 96( 6,57¢ 9,18(

Total $294,15. $99,06. $14,91« $ 6,57¢ $414,70:
Commitments to extend cres $154,93: $ — $ — $ — $154,93:

61



Pending Acquisition

On September 13, 2010, the Company signed a deéimterger Agreement to acquire DG Bancorp, Ind &s wholly-owned subsidiary,
Downers Grove National Bank. Founded in 1955, Dawi&rove National Bank is a privately held commyiiank with $219 million in asse
and $213 million in deposits as of December 31 02@bwners Grove National Bank has two bankingtiooa in Downers Grove and
Westmont, IL communities. The transaction has tzmroved by the Bank’s primary federal regulatioe, ©ffice of Thrift Supervision, and is
expected to close in the first quarter of 2011 jetttto customary closing conditions.

The following represents financial statements of Baxcorp as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 ancktudts of their operations in the two
years ended December 31, 2010. These results legveaudited in accordance with the auditing statedgenerally accepted in the Unit
States of America, with an opinion thereon Febr2gy2011.

DG Bancorp, Inc and Subsidiary
Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31,

(In thousands)

2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivaler- cash and due from ban $ 45,55¢ $ 38,46
Securities 20,931 10,16¢
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan losde®6,500 ($5,600 in 200¢ 134,94° 188,21¢
Income tax receivabl 92¢ 2,90¢
Other real estate ownu 13,23: 6,36(
Premises and equipment, | 1,75¢ 2,03t
Other asset 1,77 4,80¢
Total asset $219,13¢ $252,95¢
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Deposit account $212,61( $226,08:
Borrowed funds — 8,00(
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 1,05¢ 1,351
Total liabilities
213,66t 235,43:
Total stockholder equity 5,472 17,52(
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $219,13¢ $252,95¢
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DG Bancorp, Inc and Subsidiary
Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the Years Ended December 31,
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2010 2009
Interest and dividend incon
Loans, including fee $ 9,11¢ $12,49°
Securities 40z 72¢
Other 122 48
Total interest incom 9,64: 13,27:
Interest expens
Deposits 1,91z 3,215
Borrowings 90 27¢
Total interest expens 2,00z 3,49¢
Net interest incom 7,64( 9,77
Provision for loan losse 10,98’ 12,20¢
Net interest loss after provision for loan los (3,349 (2,437
Noninterest incom
Trust income 874 881
Deposit service charges and fi 31€ 36¢
Mortgage brokerage fe: 13 67
Other service charges , commissions, and 263 25¢
Gain on sale or call of securiti 2 6
Gain on sale of other real estate ow 274 13t
Other 164 15¢
Total noninterest incorr 1,90¢ 1,87(
Noninterest expens
Compensation and benef 4,10€ 4,33¢
Office occupanc 60¢ 59:
Furniture and equipmel 302 372
Professional fee 1,004 1,00¢
Data processin 41¢ 41¢
Insurance 98C 804
Examination and audit fe« 17C 29z
Impairment of goodwil — 60C
Impairment of other real estate owr 21¢ 917
Other 1,41¢ 1,33¢
Total noninterest expen: 9,22 10,67¢
Loss before income taxe (10,66%) (11,240
Income tax provision (benefi 1,401 (3,775)
Net loss $(12,069) $ (7,469
Basic and diluted loss per sh: $(137.15H $ (84.8Y)

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKE T RISK

For information regarding market risk see ltem“Fanagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations -
Management of Interest Rate Risk.”

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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REPORT OF MANAGEMENT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINAGIAL REPORTING
Management of BankFinancial Corporation is resgmadbr establishing and maintaining effective intd control over financial reporting.

Management evaluates the effectiveness of intearatol over financial reporting and tests forasbillity of recorded financial information
through a program of ongoing internal audits. Apgtem of internal control, no matter how well desid, has inherent limitations, including
the possibility that a control can be circumvertedverridden and misstatements due to error aidfraay occur and not be detected. Also,
because of changes in conditions, internal coefifectiveness may vary over time. Accordingly, eaareffective system of internal control
will provide only reasonable assurance with respeéinancial statement preparation.

The Company’s internal control over financial rejpay is a process designed to provide reasonablaasce regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantteagicounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America. The Company’srimaécontrol over financial reporting includes thgmlicies and procedures that (i) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonaigldaccurately and fairly reflect the transacti@nd dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (i) provide reasonable assurance thas#aietions are recorded as necessary to permitrat&paof financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generallyeptad in the United States of America, and thagipgs and expenditures of the Company
are being made only in accordance with authorinatimf management and directors of the Company(ianhdrovide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauitted acquisition, use, or disposition of the Compa assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Management assessed the Company’s internal canvteolfinancial reporting as of December 31, 2050;eguired by Section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, based on the criterigffective internal control over financial repog described in the “Internal Control-
Integrated Framework,” adopted by the CommitteSmdnsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commis€dSO). Based on this
assessment, management concludes that, as of Dec8it2010, the Company’s internal control oveaficial reporting is effective.

The Company'’s independent registered public acaogifirm has issued their report on the effectivenef the Compang’internal control ovi
financial reporting. That report follows under tmeading, Report of Independent Registered PublmAwsting Firm.

/s/ F. Morgan Gasic /s/ Paul A. Cloutie

F. Morgan Gasio Paul A. Cloutiel

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executi Executive Vice President ai
Officer and Presider Chief Financial Office!
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINKERM

We have audited the accompanying statements afdiabcondition of BankFinancial Corporation (th@dmpany”) as of December 31, 2010
and 2009, and the related statements of operatibasges in stockholders’ equity and compreherisn@me (loss), and cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthe2®.0. We also have audited the Company’s inteavarol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2010, based on criteria establishédeémal Control— Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSgring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS®¢ Company’s management is responsible for thraadial statements, for maintaining
effective internal control over financial reportjrand for its assessment of the effectivenesstefnal control over financial reporting, included
in the accompanying Management’s Report on Inte@aaltrol Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipils to express an opinion on these
financial statements and an opinion on the Compsimgérnal control over financial reporting basedoarr audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audits toiobtasonable assurance about whether the finastei@ments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal coravelr financial reporting was maintained in all evél respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideaee supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovemaltdial statement presentation. Our a

of internal control over financial reporting incled obtaining an understanding of internal contx@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk

a material weakness exists, and testing and euadutite design, and operating effectiveness ofmatiecontrol based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other proceslais we considered necessary in the circumstaiMeebelieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonableaagsuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetméor external purposes in accordance with gelyesaktepted accounting principles. A
company'’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftajpeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettilansactions and dispositions of the assetseoédmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgegaparation of financial statements in accor@awih generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expendituree®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods agjext to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the financial statements referr@dlbove present fairly, in all material respedis, financial position of BankFinancial
Corporation as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, lendetsults of its operations and its cash flows#wh of the years in the three-year period
ended December 31, 2010 in conformity with accaunfirinciples generally accepted in the Unitedetatf America. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, éffednternal control over financial reporting asbecember 31, 2010, based on criteria
established imnternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by @mmmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TneadCommission
(COS0).

Crowe Horwath LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
March 8, 2011
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
December 31, 2010 and 2009
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

ASSETS

Cash and due from other financial institutic
Interes-bearing deposits in other financial institutic

Cash and cash equivalel

Securities, at fair valu
Loans hel-for-sale

Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan los

December 31, 2010, $22,180 and December 31, 208% 32
Other real estate owned and other real estate oimraoces:
Stock in Federal Home Loan Bank, at ¢

Premises and equipment, |
Accrued interest receivab
Goodwill

Core deposit intangibl
Bank owned life insuranc
FDIC prepaid expens
Income tax receivabl
Deferred taxes, nt

Other asset

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS '’ EQUITY

Liabilities:
Deposits
Borrowings

Advance payments by borrowers taxes and insur
Accrued interest payable and other liabilit

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingent liabiliti

Stockholders equity:

Preferred Stock, $0.01 par value, 25,000,000 slzarg®rized, none issued or

outstandin¢

Common Stock, $0.01 par value, 100,000,000 shatk®@zed; shares issued at December 31, 201072566

and at December 31, 2009, 21,416,

Additional paic-in capital
Retained earning

Unearned Employee Stock Ownership Plan sk
Accumulated other comprehensive inca

Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

December 31

December 31

2010 2009

$ 18,097 $ 20,35
202,71 87,84
220,81 108,19¢
120,74° 102,12

2,71¢ —
1,050,761  1,218,54
14,62: 4,08¢
15,59¢ 15,59¢
32,49 34,61
5,39( 6,111
22,56¢ 22,56¢
2,70 4,29t
20,58 20,15;
4,84¢ 6,77
1,74¢ 11,72¢
9,33: 6,561
5,731 5,61¢
$1,530,65'  $1,566,96:
1,235,37  1,233,39!
23,74¢ 50,78«
7,32t 8,05:
10,91¢ 11,12¢
127737 1,303,36
211 214
194,18( 195,17
71,27¢ 81,53
(14,190) (15,16¢)
1,80( 1,85(
253,28t 263,60
$1,530,65  $1,566,96:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financigstents.

66



BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
(In thousands, except per share data)

Interest and dividend incon
Loans, including fee
Securities
Other

Total interest incom

Interest expens
Deposits
Borrowings
Total interest expens

Net interest income

Provision for loan losse

Net interest income after provision for loan losse

Noninterest incom
Deposit service charges and fi
Other fee incom:
Insurance commissions and annuities inct
Gain on sale of loans, n
Gain (loss) on sale of securiti
Gain on unredeemed VISA sto
Loss on disposition of premises and equipn
Loan servicing fee
Amortization and impairment of servicing ass
Earnings (loss) on bank owned life insura
Other

Total noninterest incom

Noninterest expens
Compensation and benef
Office occupancy and equipme
Advertising and public relatior
Information technolog
Supplies, telephone, and post:
Amortization of intangible:
Nonperforming asset managem
Operations of other real estate owi
Loss on impairment of securiti
Loss on early extinguishment of borrowir
FDIC insurance premiun
Other

Total noninterest expen:

Loss before income taxe
Income tax benefi

Net loss

Basic loss per common she
Diluted loss per common she

Weighted average common shares outstan
Diluted weighted average common shares outstar

2010

$ 60,92¢
3,48¢
522

64,93¢

12,33
858
13,18¢

51,75(
12,08:
39,661

3,02(
1,86¢
77E
501
31

(19)
604

(475)
43¢
39z
7,12¢

26,33¢
6,38(
1,27
3,73¢
1,59¢
1,59¢
3,34:
3,97:

2,12¢
3,48¢
53,84¢

(7,05¢)
(2,749
$ (4,30

$ (0.2
$ (0.2

19,664,10
19,664,10

2009

$ 69,17(
4,81¢

122

74,10¢

18,50!
2,05¢
20,55}

53,55:
8,811
44,74

3,36:
1,81¢
71E
69¢
(98€)

(40)
652
(446)
(29)
1,481
7,23¢

29,04¢
6,84¢
1,321
3,637
1,81¢
1,69(
77C
1,272
401
2,22t
3,70¢
52,731

(751)
13
$ (73¢)

$  (0.09
$  (0.09

19,698,07
19,698,07

2008

$ 73,98
3,861
11€

77,96(

22,03:
3,63¢
25,661

52,29:
5,097
47,20:

3,571
1,94¢
794
11¢
1,38¢
1,24(

(302)
771

(524)
58¢
83t

10,41¢

30,53¢
6,874
1,361
3,662
2,07(
1,78¢
434
35,91¢
1,97t
162
4,28(
89,05¢

(31,43)
(12,04
$ (19,389

$  (0.99)
$  (0.99

19,818,89
19,818,89

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(In thousands)

Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008

EQUITY AND

Balance at December 31, 20C
Comprehensive los:
Net loss
Change in other comprehensive loss, net o
effects
Total comprehensive lo:

Purchase and retirement of common si
(549,700 share:

Nonvested stock awar-stock-based
compensation expen:

Cash dividends declared on common stock
($0.28 per share

ESOP shares earn

Balance at December 31, 20C

Comprehensive incorr

Net loss

Change in other comprehensive income, n¢
tax effects

Total comprehensive incon

Purchase and retirement of common si
(277,800 share

Nonvested stock awair-stock-based
compensation expen:

Cash dividends declared on common stock
($0.28 per share

ESOP shares earn

Balance at December 31, 20C

Unearned
Employee
Stock Accumulated
Additional Ownership Other
Common Paid-in Retained Plan Comprehensive Comprehensive
Stock Capital Earnings Shares Income (Loss) Total Loss
$ 22z $198,44¢ $113,80: $(17,12¢ $ (4,210) $291,13
— — (19,389 — — (19,389 $ (19,389
_ _ — — 3,53¢ 3,53¢ 3,53¢
$ (1585
(5) (7,737 — — — (7,737)
— 4,38 - - - 4,38:
— — (6,139 — — (6,139
— 19 — 97¢& — 997
$ 217 $19511¢ $ 88,27¢ $(16,149) $ (67€) $266,79:
— — (73€) — — (73¢) $ (73¢)
— — — — 2,52¢ 2,52¢ 2,52¢
$ 1,78¢
) (2,48¢) — — — (2,49))
— 2,55¢€ — — — 2,55¢
— — (6,010 — — (6,010
— (10) — 97¢ — 96¢
$ 214 $19517° $81,53. $(15,169 $ 1,85C $263,60!

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008
(In thousands)

EQUITY AND

Unearned
Employee Accumulated
Stock Other
Additional Ownership Comprehen- Compre-
Common Paid-in Retained Plan sive Income hensive
Stock Capital Earnings Shares (Loss) Total Loss
Balance at December 31, 20C $ 214 $195,17° $81,537 $(15,169) $ 1,85( $263,60:
Comprehensive incorr
Net loss — — (4,307 — — (4,307) $(4,307%)

Change in other comprehensive income, net o

effects — — — — (50) (50) (50
Total comprehensive lo: $(4,35%)
Purchase and retirement of common si

(356,411 share: (©)] (3,121 — — — (3,124
Nonvested stock awart stock-based compensation

expense — 2,15¢ — — — 2,15¢
Cash dividends declared on common stock

($0.28 per share — — (5,94¢) — — (5,94¢)
ESOP shares earn — (25) — 97¢ — 954
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 211 $194,18¢ $71,27¢ $(14,190 $ 1,80C $253,28!

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008

(In thousands)

2010 2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $ (4,309 $ (739 $ (19,389
Adjustments to reconcile to net loss to net casmfoperating activitie
Provision for loan losse 12,08: 8,811 5,092
ESOP shares earn 954 96¢ 997
Stoclk-based compensation expel 2,15¢ 2,55¢ 4,12¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 4,44¢ 4,331 3,94¢
Amortization of premiums and discounts on secwgiéind loan: (21) (59 (41)
Amortization of core deposit and other intangildsets 1,58¢ 1,67¢ 1,76¢
Amortization and impairment of servicing ass 475 44¢€ 524
Net change in net deferred loan origination c 324 211 174
Net loss on sale of other real estate ow 41F 91 25¢
Net gain on sale of loar (501) (699) (11¢)
Net loss (gain) on sale of securit (32) 98¢ (1,385
Loss on impairment of securiti — 401 35,91¢
Gain on unredeemed VISA sto — — (1,240
Net loss disposition of premises and equipn 19 40 30z
Loans originated for sa (19,66¢) (40,79 (23,395
Proceeds from sale of loa 17,45 42,36¢ 22,81«
Net change in
Deferred income ta (2,742) 8,85¢ (14,39¢)
Accrued interest receivab 721 621 35¢
Loss (earnings) on bank owned life insura (430 20 (58€)
Other asset 12,15 (17,280 (3,519
Accrued interest payable and other liabilii (210) 1,45¢ (792)
Net cash from operating activiti 24,87 14,26¢ 11,417
Cash flows from investing activities
Securities
Proceeds from sal¢ 31 967 1,38¢
Proceeds from maturitie 1,73( 1,87 16,11:
Proceeds from principal repayme 30,07t 22,71¢ 9,051
Purchases of securiti (50,489 — (103,019
Loans receivabl
Principal payments on loans receiva 817,37¢ 852,14( 810,64
Purchases of loar (2,73%) (19,429 (12,680
Originated for investmer (676,42 (796,329 (818,65¢)
Proceeds from sale of other real estate ov 4,091 331 2,27¢
Purchase of premises and equipment (1,067) (3,099 (3,015
Net cash from investing activitit 122,58! 59,18: (97,909

(Continued)
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2010, 2009,

(In thousands)

and 2008

Cash flows from financing activities
Net change in deposi
Net change in advance payments by borrowers fastard insuranc
Net change in borrowing
Repurchase and retirement of common s
Cash dividends paid on common stt

Net cash from financing activitie

Net change in cash and cash equival

Beginning cash and cash equivale
Ending cash and cash equivalent

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information
Interest paic
Income taxes pai
Income taxes refunde
Loans transferred to other real estate ow

2010 2009 2008
$ 198 $16354 $ (3,799
(727) (52) 61€
(27,035 (149,56 103,91
(3,124 (2,491) (7,737
(5,946) (6,010) (6,139
(34,850) 5,421 86,86
112,61: 78,86¢ 381
108,19¢ 29,32¢ 28,94¢
$220,81( $108,19¢ §$ 29,32¢
$ 1357 $ 20,767 $ 25,90:
1,30 1,50 3,57¢
11,29: — —
17,43" 5,99( 2,967

See accompanying notes to consolidated financissents.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentatiol: BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corporaticgadquartered in Burr Ridge, lllinois (the “Comp@nis the owne
of all of the issued and outstanding capital stwicBankFinancial, F.S.B. (the “Bank”). On March 2®08, Financial Assurance Services, Inc.
(“Financial Assurance”), a wholly-owned subsidiafithe Bank, completed the sale of its title insiwe@agency business to a newly formed,
third-party title insurance agency. The transackiad no material impact on the Company’s totaltasseéockholders’ equity or net income.

Principles of Consolidatior: The consolidated financial statements includeatt@unts of and transactions of BankFinancial Gatpon, the
Maryland corporation, the Bank, and the Bank’s wholvned subsidiaries, Financial Assurance Seryibes and BF Asset Recovery
Corporation (collectively, “the Company”). All sigitant intercompany accounts and transactions leaen eliminated.

Nature of Busines:: The Company’s revenues, operating income, anetaase primarily from the banking industry. Alltbe Company’s
banking operations are considered by managemdg &mgregated in one reportable operating segroefibfincial reporting purposes. Loan
origination customers are mainly located in theatgeChicago metropolitan area. To supplement toginations, the Company purchases
mortgage loans. The loan portfolio is concentrateldans that are primarily secured by real estate.

Use of Estimates To prepare financial statements in conformityhwatcounting principles generally accepted in thédd States of America
(“GAAP"), management makes estimates and assumphiased on available information. These estimatdsaasumptions affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and the déseks provided, and future results could differe @Howance for loan losses, mortgage
servicing rights, deferred tax assets, goodwiligotntangible assets, stock-based compensatigrajiment of securities and fair value of
financial instruments are particularly subject bhacge.

Interest-bearing Deposits in Other Financial Institutions Interest-bearing deposits in other financial ingiins maturing in less than 90 days
are carried at cost.

Cash Flows: Cash and cash equivalents include cash, depuaigit®ther financial institutions maturing in lettan 90 days, and daily federal
funds sold. Net cash flows are reported for custdoan and deposit transactions, interest bearampsiits in other financial institutions,
borrowings, and advance payments by borrowersfag and insurance.

Securities: Debt securities are classified as available-fde-svhen they might be sold before maturity. Eqaggurities with readily
determinable fair values are classified as avaldibt-sale. Securities available-for-sale are edrgt fair value, with unrealized holding gains
and losses reported in other comprehensive inctoas)( net of tax. Interest income includes amatitn of purchase premium or discount.
Premiums and discounts on securities are amortingtie level-yield method without anticipating pagments, except for mortgage-backed
securities where prepayments are anticipated. Gaiddosses on sales are based on the amortizedf¢he security sold. Declines in the fair
value of securities below their cost that are ecthan-temporary are reflected as realized lossedetermining if losses are other-than-
temporary, management considers: (1) the lengtimaf and extent that fair value has been less ¢bahor adjusted cost, as applicable, (2) the
financial condition and near term prospects ofissaer, and (3) whether the Company has the itbesell the debt security or it is more likely
than not that the Company will be required to 8el debt security before the anticipated recovery.

Federal Home Loan Bank StockThe Bank is a member of the Federal Home LoarkBgatem. Members are required to own a certain
amount of stock based on the level of borrowings ather factors, and may invest in additional ameulRederal Home Loan Bank of Chicago
(“FHLBC") stock is carried at cost and classifieslarestricted security. Current accounting guidgoc FHLBC stock provides that, for
impairment testing purposes, the value of long tewestments such as our FHLBC common stock ischasehe “ultimate recoverability” of
the par value of the security without regard togenary declines in value. Both cash and stock éivits are reported as income.
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BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Loans Helc-for-Sale: Mortgage loans originated and intended for sahé secondary market are carried at the lowaggfegate cost or
estimated fair market value, as determined by antShg commitments from investors. Net unrealizedés, if any, are recorded as a valuation
allowance and charged to earnings.

Mortgage loans held-for-sale are generally soldhwérvicing rights retained. The carrying valuenafrtgage loans sold is reduced by the fair
value of the servicing right. Gains and lossesalassof mortgage loans are based on the differieetveeen the selling price and the carrying
value of the related loan sold.

Loans and Loan Income¢ Loans that management has the intent and atmlibwld for the foreseeable future or until matudt payoff are
reported at the principal balance outstandingph#te allowance for loan losses, premiums andadists on loans purchased, and net deferred
loan costs. Interest income on loans is recogriizéacome over the term of the loan based on thewstof principal outstanding.

Premiums and discounts associated with loans psechare amortized over the contractual term ofdhe using the level-yield method.

Interest income is reported on the interest metdmatiincludes amortization of net deferred loan teebscosts over the contractual loan term,
adjusted for prepayments. Interest income is diicoed at the time the loan is 90 days delinqueigss the loan is wellecured and in proce

of collection. Past due status is based on theactal terms of the loan. In all cases, loangpéeed on nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier
date if collection of principal or interest is cadered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not received for loanpthon nonaccrual status is reversed against gttiem@me. Interest received on such loans is
accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovetiiadeuntil qualifying for return to accrual statl®ans are returned to accrual status when
all the principal and interest amounts contracyudlle are brought current and future paymentsessonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losse: The allowance for loan losses is a valuationvedlioce for probable incurred credit losses. Loasdesre charged
against the allowance when management believasiitmlectibility of a loan balance is confirmed.l8equent recoveries, if any, are credited
to the allowance. Management estimates the alloevhatance required using past loan loss experi¢heajature and volume of the portfolio;
information about specific borrower situations; @stimated collateral values, economic conditiamsl, other factors. The amount of the
allowance is based on estimates and the ultimageomay vary from such estimates as more infoomatcomes available, or as later events
occur or circumstances change. Allocations of tlmvance may be made for specific loans, but the@eallowance is available for any loan
that, in management’s judgment, should be charffed o

The allowance consists of specific and general @repts. The specific component relates to loansatfeaindividually classified as impaired
or loans otherwise classified as substandard dotfldu The general component covers nonclassifi@th$ and is based on historical loss
experience adjusted for current factors.

A loan is impaired when full payment under the lé@mms is not expected. Loans that experiencenifgignt payment delays and payment
shortfalls are generally not classified as impailMdnagement determines the significance of paymelatys and shortfalls on a case-by-case
basis, considering the length of the delay, reafmrthe delay and prior experience with the boraviMulti-family, nonresidential,
construction and land, and commercial real estated are individually evaluated for impairmenta lban is impaired, a portion of the
allowance is allocated so that the loan is reporet] at the present value of estimated futurl 8ass using the loan’s existing rate or at the
fair value of collateral if repayment is expectetely from the collateral. Large groups of smabatance homogeneous loans, such as
consumer and residential real estate loans, alectigkly evaluated for impairment, and accordinghey are not separately identified for
impairment disclosures. Trouble debt restructuramgsmeasured at the present value of estimatatefaaish flows using the loan’s effective
rate at inception or the fair value of the collater
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Mortgage Servicing Right: Mortgage servicing rights are recognized sepbrathen they are acquired through sales of loanseMmortgag
loans are sold, servicing rights are initially reted at fair value and gains on sales of loanseam@rded in the statement of operations. Fair
value is based on market prices for comparablegageg servicing contracts, when available, or adtivaly, is based on a valuation model that
calculates the present value of estimated futursemicing income. The valuation model incorposaesumptions that market participants
would use in estimating future net servicing incosieh as the servicing cost per loan, the discatat the escrow float rate, an inflation rate,
ancillary income, prepayment speeds and defadsrand losses. The Company compares the valuatidelrimputs and results to published
industry data in order to validate the model ressattd assumptions. All classes of servicing assetsubsequently measured using the
amortization method which requires servicing rigbtde amortized into non-interest income in préparto, and over the period of, the
estimated future net servicing income of the uryilegl loans.

Servicing assets are evaluated for impairment baped the fair value of the rights as comparedatoying amount. Impairment is determined
by stratifying rights into groupings based on pmadwant risk characteristics, such as interest tage type and investor type. Impairment is
recognized through a valuation allowance for anviddal grouping, to the extent that fair valuddss than the carrying amount. If the
Company later determines that all or a portiorhefitnpairment no longer exists for a particularugiag, a reduction of the allowance may be
recorded as an increase to income. Changes intialuslowances are reported with amortization emplairment of servicing assets on the
statement of operations. The fair values of semgicights are subject to significant fluctuatiosssaresult of changes in estimated and actual
prepayment speeds and default rates and losses.

Servicing fee income that is reported on the stategrof operations as loan servicing fees is reabfdefees earned for servicing loans. The
fees are based on a contractual percentage obiteanding principal; or a fixed amount per load are recorded as income when earned.
fees and ancillary fees related to loan servichegnat material.

Other Real Estate OwnedReal estate properties acquired in collectioa fan are initially recorded at fair value lesstdo sell at

acquisition, establishing a new cost basis. If falue declines subsequent to foreclosure, a vatuatlowance is recorded through expense.
Operating expenses, gains and losses on dispgsitioihchanges in the valuation allowance are regadrnt noninterest expense as operations of
other real estate owned.

Premises and Equipmer: Land is carried at cost. Premises and equipnrengtated at cost less accumulated depreciatioprediation is
included in noninterest expense and is computeti®straight-line method over the estimated udefe$ of the assets. Useful lives are
estimated to be 25 to 40 years for buildings angtavements that extend the life of the originalding, ten to 20 years for routine building
improvements, five to 15 years for furniture andipment, two to five years for computer hardward software and no greater than four ye
on automobiles. The cost of maintenance and refsagisarged to expense as incurred and signifiegpdirs are capitalized.

Goodwill and Other Intangible AssetsThe goodwill asset resulted from business actiis prior to January 1, 2009 and represents the
excess of the purchase price over the fair valuecqtiired tangible assets and liabilities and ifiabte intangible assets.

The goodwill asset is assessed at least annuallynfeairment and any such impairment will be redegd in the period identified. There was
no impairment of the Bank’s goodwill asset for jfars ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008. dimp&hy has selected December 31 as
the date to perform the annual impairment test.

Other intangible assets consist of core deposiniible assets arising from whole bank acquisitidhgy are initially measured at fair value
and then are amortized on an accelerated methadlweie estimated useful lives.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Bank Owned Life InsuranceThe Company has purchased life insurance poligieseotain key executives. The Company owned ligaiance
is recorded at the amount that can be realizedrithdeénsurance contract at the balance sheetwhteh is the cash surrender value adjusted
for other charges or other amounts due that afegite at settlement.

Long-Term Assets Premises and equipment, core deposit and ottaardible assets, and other long-term assets aiared for impairment
when events indicate that their carrying amount matybe recoverable from future undiscounted chshst If impaired, the assets are recor
at fair value.

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instrumer: Financial instruments include off-balance-sheetlit instruments, such as
commitments to make loans and commercial lettecsetfit, issued to meet customer financing neels.face amount for these items
represents the exposure to loss, before considedsipmer collateral or ability to repay. Such fio@l instruments are recorded when they are
funded.

Income Taxes: Income tax expense is the sum of the current yeame tax due or refundable and the change idelfierred tax assets and

liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilitiee #ne expected future tax consequences of tempdifeyences between the carrying amounts
and tax basis of assets and liabilities, compus#aguenacted tax rates. A valuation allowancegéded, reduces deferred tax assets to the
amount expected to be realized.

A tax position is recognized as a benefit only ifi“more likely than not” that the tax positiorould be sustained in a tax examination,
presuming that a tax examination will occur. Theoant recognized is the largest amount of tax betiedi is greater than 50% likely to be
realized on examination. For tax positions not ngethe “more likely than not” test, no tax bendéirecorded. At December 31, 2010 and
2009 the Company had unrecognized tax benefitd 8 $00 and $165,000, respectively. The Companyitarstibsidiary are subject to U.S.
federal income tax as well as income tax of theeStalllinois. The Company is no longer subjecet@mination by these taxing authorities for
years before 2006. Beginning in 2010 and 2009Citm@mpany and the Bank became subject to income taxhe States of Colorado and N
Jersey, respectively, due to the physical presehmegional National Commercial Leasing bankerthese jurisdictions. The Company does
not expect the total amount of unrecognized taxebtxto significantly increase or decrease inrthgt twelve months.

The Company recognizes interest and/or penaltlaterbto income tax matters in income tax expeAs®ecember 31, 2010 and 2009, the
Company had recorded a cumulative accrual of $800@ $27,000, respectively, for potential inteeesd penalties.

Retirement Plans: Employee 401(k) and profit sharing plan expessfé amount of matching contributions and any ahdiscretionary
contribution made at the discretion of the CompamBoard of Directors. Deferred compensation expaliiseates the benefits over years of
service.

Employee Stock Ownership PlafESOP”) : The cost of shares issued to the ESOP, but natlipeated to participants, is shown as a
reduction of stockholders’ equity. Compensationesge is based on the market price of shares astheyommitted to be released to
participant accounts. Dividends on allocated ESkHPes reduce retained earnings; dividends on ued&B8OP shares reduce debt and ac
interest.

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Sha: Basic earnings (loss) per common share is neniec(loss) divided by the weighted average number o
common shares outstanding during the period. ESfares are considered outstanding for this calaulatnless unearned. Diluted earnings
(loss) per common share is net income (loss) divlmlethe weighted average number of common shartssamding during the period plus the
dilutive effect of restricted stock shares anddtlditional potential shares issuable under stotioep.

Loss Contingencie: Loss contingencies, including claims and legéibas arising in the ordinary course of business,racorded as liabilities
when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amiau range of loss can be reasonably estimatedaljlament does not believe that there are
such matters that will have a material effect anfthancial statements as of December 31, 2010.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Restrictions on Casl: Cash on hand or on deposit with the Federal Red®@ank which is required to meet regulatory reseand clearing
requirements. These required balances do not eterest.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments: Fair values of financial instruments are estirdatsing relevant market value information and other
assumptions, as more fully disclosed in a separate Fair value estimates involve uncertainties matters of significant judgment regarding
interest rates, credit risk, prepayments, and ddwtors, especially in the absence of broad marketparticular items. Changes in assumpt
or in market conditions could significantly affébe estimates.

Comprehensive Income (Loss)Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net ircipss) and other comprehensive income (loss)etOth
comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealizedsgaind losses on securities, which are also rezedris separate components of
stockholders’ equity.

Stock-based CompensatiorCompensation cost is recognized for stock optiomkrastricted stock awards issued to employeegdbas the

fair value of these awards at the date of grant. Black-Scholes model is utilized to estimate #ievalue of stock options, while the market
price of the Company’s common stock at the daigranft is used for restricted stock awards. Compamseost is recognized over the required
service period, generally defined as the vestingde

Transfers of Financial AssetsTransfers of financial assets are accounted feakes when control over the assets has been ridivegl

Control over transferred assets is deemed to ermlered when the assets have been isolated fe@dmpany, the transferee obtains the
right (free of conditions that constrain it fronkitag advantage of that right) to pledge or exchahgetransferred assets, and the Company doe
not maintain effective control over the transferasdets through an agreement to repurchase themetikéir maturity.

Operating SegmentsiVhile management monitors the revenue streamseofdhious products and services, operations arageahand
financial performance is evaluated on a Companyevaasis. Operating results are not reviewed bysamanagement to make resource
allocation or performance decisions. Accordinglypéthe financial service operations are consdioy management to be aggregated in one
reportable operating segment.

Reclassifications: Certain reclassifications have been made in thee pear’s financial statements to conform to terent years presentatior

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

FASB ASU 201-20, “Receivable (Topic 310), Disclosures about @redit Quality of Financing Receivables and thieowhnce for Credit
Losse” — ASU 2010-20 requires new and enhanced disclogirest the credit quality of an entity’s financiregeivables and its allowance
for credit losses. The new and amended disclogsge@irements focus on such areas as nonaccrualasndye financing receivables, allowa
for credit losses related to financing receivabi@paired loans, credit quality information and rifedtions. The ASU requires an entity to
disaggregate new and existing disclosures baséwrit develops its allowance for credit losses had it manages credit exposures. For
public entities, the disclosures as of the end refp@rting period are effective for interim and mahreporting periods ending on or after
December 15, 2010. The disclosures about actiléy accurs during a reporting period are effectrénterim and annual reporting periods
beginning on or after December 15, 2010. See Ntetl3ese Consolidated Financial Statements forabeired disclosures at December 31,
2010.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Newly Issued But Not Yet Effective Accounting Prononcements:

FASB ASU 201-01, “Receivables (Topic 310), Deferral of the Effee Date of Disclosures about Troubled Debt Regtrrings in Update

No. 201(-20" — Under the existing effective date in FASB ASU @&20, public-entity creditors would have providadatbsures about
troubled debt restructuring for periods beginnimgoo after December 15, 2010. ASU 2011-01 templgrdsfers that effective date, enabling
public-entity creditors to provide those disclosufearagraphs 310-10-50-31 through 50-34) afteFthancial Accounting Standards Board
clarifies the guidance for determining what comnggis a troubled debt restructuring. In the prop@ssmbunting Standards Update, Receivables
(Topic 310),Clarifications to Accounting for Troubled Debt Resturings by Creditors the Board proposed that the clarifications wdugd
effective for interim and annual periods endingaflune 15, 2011. For the new disclosures abouibted debt restructurings in FASB ASU
2011-01, those clarifications would be appliedagpectively to the beginning of the fiscal yeawinich the proposal is adopted. We have not
yet evaluated the impact on our disclosures irctmesolidated financial statements upon the adog

FASB ASU 201-29, “Business Combinations (Topic 805), Disclosaf&upplementary Pro Forma Information for Bussn€®mbinations™—
ASU 2010-29 specifies that if a public entity presecomparative financial statements, the entiughdisclose revenue and earnings of the
combined entity as though the business combinatjahét occurred during the current year had oecuas of the beginning of the comparable
prior annual reporting period only. The amendmaeaitgs expand the supplemental pro forma disclogorgglude a description of the nature
and amount of material, nonrecurring pro forma sihients directly attributable to the business coiatimn included in the reported pro forma
revenue and earnings. ASU 2010-29 affects any pebliity as defined by Topic 805 that enters inteiless combinations that are material on
an individual or aggregate basis. This guidanedfective prospectively for business combinatioorsvhich the acquisition date is on or after
the beginning of the first annual reporting peraodor after December 15, 2010. We have not yetuetadl the impact of adoption of ASU
2010-29 on our disclosures for periods after adopti

FASB ASU 201-28, “Intangibles — Goodwill and Other (Topic 35@Yhen to Perform Step 2 of the Goodwill Impairmiesgt for Reporting
Units with Zero or Negative Carrying Amounts* ASU 201028 affects all entities that have recognized a galbdsset and have one or mc
reporting units whose carrying amount for purpasfggerforming Step 1 of the goodwill impairmentttesszero or negative. ASU 2010-28
modifies Step 1 so that for those reporting umitsentity is required to perform Step 2 of the geildmpairment test if it is more likely than
not that a goodwill impairment exists. In determgniwhether it is more likely than not that a godtimpairment exists, an entity should
consider whether there are any adverse qualitéaiters indicating that an impairment may existe Tjualitative factors are consistent with
existing guidance, which requires that goodwilhaeporting unit be tested for impairment betwemmual tests if an event occurs or
circumstances change that would more likely tharreduce the fair value of a reporting unit beldsvdarrying amount. For public entities, t
guidance is effective for fiscal years, and inteperiods within those years, beginning after Decemis, 2010. The guidance is effective for a
public entity’s first annual period that ends orafter December 15, 2010. Adoption of ASU 2010-28at expected to have a significant
impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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NOTE 2 - LOSS PER SHARE

Amounts reported in loss per share reflect losflahla to common stockholders for the period dididey the weighted average number of
shares of common stock outstanding during the gedrclusive of unearned ESOP shares and unvestaitted stock shares. Stock options
and restricted stock are regarded as potential anmstock and are considered in the diluted earrpegshare calculations to the extent that

they would have a dilutive effect if converted timamon stock.

Net loss available to common stockhold

Average common shares outstanc
Less:
Unearned ESOP shar
Unvested restricted stock sha

Weighted average common shares outstan

Basic loss per common shar

Net loss available to common stockhold

Weighted average common shares outstan
Add - Net effect of dilutive stock options and unvestestricted stocl

Weighted average dilutive common shares outstar
Diluted loss per common share

Number of antidilutive stock options excluded frtime diluted earnings pr
share calculatio
Weighted average exercise price of -dilutive option share

Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
$ (4,309 $ (73€) $ (19,389
21,208,60 21,471,26 21,904,28
(1,441,66) (1,554,49) (1,662,51)
(102,82) (218,707 (422,870
19,664,10 19,698,07 19,818,89
$ (0.22) $ (0.04) $ 0.9¢
Year Ended December 31

2010 2009 2008
$ (4,309 $ (73¢) $ (19,389
19,664,10 19,698,07 19,818,89
19,664,10 19,698,07 19,818,89
$ (0.22) $ (0.09) $ (0.99)
2,287,55: 2,322,60:. 2,327,60:
$ 16.52 $ 16.51 $ 16.51
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NOTE 3 — SECURITIES

The fair value of securities and the related grosgalized gains and losses recognized in accuetutaher comprehensive income (loss) at
December 31 is as follows:

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

2010
Certificates of depos $ 27,76¢ $ — $ — $ 27,76¢
Municipal securitie: 675 34 — 70¢
Mortgage-backed securitie- residentia 41,03 1,427 (26) 42,43t
Collateralized mortgage obligatio- residential 48,26 1,471 @) 49,73:
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 10z 2 — 10E
$117,84( $ 2,94( $ (33 $120,74

2009
Municipal securitie: $ 1,22t $ 78 $ — $ 1,30¢
Mortgage-backed securitie- residentia 33,00¢ 1,04¢ — 34,051
Collateralized mortgage obligatio- residential 64,79 1,87: (13 66,65!
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 114 1 — 11F

$99,13¢ $ 3001 $ (13  $102,12f

Mortgage-backed securities and collateralized nagregobligations reflected in the preceding tablesvigsued by U.S. government-sponsored
entities and agencies, Freddie Mac, Fannie Maezmdie Mae, and are obligations which the governrhes affirmed its commitment to
support. All securities reflected in the precedialgle were classified as available-for-sale at Dewsr 31, 2010 and 2009.

The amortized cost and fair values of securitidg3eatember 31, 2010 by contractual maturity are shbglow. Securities not due at a single
maturity date are shown separately. Expected ntasirnay differ from contractual maturities becabhseowers may have the right to call or
prepay obligations with or without call or prepayrhpenalties.

2010

Amortized
Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or le: $2287: $ 22,87t
Due after one year through five ye 5,56¢ 5,60(
28,44: 28,47¢
Mortgage-backed securitie- residentia 41,03¢ 42,43t
Collateralized mortgage obligatio- residentia 48,26: 49,73:
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 10z 10E
Total $117,84(  $120,74

Securities pledged at December 31, 2010 and 200% lcarrying amount of $13.0 million and $75.1 mil| respectively, and the security
interests resulting from the pledges secures cedigpository relationships, customer repurchaseemgents and a line of credit with the Fed
Reserve Bank of Chicago.
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NOTE 3 — SECURITIES (continued)

Sale of securities were as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Proceed: $ 31 $967 $1,38¢
Gross gain: 31 — 1,38¢
Gross losse — 98¢ —
Securities with unrealized losses at December @10 2nd 2009 not recognized in income are as fallow
Less than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Fair Fair
Value Loss Value Loss Value Loss
2010
Mortgage-backed securitie- residentia $ 754 $ 26 $— $ — $ 754 % 26
Collateralized mortgage obligatio- residential 5,102 7 — — 5,102 7
Total $12,64¢ 3 33 $ — $12,64¢ $ 33
2009
Collateralized mortgage obligatio- residentia $13¢ $ 13 & $ — $135€ $ 13

The Company evaluates marketable investment sexsuwith significant declines in fair value on aagierly basis to determine whether they
should be considered other-than-temporarily imphineder current accounting guidance, which genepalivides that if a marketable security
is in an unrealized loss position, whether dueetoegal market conditions or industry or issuer-gjefactors, the holder of the securities must
assess whether the impairment is other-than-temypora

The mortgage-backed securities and collateralizedgage obligations that the Company holds inntestment portfolio remained in an
unrealized loss position at December 31, 2010tHmutinrealized losses were not considered signifisader the Company’s impairment
testing methodology. In addition, the Company dugtsintend to sell these securities, and it isljikbat the Company will not be required to
sell the securities before their anticipated recpweecurs.

At December 31, 2008, the Company held shareseafdie Mac preferred stock in its investment poidfolrhe securities experienced
significant declines in fair value (as measuredjbgted market prices for these securities) dutegyears ended December 31, 2009 and 2008
due to a variety of market conditions and issuecsjt factors, including Freddie Mactonservatorship, its issuance of new sharesedéipec
stock that are senior to all previously issuedgmrefd shares, and its suspension of dividendslgmealiously issued preferred shares. The
Company evaluated these shares of Freddie Macrprdfstock for impairment, and concluded that theealized losses that existed at that

with respect to this series of Freddie Mac prefés®®ck constituted an other-theamporary impairment under the current accountimgance
Based on this conclusion, the Company recordee-daprimpairment loss of $401,000 and $35.9 milfienthe years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively. These securities s@ckin the fourth quarter of 2009 and the Compameprded a pre-tax loss of $988,000 on
the sale.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE
Loans receivable are as follows:

2010 2009
One-to-four family residential real estate loz $ 256,30( $ 289,62
Multi-family mortgage loan 296,91t 329,22
Nonresidential real estate loc 281,98 316,60°
Construction and land loai 18,39¢ 32,571
Commercial loan 64,67¢ 88,067
Commercial lease 151,10° 176,82:
Consumer loan 2,18 2,53¢

Total loans 1,071,56! 1,235,46.
Net deferred loan origination cos 1,37 1,701
Allowance for loan losse (22,180 (18,627)

Loans, ne $1,050,761  $1,218,54

Loan Origination/Risk ManagemeiThe Company has certain lending policies and pnoeedin place that are designed to maximize loan
income within an acceptable level of risk. The Campreviews and approves these policies and proesdun a periodic basis. A reporting
system supplements the review process by provitgiagagement with frequent reports related to loadywtion, loan quality, concentrations
of credit, loan delinquencies and non-performing patential problem loans. Diversification in tleah portfolio is a means of managing risk
associated with fluctuations in economic conditions

The majority of the loans the Company originatesiavestment and business loans (multi-family, eeittential real estate, commercial,
construction and land loans, and commercial leatesiddition, we originate one-four family residential mortgage loans and consuloans
and purchase and sell loan participations from {ioagme. The following briefly describes our pripal loan products.

Multi-family mortgage loans generally are securgdrulti-family rental properties such as apartment builgliigcluding subsidized apartmt
units. In general, loan amounts range between $280and $5.0 million. Approximately 25% of the etdral is located outside of our primary
market area; however, we do not have a concentratiany single market outside of our primary matkeritory. In underwriting multi-family
mortgage loans, the Company consider a numberctdrig which include the projected net cash flowhloan’s debt service requirement
(generally requiring a minimum ratio of 115% foafs below $400,000 and 120% for loans above $40,@@ age and condition of the
collateral, the financial resources and incomellef/¢he borrower and the borrower’s experiencewning or managing similar properties.
Multi-family mortgage loans are originated in amtsuap to 80% of the appraised value of the propsgturing the loan. Personal guarantees
are usually obtained from multi-family mortgage foovers.

Loans secured by multi-family mortgages generailolve a greater degree of credit risk than ondeto-family residential mortgage loans
and carry larger loan balances. This increasedtaiskl is a result of several factors, includitng tconcentration of principal in a limited
number of loans and borrowers, the effects of gdremonomic conditions on income producing propsrtand the increased difficulty of
evaluating and monitoring these types of loanstieumore, the repayment of loans secured by maittify mortgages typically depends upon
the successful operation of the related real eptaigerty. If the cash flow from the project is wedd, the borrower’s ability to repay the loan
may be impaired.

The Company also originates real estate loansipelg secured by first liens on nonresidentiall estate. The nonresidential real estate
properties are predominantly office buildings, tigidustrial buildings, shopping centers and mixsé-developments and, to a lesser extent,
more specialized properties such as nursing homeéether healthcare facilities. The Company maymftime to time, purchase commercial
real estate loan participations.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The Company emphasizes nonresidential real estates With initial principal balances between $280,8nd $5.0 million. Substantially all of
our nonresidential real estate loans are securguidperties located in our primary market area. Thenpany’s nonresidential real estate loans
are generally written as three- or five-year adjuktrate mortgages or mortgages with balloon maturdfasree or five years. Amortization
these loans is typically based on 20- to 25-yeheduales. The Company also originates some 15-peaai-fate, fully amortizing loans.

In the underwriting of nonresidential real estatans, the Company generally lends up to 80% optbperty’s appraised value. Decisions to
lend are based on the economic viability of thepprty and the creditworthiness of the borrower\valuating a proposed commercial real
estate loan, we emphasize the ratio of the projsgutpjected net cash flow to the loan’s debt servequirement (generally requiring a
minimum ratio of 120%), computed after deductiondovacancy factor and property expenses we depnojgipate. Personal guarantees are
usually obtained from nonresidential real estatedweers. The Company requires title insurance inguthe priority of our lien, fire and
extended coverage casualty insurance, and, if appte, flood insurance, in order to protect ownsgy interest in the underlying property.

Nonresidential real estate loans generally camgiér interest rates and have shorter terms thae thio on- to four-family residential
mortgage loans. Nonresidential real estate loamsetier, entail significant additional credit riskempared to one- to four-family residential
mortgage loans, as they typically involve largemidalances concentrated with single borrowersargs of related borrowers. In addition,
payment of loans secured by incopraducing properties typically depends on the ss&fce operation of the related real estate praedtthu:
may be subject to a greater extent to adverse tionsglin the real estate market and in the geremahomy.

The Company makes various types of secured ancurezecommercial loans to customers in our mankest for the purpose of financing
equipment acquisition, expansion, working capitad ather general business purposes. The termesé lbans generally range from less than
one year to five years. The loans are either natgation a fixed-rate basis or carry adjustableésteates indexed to (i) a lending rate that is
determined internally, or (ii) a short-term markate index.

Commercial credit decisions are based upon ouitasgessment of the loan applicant. The Compatgrrénes the applicargt’ability to repa
in accordance with the proposed terms of the l@aitlswe assess the risks involved. An evaluationade of the applicant to determine
character and capacity to manage. Personal guasaotehe principals are usually obtained. In addito evaluating the loan applicant’s
financial statements, we consider the adequadyeoptimary and secondary sources of repaymenhéiloan. Credit agency reports of the
applicant’s credit history supplement our analydithe applicans creditworthiness and at times are supplementtdimguiries to other ban}
and trade investigations. Collateral supporting@uged transaction also is analyzed to determinmétrketability. Commercial business loans
generally have higher interest rates than resideloi@ns of like duration because they have a highk of default since their repayment
generally depends on the successful operationedbdirower’s business and the sufficiency of arljataral. Pricing of commercial loans is
based primarily on the credit risk of the borroweith due consideration given to borrowers with rppiate deposit relationships.

The Company also lends money to small and midisaging companies for equipment financing leasese@lly, commercial leases are
secured by an assignment by the leasing compatihedéase payments and by a secured interest egipment being leased. The lessee
acknowledges our security interest in the leaseipetent and agrees to send lease payments diteaily. Consequently, the Company
underwrites lease loans by examining the creditwioess of the lessee rather than the lessor. leans generally are non-recourse to the
leasing company.

The Company’s commercial leases are secured phnmritechnology equipment, medical equipment, makt&andling equipment and other
capital equipment. Lessees tend to be publiclyeiatbmpanies with investment-grade rated debt mpemies that have not issued public debt
and therefore do not have a public debt rating. Campany requires that a minimum of 50% of our caruial lessees have an investment
grade public debt rating by Moody’s or Standard@#3, or the equivalent. Commercial leases to thatides have a maximum maturity of
seven years and a maximum outstanding credit expadi$5.0 million to any single entity. Lesseeshwut public debt ratings generally have
net worth in excess of $25.0 million. If the lesslees not have a public debt rating, they are stibjethe same internal credit analysis as any
other customer. Commercial leases to these lebseesa maximum maturity of five years and a maxinmuistanding credit exposure of $3.0
million to any single entity. In addition, the Coenyy will originate commercial leases to lesseeh Wélow-investment grade public debt
ratings, but these leases are limited to 10% oftourmercial lease portfolio and have a maximumtantiing credit exposure of $2.0 million
any single entity. Lease loans are almost alwalg &imortizing, with fixed interest rates.

82



BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Although the Company does not actively originatestaiction and land loans at present, construeiahland loans generally consist of land
acquisition loans to help finance the purchaseuwd intended for further development, includinggirfamily homes, multfamily housing an
commercial income property, development loans fldbrs in our market area to finance improvementeal estate, consisting mostly of
single-family subdivisions, typically to financeetleost of utilities, roads, sewers and other dgraknt costs. These builders generally rely on
the sale of single-family homes to repay developntaans, although in some cases the improved Imgjlttits may be sold to another builder,
often in conjunction with development loans. Comstiion and land loans typically involve a highegoee of credit risk than financing on
improved, owner-occupied real estate. The rislos§ lon construction and land loans is largely dég@enupon the accuracy of the initial
appraisal of the property’s value upon completibnanstruction or development; the estimated cbsbastruction, including interest; and the
estimated time to complete and/or sell or leasé puoperty. The Company seeks to minimize the&s by maintaining consistent lending
policies and rigorous underwriting standards. Hosveif the estimate of value proves to be inaceyridite cost of completion is greater than
expected, the length of time to complete and/drasdease the collateral property is greater thaticipated, or if there is a downturn in the
local economy or real estate market, the propartycchave a value upon completion that is insugfitito assure full repayment of the loan.
This could have a material adverse effect on ttaditguof the construction and land loan portfolemd could result in significant losses or
delinquencies.

The Company offers conforming and non-conformitixgd-rate and adjustable-rate residential mortdages with maturities of up to 30 years
and maximum loan amounts generally of up to $2I6ani The Company currently offers fixadte conventional mortgage loans with term
10 to 30 years that are fully amortizing with mdpthayments, and adjustable-rate conventional nagedoans with initial terms of between
one and three years that amortize up to 30 years- © four-family residential mortgage loans aeeerally underwritten according to Fannie
Mae guidelines, and loans that conform to suchejinds are referred to as “conforming loans.” TleenPany generally originates both fixed-
and adjustable-rate loans in amounts up to themaxi conforming loan limits as established by Fatée, which is currently $417,000 for
single-family homes. Private mortgage insuranaedglired for first mortgage loans with loan-to-vahatios in excess of 80%.

The Company also originates loans above conforrivmits, sometimes referred to as “jumbo loans,t thave been underwritten to the credit
standards of Fannie Mae. These loans are genelalle for sale to various firms that specialinghe purchase of such non-conforming
loans. In the Chicago metropolitan area, largadesdial loans are not uncommon. The Company algpnates loans at higher rates that dc
fully meet the credit standards of Fannie Mae betdeemed to be acceptable risks.

The markets served by the Company have been impbgteridespread economic weakness and high unemmgloty which have contributed
arise in charge-offs and non-performing assete. afility of the Company’s borrowers to repay theéms, and the value of the collateral
securing such loans, could be further adversehaitenl by continued or more significant economickmess in its local markets as a result of
increased unemployment, declining real estate galueincreased residential and office vacancibg mot only could result in the Company
experiencing a further increase in charge-offs @ndén-performing assets, but also could necessitaincrease in the provision for loan
losses. These events, if they were to occur, wbale an adverse impact on the Company’s resutipefations and its capital.

83



BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following tables present the balance in thevedince for loan losses and the recorded investméo&ns by portfolio segment and basec
impairment method as of December 31, 2010 and 2009:

Allowance for loan losse: Loan Balances

Collectively
Individually Individually Collectively
evaluated for evaluated evaluated foi evaluated foi
for
December 31, 201! impairment impairment Total impairment impairment Total
One-to-four family residential real estate log $ 686 $ 287C $ 355 $ 4,02: $ 252,27t $ 256,30!
Multi-family mortgage loan 3,231 3,801 7,032 13,97: 282,94! 296,91t
Nonresidential real estate loc 1,637 4,077 5,71¢ 12,72: 269,26t 281,98
Construction and land loa 1,85¢ 60¢€ 2,461 6,13¢ 12,25¢ 18,39¢
Commercial loan 1,931 94¢& 2,87¢ 3,76¢ 60,91: 64,67¢
Commercial lease 72 44¢ 51¢ 72 151,03! 151,10°
Consumer loan — 20 20 — 2,18 2,18
Total $ 941 $ 12,76¢ $22,18( $ 40,69 $1,030,87: 1,071,56!
Net deferred loan origination cos 1,37
Allowance for loan losse (22,180
Loans, ne $1,050,76!
Allowance for loan losse Loan Balances
Collectively
Individually Individually Collectively
evaluated foi evaluated evaluated foi evaluated foi
for
December 31, 200! impairment impairment Total impairment impairment Total
One-to-four family residential real estate loz $ 99z $ 2,341 $333: $ 8177 $ 281,44t $ 289,62
Multi-family mortgage loan 641 2,95¢ 3,591 13,96 315,26t 329,22
Nonresidential real estate loz 1,50¢ 4,19(C 5,69¢ 10,65: 305,95¢ 316,60°
Construction and land loa 1,12¢ 73t 1,861 8,84: 23,73¢ 32,571
Commercial loan 79t 1,72t 2,52( 4,011 84,05¢ 88,06
Commercial lease — 1,591 1,591 — 176,82: 176,82:
Consumer loan — 24 24 — 2,53¢ 2,53¢
Total $ 506 $ 13,562 $18,62: $ 4564: $1,189,81 1,235,46.
Net deferred loan origination cos 1,701
Allowance for loan losse (18,629
Loans, ne $1,218,541
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is adduls:

2010 2009 2008
Beginning of yea $18,62:  $14,74¢  $11,05:
Provision for loan losse 12,08: 8,811 5,09
Loans charged o (9,289 (5,06%) (1,419
Recoveries 764 13C 16
End of yeal $22,18( $18,62:  $14,74¢

We refined the calculation of the general compowéthe allowance for loan losses during the fogularter of 2010 in response to the new
FASB disclosure requirement to segment each loatfiglio category into specific loan classes (FASRriglards Update 2010-20 (ASU 210-
20), “Receivables (Topic 310): Disclosures aboet@mnedit Quality of Financing Receivables and tiewdance for Credit LossesAs a matte

of consistency, the loan class segmentation wasagiplied within the 12-quarter loss history useddlculate the general component of the
allowance for loan losses, an adjustment of therafit risk factor weightings based on our evalmatibtheir relevance to the new loan classes,
and the elimination of duplicative historical Idastors as a result of the segmentation of thef@antby class. These refinements were applied
to the loan balances, net of impaired loans, toutate a $12.8 million general component of ounvaéince for loan losses at December 31,
2010. The refinements resulted in a net reductfdsiLo/ million to the general component of our almce for loan losses at December 31,
2010, principally due to the establishment of lolss segments that had lower historical lossgdkian the general loan categories to which
they belong. Specifically, the refinements redutedportion of the general component of the allavesior loan losses attributable to
commercial leases by $908,000, the portion attaibletto commercial loans by $788,000, the portitiibatable to non-residential real estate
loans by $195,000, and the portion attributablmtdti-family mortgage loans by $144,000. These otidns were patrtially offset by a
$384,000 increase in the portion of the generalmumant of the allowance for loan losses that ishatiable one-tdour family mortgage loan

Impaired loans were as follows:

2010 2009
Year-end loans with allocated allowance for loan los $31,057  $22,58:
Year-end loans with no allocated allowance for loands 9,63¢ 23,05¢
Year-end troubled debt restructured loans not indiviguadaluatec 2,97¢ 7,40¢
Total impaired loan $43,66¢  $53,04¢
Amount of the allowance for loan losses allocatethpaired loan: $ 9412 $ 5,06(

2010 2009 2008

Average of impaired loans during the y: $48,85(  $40,52(  $22,94«
Interest income recognized during impairm 1,10: 1,10¢ 1,152
Cash basis interest income recogni 1,102 1,10¢ 1,152
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Several of the following disclosures are presebtetrecorded investment,” which the FASB definesti® amount of the investment in a Ic
which is not net of a valuation allowance, but whitoes reflect any direct write-down of the investita” The following represents the
components of recorded investment:

Loan principal balanc

Less unapplied paymer

Plus negative unapplied balar

Less escrow balanc

Plus negative escrow balar

Plus unamortized net deferred loan ct
Less unamortized net deferred loan t
Plus unamortized premiu

Less unamortized discou

Less previous char-offs

Plus recorded accrued inter

= Recorded investmen

The following table presents loans individually kenxed for impairment by class loans as of Decer3ie2010:

Allowance for
Unpaid Principal

Recorded Loan Losses
Balance Investment Allocated
With no related allowance recorde
One-to-four family residential real estate loe- nor-owner occupiet $ 1,24¢ $ 1,321 $ —
Multi-family mortgage loan 3,55¢ 3,72: —
Nonresidential real estate loc 3,94¢ 4,00¢ —
Construction loan 33¢ 357 —
Commercial loan— securec 457 47¢€ —
Commercial loan- other 97 117 —
9,63¢ 10,00¢ —
With an allowance recorde
One-to-four family residential real estate loe— nor-owner occupiet $ 2,77¢ $ 2,88¢ $ 68€
Multi-family mortgage loan 6,012 6,362 1,70¢
Wholesale commercial lendir 4,40k 4,58¢ 1,527
Nonresidential real estate loe 8,77: 8,831 1,637
Construction loan 2,94( 3,244 73C
Land loans 2,86¢ 3,33¢ 1,12¢
Commercial loan— securec 3,054 3,26¢ 1,80¢
Commercial loan— unsecurec 15¢ 202 127
Non-rated commercial leas: 72 77 72
31,057 32,80: 9,41:
Total $ 40,691 $ 42,807 $ 941C
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Nonaccrual loans and loans past due 90 days stilcorual are as follow

2010 2009
Nonaccrual loan $45,69F  $49,48¢
Loans past due over 90 days still on acc 81¢ 14¢
Reserve for uncollected loan inter $269 $ 231i

The following table presents the recorded investritenonaccrual and loans past due over 90 dayestaccrual by class of loans as of
December 31, 2010:

Loans Past
Due Over 9(
Nonaccrual

Recorded Days, still
loans Investmeni accruing

One-to-four family residential real estate log $ 5,74¢ $ 6,11 $ 47

One-to-four family residential real estate loe- non owner occupie 4,311 4,51z 49€

Multi-family mortgage loan 8,82 9,32 27E
Wholesale commercial lendir 4,40¢ 4,58¢ —
Nonresidential real estate loe 12,42¢ 12,57¢ —
Construction loan 3,27¢ 3,601 —
Land loans 2,86¢ 3,33¢ —
Commercial loan— securec 3,511 3,74: —
Commercial loan— unsecurec 15¢& 202 —
Commercial loan- other 97 11¢€ —
Non-rated commercial leas: 72 77 —
Consumer loan 3 3 —

$ 45,69¢ $ 48,202 $ 81¢

Nonaccrual loans and impaired loans are definddreéifitly. Some loans may be included in both caiegpand some may only be includec
one category. Nonaccrual loans include both smbhlé&ance homogeneous loans that are collectivedjuated for impairment and individually
classified impaired loans.

Generally, the Bank utilizes the “90 days delingqustill accruing” category of loan classificatiarmen: (1) the loan is repaid in full shortly
after the period end date; (2) the loan is welused and there are no asserted or pending lega¢isato its collection; or (3) the borrower has
remitted all scheduled payments and is otherwisibstantial compliance with the terms of the |dart,the processing of payments actually
received or the renewal of a loan has not occuoeddministrative reasons.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following table presents the aging of the rdedrinvestment in past due loans as December 3D, 20 class of loans:

One-to-four family residential real estate loe
One-to-four family residential real estate loam®n-

owner occupiet
Multi-family mortgage loan
Wholesale commercial lendir
Nonresidential real estate loc
Construction loan
Land loans
Commercial loans
Securec
Unsecurec
Municipal loans
Warehouse line
Health care
Other
Commercial lease:
Investment rated commercial lea:
Below investment grad
Non-rated
Lease pool:
Consumer loan

Total

Greater than 9C

Loans Not Pas

30-59 Day: 60-89 Day:
Past Due Past Due Days Past Due Total Past Due Due Total

$ 120 $ 20z % 589C $ 7292 $ 172,43t $ 179,73.
3,33t 44¢ 5,01¢ 8,80: 68,127 76,93(
7,174 4,30¢ 9,58¢ 21,06¢ 202,48: 223,54°
1,231 — 4,58¢ 5,82( 67,712 73,53:
9,27( 16,06’ 3,944 29,27t 251,13¢ 280,41
1,267 1,28¢ 3,601 6,152 3,321 9,47:
— — 3,33¢ 3,33¢ 6,422 9,761
92¢ 70C 3,712 5,341 18,37( 23,711
551 17¢ 20z 931 6,55¢ 7,48¢
— — — — 4,62¢ 4,62¢
— — — — 12,32( 12,32(
— — — — 8,08¢ 8,08¢
7,06( — 11¢€ 7,17¢ 1,92 9,10(
2,03¢ 2,312 — 4,351 83,50¢ 87,851
3 — — 3 3,72 3,72¢
3,38 434 76 3,892 47,19¢ 51,091
— _ — — 9,791 9,791
3 — 4 7 2,18¢ 2,19:¢
$37,44¢ $2592¢ $ 40,082 $ 103,45: $ 969,93¢ $1,073,38
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

Troubled Debt Restructurings:

The Company has $6.5 million of troubled debt regtirings at December 31, 2010, with an alloca&%B$00 of specific reserves to those
customers. Troubled debt restructurings at Decer@be?009 were $9.6 million, with an allocated $82® of specific reserves to those
customers. The Company has no outstanding commigniercustomers whose loans are classified aslegdwebt restructurings.

Credit Quality Indicators:

The Company categorizes loans into risk categtw@sed on relevant information about the abilithofrowers to service their debt such as:
current financial information, historical paymemperience, credit documentation, public informatiand current economic trends, among
other factors. The Company analyzes loans indivigig classifying the loans as to credit risk. Fhinalysis includes ndmmogeneous loan
such as commercial and commercial real estate |ddms analysis is performed on a monthly basie Toempany uses the following
definitions for risk ratings:

Special Mention.Loans classified as special mention have a poteméakness that deserves management’s close attefftleft
uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may iasidterioration of the repayment prospects foritla@ or of the institution’s credit
position at some future date.

Substandard.Loans classified as substandard are inadequatetgqted by the current net worth and paying capadithe obligor or of
the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classifiade a well-defined weakness or weaknesses thadijdize the liquidation of the debt.
They are characterized by the distinct possibihigt the institution will sustain some loss if theficiencies are not corrected.

Doubtful. Loans classified as doubtful have all the weakreesgeerent in those classified as substandard, tvitfadded characteristic
that the weaknesses make collection or liquidatidull, on the basis of currently existing faotenditions, and values, highly
guestionable and improbable.

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are aealyndividually as part of the above describecpss are considered to be pass rated loans.
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NOTE 4 — LOANS RECEIVABLE (continued)

As of December 31, 2010, and based on the mosttraoalysis performed, the risk category of loanslass of loans is as follows:

Special
Pass Watch List Mention Substandarc Doubtful Total
One-to-four family residential real estate loz $174,34¢ $ — $ — $ 5097 $ — $ 179,44¢
One-to-four family residential real estate loam®n-owner
occupiec 65,07 6,40( 77€ 4,607 — 76,85¢
Multi-family mortgage loan 197,42 12,34¢ 4,64 9,501 — 223,91¢
Wholesale commercial lendir 67,30¢ 1,361 — 4,33: — 72,99¢
Nonresidential real estate loe 225,52¢ 24,997 18,75¢ 12,70¢ — 281,98°
Construction loan 4,57¢ — 1,252 3,27¢ — 9,10z
Land loans 3,057 3,19¢ 181 2,612 24¢ 9,29¢
Commercial loans —
Securec 17,504 2,18¢ 174 3,401 98 23,36:
Unsecurec 6,647 59t 16 99 58 7,41°F
Municipal loans 4,54( — — — — 4,54(
Warehouse line 12,27¢ — — — — 12,27¢
Health care 7,851 71 14¢ — — 8,071
Other 8,62¢ 29C — 97 — 9,01¢
Commercial lease: —
Investment rated commercial lea: 87,11¢ — — — — 87,11¢
Below investment grad 3,14¢ 54z — — — 3,69(
Non-rated 49,95¢ 56¢ — — 72 50,60(
Lease pool: 9,69¢ — — — — 9,69¢
Consumer loan 2,182 — — — — 2,182
Total $946,86: $52,55¢ $25,94¢ $ 4572t $ 477 $1,071,56!
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NOTE 5 — SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES

First mortgage loans serviced for others are ndtided in the accompanying consolidated statemarftsancial condition. The unpaid
principal balances of these loans were $220.9anill$274.2 million, and $303.9 million at DecemB#&r 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.
Custodial escrow balances maintained in connegtitimthe foregoing loan servicing were $6.9 millj&6.4 million, and $6.3 million at
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.

Capitalized mortgage servicing rights are incluttedther assets in the accompanying consolidatgdrsents of financial condition. Activity
for capitalized mortgage servicing rights and tlated valuation allowance was as follows.

2010 2009
Servicing rights
Beginning of yea $1,78C  $1,94(
Additions 11¢€ 32z
Amortized to expens (549 (482)
End of yeal $1,34¢  $1,78(
Valuation allowanct
Beginning of yea $ 74 $ 11C
Additions expense 24 158
Reductions credited to exper (98) (189
End of yeal $ — $ 74
Carrying value of mortgage servicing rig| $1,34¢  $1,70¢
Fair value of mortgage servicing rigt $1,612 $1,86:
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NOTE 5 - SECONDARY MORTGAGE MARKET ACTIVITIES (cont inued)

The estimated fair value of mortgage servicingtddh the present value of the expected future tagls over the projected life of the loan.
Assumptions used in the present value calculatierbased on actual performance of the underlyingceg along with general market
consensus. The expected cash flow is the net anod@atitmortgage servicing income and expense itéthe expected cash flows are
discounted at an interest rate appropriate foats®ciated risk given the current market conditi@ignificant assumptions are as follows:

2010 2009
Prepayment spee 15.9¢% 16.65%
Discount rate 12.0(% 12.0(%
Average servicing cost per lo. $61.0( $58.0(

Escrow float rate 0.8(% 0.6(%

Key economic assumptions used in measuring thevddile of the Company’s mortgage servicing riglst®aDecember 31, 2010 and the effect
on the fair value of our mortgage servicing rigiésn adverse changes in those assumptions, ardlaws:

Fair value of mortgage servicing rigt $1,61z

Weighted average annual prepayment sj 15.96%
Decrease in fair value from 10% adverse che (49)
Decrease in fair value from 20% adverse chz (93

Weightec-average annual discount ri 12.0(%
Decrease in fair value from 10% adverse che (59)
Decrease in fair value from 20% adverse chz (1149

These sensitivities are hypothetical and shoulddael with caution. As the above table indicateanghs in fair value based on variations in
individual assumptions generally cannot be usgatedict changes in fair value based upon furtheiatians of the same assumptions. Also,
effect of a variation in a particular assumptiontioa fair value of the retained interest is caltadan the above table independently, without
changing any other assumption. In reality, chamgese factor may result in changes in anotheofaethich might magnify or counteract the
sensitivities.

The weighted average amortization period is 48 mmanfhe estimated amortization expense for eatiheofiext five years is as follows:

2011 $26E
2012 214
2013 172
2014 141
2015 11€
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NOTE 6 — PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT
Premises and equipment are as follows:

2010 2009
Land and land improvemer $ 11,65¢ $ 11,65¢
Buildings and improvemen 31,12% 30,82¢
Furniture and equipmel 9,53( 9,42¢
Computer equipmet 7,39¢ 7,65

59,71: 59,56¢

Accumulated depreciatic (27,216 (24,959

$32,49¢ $ 34,61«

Depreciation of premises and equipment was $3.2omjl$3.0 million and $2.6 million for the yearsded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2
respectively.

The Company leases certain branch facilities undacancelable operating lease agreements expiingdh 2032. Rent expense, net of
sublease income, for facilities was $556,000, $8d®, and $452,000 in 2010, 2009, and 2008, resmdgtiexcluding taxes, insurance, and
maintenance. The projected minimum rental undestiexj leases, not including taxes, insurance, aaiditenance, as of December 31, 2010 is
as follows:

2011 $ 56C
2012 551
2013 5332
2014 497
2015 463
Thereaftel 6,57¢
Total $9,18(

The Company has subleased some of its branchtiesi#ind currently is entitled to receive incomécdisws:

2011 $ 43
2012 40
2013 38
2014 18
2015 —

Total $13¢

93



BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Table amounts in thousands, except share anchpez data)

NOTE 7 — CORE DEPOSIT INTANGIBLE
Core deposit intangible assets were as follows:

2010

2009

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Carrying Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Amortized intangible asse- core deposit intangible $18,61: $ 15,91: $18,61: $ 14,31%
Aggregate amortization expense was $1.6 million7 $dillion and $1.8 million for 2010, 2009 and 20@&spectively.
Estimated amortization expense for each of the fiextyears is as follows:
2011 $1,40¢
2012 252
2013 22F
2014 19¢
2015 17C
NOTE 8 — DEPOSITS
Year-end deposits are as follows:
2010 2009
Non-interes-bearing demand depos $ 112,54¢ $ 108,30¢
Savings deposil 98,89« 96,10
Money market accoun 341,04¢ 322,12¢
Interes-bearing NOW accoun 302,81: 303,21¢
Certificates of depos 380,07 403,63!
$1,235,37 $1,233,39!

Certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more wergd7Q million and $141.1 million at year-end 201@ &009, respectively.

Scheduled maturities of certificates of deposittfer next five years are as follows:

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

$271,24:
85,45(
9,421
7,00z
6,957
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NOTE 8 — DEPOSITS (continued)

Interest expense on deposit accounts is summaaizéallows for the years indicated:

2010 2009 2008
Savings deposil $ 421 $ 49t $ 71E
Money market accoun 3,252 4,50: 5,391
Interes-bearing NOW accoun 1,441 2,17¢ 4,84¢
Certificates of depos 7,21¢ 11,32¢ 11,07;

$12,33: $18,50: $22,03:

NOTE 9 — BORROWINGS

Borrowed funds are summarized as follows:

December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Contractual Contractual
Contractual Interest
Rate Range Rate Amount Rate Amount
Fixec-rate advance from FHLBC du
Within 1 year 2.14% 3.7¢% 2.81% $13,00( 2.7% $27,55(
1to 2 year: — — — — 2.81 13,00(
2 to 3 year: 2.9¢ 2.9¢ 2.9¢ 3,00( — —
4 to 5 year: — — — — 2.9¢ 3,00(¢

Total FHLBC funds 2.14 3.7¢ 2.84 16,00( 2.81 43,55(

Securities sold under agreements to repurc 0.2F 0.2f 0.2F 7,74¢ 0.2f 7,23¢

Total borrowings 0.25% 3.7¢% 2.00% $23,74¢ 2.44% $50,78¢

On January 31, 2011 a $6.0 million advance withte of 2.14% came due and the Company utilizediegitiquidity to repay the advance. In
December 2008, the Bank elected to pursue certdanbe sheet restructuring strategies as a refsihié dnistorically low interest rate
environment. The restructuring consisted of regign$25.0 million of FHLBC term advance and repigat with a new FHLBC advance with
an adjustable interest rate and a maturity of apprately one month. The Company incurred a nettaxegprepayment penalty and recognized
an immediate loss of $2.0 million on the early egtiishment of borrowings, in accordance with Emegdssues Task Force 96-I3btor’s
Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Dehstrument:. Certain of the Compang’existing borrowings would be subject to prepayr
penalties should they be repaid prior to matufityere were no prepayment penalties recorded in 2a6d®009.

The Company maintains a collateral pledge agreepswmring secured advances whereby the Compangdraed to at all times keep on he
free of all other pledges, liens, and encumbrarsges;ifically identified whole first mortgages anproved residential property not more than
90-days delinquent to secure advances from the FHIA of the Bank’s FHLBC common stock is pledgesiadditional collateral for these
advances. At December 31, 2010, $246.2 million®tD.4 million of first mortgage and multi-familyarigage loans, respectively,
collateralized the advances. At December 31, 2@&thad the ability to borrow an additional $240.8iam under our credit facilities with the
FHLBC. The Company also had available pre-appraxestnight federal funds borrowing and repurchaseegent lines. At December 31,
2010 and 2009, there was no outstanding balantieese lines.
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES
The income tax benefit is as follows:

2010 2009 2008

Current $ (B $8,867) $ 2,34¢

Deferred (2,742) 8,85¢ (14,39¢)
Total income tax benet $2,747 $ (13) $(12,049)

A reconciliation of the provision for income taxasmputed at the statutory federal corporate tax@a84% for 2010, 2009 and 2008 to the
income tax expense in the consolidated stateméimisavations follows:

2010 2009 2008
Provision computed at the statutory federal tag $(2,39¢) $(25€) $(10,689)
State taxes and other, 1 (491) 47 (1,360
Bank owned life insuranc (14€) 7 (299
ESOP/Share based compensa 28¢ 30¢ 442
Dividends received deductic — — (242)
$(2,747) $ (13 $(12,04¢)
Effective income tax rat 38.9% 1.7%% 38.3%

Retained earnings at December 31, 2010 and 2008m&14.9 million for which no deferred federatdéme tax liability has been recorded.
This amount represents an allocation of incomeatbdebt deductions for tax purposes alone.

The net deferred tax asset is as follows:

2010 2009
Gross Deferred tax assets
Allowance for loan losse $ 8,39¢ $ 7,04¢
Alternative minimum tax, general business credit aat operating loss carryforwar 6,93¢ 6,86¢
Non-qualified stock option 892 772
OREO write-downs 1,01% 31¢
Other 39t 521
17,63¢ 15,53(
Gross Deferred tax liabilities:
Net deferred loan origination cos (1,309 (1,439
FHLBC stock dividend: (1,785 (1,785
Purchase accounting adjustme (902 (2,399
Accumulated depreciatic (767) (999
Mortgage servicing right (511 (64¢€)
Goodwill (1,35%) (1,069
Other (564) (510
Unrealized gain on securitit (1,109 (1,13¢)
(8,307) (8,96¢)
Net deferred tax ass $ 9,33¢ $ 6,561
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NOTE 10 — INCOME TAXES (continued)

At December 31, 2010, the Company had a federadpertating loss carryforward of $5.9 million, whiafill begin to expire in 2029. At
December 31, 2010, the Company had a state neatopploss carryforward for the State of Illinois%82.0 million, which will begin to expir
in 2025. Based upon projections of future taxabt®ime, management believes that it is more likedy thot that the deferred tax assets
reflected in the above table will be fully realizadd thus a valuation allowance is not needed.

Unrecognized Tax Benefits
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoofntinrecognized tax benefits is as follows:

2010 2009
Beginning of yea $16E $17¢
Additions based on tax positions related to theeniryeal 15 8
Additions for tax positions of prior yea 34 13
Reductions due to the statute of limitatic (38 (29
End of yeal $17€ $16E

The Company does not expect the total amount efaagnized tax benefits to significantly increaséecrease in the next twelve months.

The total amount of interest and penalties recomdéke statement of operations for the year emdisckmber 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 was
$3,000, $2,000, and $5,000, respectively. The atmacorued for interest and penalties at DecembgP@®10 and 2009 was $30,000 and
$27,000, respectively.

The Company and its subsidiary are subject to féderal income tax as well as income tax of theeStélllinois. The Company is no longer
subject to examination by these taxing authorfiieyears before 2007. Beginning in 2010 and 2009 Company and the Bank became
subject to income taxes in the States of ColorabNew Jersey, respectively, due to the physicedgnmce of regional National Commercial
Leasing bankers in these jurisdictions.

NOTE 11 —- REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to regulatory capital requirate@dministered by the federal banking agenciaitufé to meet minimum capital
requirements can initiate certain mandatory—andipbsadditional discretionary-a€tions by regulators that, if undertaken, couldeha direc
material effect on the Company’s financial stateteednder capital adequacy guidelines and the atgiyl framework for prompt corrective
action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidedithat involve quantitative measures of the Banksets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-
sheet items as calculated under regulatory acamyptiactices. The Bank’s capital amounts and dleatibn are also subject to qualitative
judgments by regulators about components, risk htgigs, and other factor

The prompt corrective action regulations provide ftlassifications, including well capitalized, gdately capitalized, undercapitalized,
significantly undercapitalized, and critically umdapitalized, although these terms are not useedpieesent overall financial condition. If only
adequately capitalized, regulatory approval is ireglto accept brokered deposits. If undercapidlizapital distributions, asset growth and
expansion are limited, and the submission of atabpgstoration is required.
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NOTE 11 - REGULATORY MATTERS
At year-end, actual capital levels and minimum feggulevels for the Bank were:

Minimum
Required to Be

Minimum Well Capitalized
Required for
Under Prompt
Capital Corrective
Adequacy Action
Actual Purposes Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
December 31, 2011
Total capital (to ris- weighted asset: $199,36: 18.3¢% $86,76¢ 8.0(% $ 108,45¢ 10.00%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to ri-weighted asset: 186,59:  17.2( 43,38:  4.0C 65,07 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total ass 186,59:  12.4¢ 59,82¢ 4.0C 74,78! 5.0C
December 31, 200!
Total capital (to ris- weighted asset: $204,66: 16.4(% $99,857 8.0(% $ 124,82 10.0(%
Tier 1 (core) capital (to risweighted asset: 191,09¢ 15.31 49,92¢ 4.0C 74,89 6.0C
Tier 1 (core) capital (to adjusted total ass 191,09¢ 12.4¢ 61,44¢  4.0C 76,80¢ 5.0C
A reconciliation of the Bank’s equity under GAAPregulatory capital is as follows:
2010 2009

GAAP equity $219,26¢  $220,13!
Disallowed goodwill and other intangible ass (23,489 (24,87%)
Disallowed servicing assets and deferred tax i (7,390 (2,309
Accumulated loss (gain) on securit (1,800 (1,850

Tier 1 capital 186,59 191,09¢
General regulatory loan loss reser 12,76¢ 13,56:

Total regulatory capite $199,36:  $204,66:

As of December 31, 2010 the most recent notificefiom the Office of Thrift Supervision categorizéd Bank as well capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actidinere are no conditions or events since that gatifin that management believes have

changed the institution’s category.
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NOTE 11 - REGULATORY MATTERS (continued)

Federal regulations require the Bank to comply w&itQualified Thrift Lender (“QTL") test, which geradly requires that 65% of assets be
maintained in housing-related finance and othecifipd assets. If the QTL test is not met, limite placed on growth, branching, new
investment, FHLBC advances, and dividends or thgtition must convert to a commercial bank chat#anagement considers the QTL test
to have been met as of December 31, 2010.

The Bank is subject to restrictions on the amotinividends it may declare and pay to the Compaitlgout prior regulatory approval. At
December 31, 2010, the Bank does not have pre-app@pproval for future dividends.

NOTE 12 - EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Employee Stock Ownership PIEEmployees are eligible to participate in the ES@&r attainment of age 21 and completion of one péa
service. In connection with the conversion andgenization, the ESOP borrowed $19.6 million frora @ompany, and used the proceeds of
the loan to purchase 1,957,300 shares of commak &sued in the subscription offering at $10.00g®re. The loan is secured by the shares
and will be repaid by the ESOP with funds from Bank’s discretionary contributions to the ESOP aarhings on ESOP assets. The Bank has
committed to make discretionary contributions @ ESOP sufficient to service the loan over a penioicko exceed 20 years. When loan
payments are made, ESOP shares are allocatedtittigzants based on relative compensation and expengcorded. Participants receive their
earned shares at the end of employment.

Contributions to the ESOP during 2010 and 2009 #&r& million and $1.9 million, respectively, inding dividends and interest received on
unallocated shares of $425,000 and $453,000 in 268009, respectively. Expense related to theFE$@t of dividends and interest
received on unallocated ESOP shares, was $52%606,000 and $512,000 for the years ended Dece®ih@010, 2009 and 2008,
respectively.

Shares held by the ESOP were as follows:

2010 2009

Allocated to participant 517,67 432,42(
Distributed to participant (15,430 (12,619
Unearnec 1,419,04: 1,516,90
Total ESOP share 1,921,28: 1,936,71.

Fair value of unearned sha $ 13,83¢ $ 15,017

Profit Sharing Plan/401(k) PlarThe Company has a defined contribution plan (“prslfiaring plan”) covering all of its eligible empkes.
Employees are eligible to participate in the prsfiaring plan after attainment of age 21 and cotigpl®f one year of service. The Company
provides a match of $0.50 on each $1.00 of cortivhwp to 6% of eligible compensation beginningifp, 2007. The Company may also
contribute an additional amount annually at themison of the Board of Directors. Contributionsaling $389,000, $376,000, and $442,000
were made for the years ended 2010, 2009, and 28§8ctively.

NOTE 13-EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS

On June 27, 2006, the Company'’s stockholders apprthe BankFinancial Corporation 2006 Equity InsenPlan, which authorized the
Human Resources Committee of the Board of Direatbthe Company to grant a variety of cash- andtgdrased incentive awards, including
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restda®ck, performance shares and other incentivedsyt employees and directors aggregating
up to 3,425,275 shares of the Company’s commorkstoc
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NOTE 13-EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS (continued)

The Human Resources Committee may grant stockraptmpurchase shares of the Company’s common stametain employees and
directors of the Company. The exercise price ferdtock options is the fair market value of the pwn stock on the dates of the grants. The
stock options generally vest annually over threfv year periods; vesting is subject to accelerain certain circumstances. The stock opt
will expire if not exercised within five years frothe date of grant.

The fair value of each option award is estimatedhendate of grant using a closed form option wana(Black-Scholes) model that uses the
assumptions noted in the table below. The risk-ineerest rate was determined using the yield atsél on the option grant date for a zero-
coupon U.S. Treasury security with a term equiviaterthe expected life of the option. The expediiedfor options granted represents the
period the option is expected to be outstandingveassl determined by applying the simplified methedbowed by SAB 107. The expected
volatility for options issued in 2009 was deterntnesing the Company’s historical data. Estimateteftures were assumed to be zero due to
the lack of historical experience for the Compartyere were no options granted in 2010.

The Company recognized $344,000, $406,000 and 8804f stock-based compensation expenses relatitigetgranting of stock options for
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 28§&atively. As of December 31, 2010, the Compauay$12,000 of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to unvested stock optiatawill vest in 2011.

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Weighted Contractual Aggregate
Number of Average Term Intrinsic
Stock Options Shares Exercise Price (in years) Value @
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2 2,327,60: $ 16.51 2.8 $ —
Stock options grante — —
Stock options exercise — —
Stock options expire (2,000 (16.00)
Stock options forfeite: (3,000 (16.00)
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2 2,322,60:. $ 16.51 1.9 $ —
Stock options grante — —
Stock options exercise — —
Stock options expire (24,240 (15.99
Stock options forfeite: (10,810 (15.99)
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2 2,287,55. $ 16.52 0.8 $ —
Stock options exercisable at December 31, - 2,249,85. $ 16.5¢ 0.8 $ —
Fully vested and expected to vi 2,287,55: $ 16.52 0.8 $ —

(1) Stock option aggregate intrinsic value représéme number of shares subject to options mudtipliy the difference (if positive) in the
closing market price of the common stock underlytimg options on the date shown and the weightechgeesxercise prici
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NOTE 13 — EQUITY INCENTIVE PLANS (continued)

The Human Resources Committee of the Board of Bireenay grant shares of restricted stock to aedaiployees and directors of the
Company. The awards generally vest annually ovejinvg periods from three to five years and vestgigubject to acceleration in certain
circumstances. The cost of such awards will beusetratably as compensation expense over suchctegpperiods based on expected vesting
dates. The Company recognized $1.8 million, $2#ianiand $3.5 million of expenses relating to tirtant of shares of restricted stock during
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 28§&ctively. As of December 31, 2010, the totataognized compensation cost relate
unvested shares of restricted stock was $83,008cd&t is expected to be recognized over an 18hperiod.

Weighted Weighted
Average Fair Average Aggregate
Number of Value at Grant Term to Vesl Intrinsic

Restricted Stock Shares(®) Date (in years) Value @
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2 239,10( $ 17.5¢€ iLg $ 2,43¢
Shares grante — —
Shares veste (130,45() (17.57%)
Shares forfeite — —
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2 108,65( $ 17.5¢€ 1.C $ 1,07¢
Shares grante 13,00( 9.54
Shares veste (112,98) (17.5€)
Shares forfeite — —
Shares outstanding at December 31, 2 8,66 $ 9.54 iLE $ 85

(1) The end of period balances consist only of unvesiedes
(2) Restricted stock aggregate intrinsic value reprtssise number of shares of restricted stock migtibby the market price of the comm
stock underlying the outstanding shares on the stade/n.

NOTE 14 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SH EET ACTIVITIES

The Company is party to various financial instrutsemith off-balance-sheet risk. The Company usesdHinancial instruments in the normal
course of business to meet the financing needastbmers and to effectively manage exposure todsteate risk. These financial instruments
include commitments to extend credit, standby istté credit, unused lines of credit, and committaea sell loans. When viewed in terms of
the maximum exposure, those instruments may inyddvearying degrees, elements of credit and istenate risk in excess of the amount
recognized in the consolidated statements of filmicondition. Credit risk is the possibility thatcounterparty to a financial instrument will be
unable to perform its contractual obligations. tagt rate risk is the possibility that, due to asin economic conditions, the Company’s net
interest income will be adversely affected.

The following is a summary of the contractual otimwal amount of each significant class of off-ala-sheet financial instruments
outstanding. The Company’s exposure to creditilosise event of nonperformance by the counterpgartgommitments to extend credit,
standby letters of credit, and unused lines ofitiedepresented by the contractual notional anhofithese instruments.

The contractual or notional amounts are as follows:

2010 2009

Financial instruments wherein contractual amouegsesent credit ris
Commitments to extend cres $ 16,71: $ 11,22
Standby letters of crec 1,69¢ 2,17
Unused lines of cred 138,21¢ 149,81!
Commitments to sell mortgag 3,24 1,31:
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NOTE 14 — LOAN COMMITMENTS AND OTHER OFF-BALANCE SH EET ACTIVITIES (continued)

Commitments to extend credit are generally mad@éoiods of 60 days or less. The fixed-rate loamsroitment totaled $14.3 million with
interest rates ranging from 3.625% to 6.63% anduritegs ranging from one to 30 years.

Since many of the commitments are expected to expithout being drawn upon, the total commitmenbants do not necessarily represent
future cash requirements. The Company evaluatds@estomer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case.betse amount of collateral obtained,
if it is deemed necessary by the Company upon siderof credit, is based on management'’s crediuatian of the customers. The collateral
held varies, but primarily consists of single-faymi¢ésidential real estate.

The Bank, as a member of Visa USA, received 51uidstricted shares of Visa, Inc. Class B commocoksin connection with Visa, Inc.’s
initial public offering in 2007, and 32,398 additad shares of Class B common stock that were deggbisito a litigation escrow that Visa, Inc.
established under its retrospective responsitpliyn. The retroactive responsibility plan obligaaéiformer Visa USA members to indemnify
Visa USA, in proportion to their equity interests\isa USA, for certain litigation losses and exges) including settlement expenses, for the
lawsuits covered by the retrospective responsjiilian. The primary method for discharging the mddication obligations under the
retrospective responsibility plan is a reductiorihef ratio at which the Visa, Inc. Class B shamd im the litigation escrow can be converted
into publicly traded Class A common shares of Viea, Due to the restrictions that the retrospectesponsibility plan imposes on the
Company’s Visa, Inc. Class B shares, the Compasynbarecorded the Class B shares as an asset.

NOTE 15 - FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the exchange price that would beivedefor an asset or paid to transfer a liabiléyi{ price) in the principal or most
advantageous market for the asset or liabilitynmederly transaction between market participantthe measurement date. There are three
levels of inputs that may be used to measure &ires:

» Level 1- Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical asset@bilities in active markets that the entity hiae fbility to access as
the measurement da

» Level 2 — Significant other observable inputs otthen Level 1 prices such as quoted prices forlaimisets or liabilities; quoted
prices in markets that are not active; or otheuigphat are observable or can be corroboratedbgroable market dat

* Level 3 — Significant unobservable inputs thataeffla company’s own assumptions about the assunspfat market participants
would use in pricing an asset or liabili

The Company used the following methods and siganifi@assumptions to estimate the fair value of égoh of financial instrument:

The fair values of marketable equity securitiesgaeerally determined by quoted prices, in actielkats, for each specific security (Level 1
measurement inputs). If Level 1 measurement inprgsiot available for a marketable equity secuvity determine its fair value based on the
guoted price of a similar security traded in anvacinarket (Level 2 measurement inputs). The falugs of debt securities are generally
determined by matrix pricing, which is a mathensltiechnique widely used in the industry to valebtdsecurities without relying exclusively
on quoted prices for the specific securities, ather by relying on the securities’ relationshiptber benchmark quoted securities (Level 2
measurement inputs).

The fair values of loans held-for-sale are gengidditermined by quoted prices in active marketsdha accessible at the measurement date fol
similar, unrestricted assets (Level 2 measurenmgnits).
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

Impaired loans and other real estate owned prasestie evaluated and valued at the time the loderified as impaired or placed into other
real estate owned, at the lower of cost or mark&tes Market value is measured based on the vdlthe@ollateral securing these loans and is
classified at a Level 3 in the fair value hierarc@yllateral may be real estate and/or businestsgsacluding equipment, inventory and/or
accounts receivable, and its fair value is genedetermined based on real estate appraisals er iithependent evaluations by qualified
professionals. Impaired loans are reviewed ancuatadl on at least a quarterly basis for additionphirment and adjusted accordingly, based
on the same factors identified above.

The fair values of mortgage servicing rights arselsbon a valuation model that calculates the ptesdue of estimated net servicing income.
The valuation model incorporates assumptions tfaaket participants would use in estimating futueé servicing income. The Company is
able to compare the valuation model inputs andtetuwidely available published industry data feasonableness (Level 2 measurement
inputs).

The following table sets forth the Compasijinancial assets that were accounted for awtdire and are classified in their entirety basethe
lowest level of input that is significant to therfaalue measurement.

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for Significant Significant
Observable Unobservable
Identical
Amortized Assets Inputs Inputs
Cost Fair Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 2011
Securities
Certificates of depos $ 27,76¢ $ 27,76¢ $ — $ 27,76¢ $ —
Municipal securitie! 67% 70¢ — 70¢ —
Mortgagebacked securitie- Residentia 41,03¢ 42,43t — 42,43 —
Collateralized mortgage Obligatio- residentia 48,26: 49,73 — 49,73 —
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 108 10E — 10E —
$117,84( $120,74° $  — $120,74° $ —
December 31, 200!
Securities
Municipal securitie: $ 1,22t $ 1,30¢ $ — $ 1,30: $ —
Mortgage-backed securitie- residentia 33,00¢ 34,057 — 34,057 —
Collateralized mortgage Obligatio- residential 64,79: 66,65 — 66,65 —
SBA-guaranteed loan participation certifica 114 11E — 11F —
$ 99,13¢ $102,12¢ $ — $102,12¢ $ —
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)
The Company’s assets that were measured at faieal a non-recurring basis are as follows:

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted Prices in Significant Significant
Active Markets for Observable Unobservable
Fair Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
December 31, 201!
Impaired loan: $31,057 $ — $ — $ 31,057
Other real estate ownt 4,22¢ — — 4,22¢
December 31, 200
Impaired loan: $22,58: $ — $ — $ 22,58:
Other real estate ownt 1,11¢ — — 1,11¢
Mortgage servicing right 377 — 377 —

Impaired loans, which are measured for impairmesimgithe fair value of the collateral for collatedependent loans, had a carrying amout
$43.7 million, with a valuation allowance of $9.4llian at December 31, 2010, compared to a carrgingpunt of $50.8 million, with a
valuation allowance of $5.1 million at December 3009, resulting in a provision for loan losse$4f3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

OREO and OREO in process, which is carried at lovf@ost or fair value less costs to sell, hadrayazg value of $14.6 million at
December 31, 2010, which included write downs o#i$8illion for the year ended December 31, 2010marad to $4.1 million at
December 31, 2009, which included write downs @&%600 for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Mortgage servicing rights, which are carried atéowf cost or fair value, had a carrying amoursbf3 million at December 31, 2010, of wh
$974,000 related to fixed rate loans and $375,e(ed to adjustable rate loans. There was a reg@#&74,000 on mortgage servicing rights
for the year ended December 31, 2010, compared8&®80 recovery for the same period in 2009.
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUE (continued)

The carrying amount and estimated fair value ddriitial instruments is as follows:

2010 2009
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial assetl
Cash and cash equivale $ 220,81( $ 220,81( $ 108,19¢ $ 108,19¢
Securities 120,74 120,74’ 102,12¢ 102,12¢
Loans hel-for-sale 2,71¢€ 2,71¢ — —
Loans receivable, net of allowance for loan los 1,050,76! 1,065,40: 1,218,54l 1,221,09:
FHLBC stock 15,59¢ N/A 15,59¢ N/A
Accrued interest receivab 5,39( 5,39( 6111 6,111
Mortgage servicing right 1,34¢ 1,612 1,70¢ 1,862
Financial liabilities
Non-interes-bearing demand depos $ (112,549 $ (112,549  $ (108,30 $ (108,309
Savings deposil (98,899 (98,899 (96,107 (96,107
NOW and money market accoul (643,86() (643,86() (625,349 (625,341
Certificates of depos (380,079 (384,109 (403,63 (407,69:)
Borrowings (23,749 (23,999 (50,789 (51,579
Accrued interest payab (14¢€) (14¢€) (535) (535)

For purposes of the above, the following assumptisare used:

Cash and Cash EquivalentsThe estimated fair values for cash and cash etgrits are based on their carrying value due tshibet-term
nature of these assets.

Loans: The estimated fair value for loans has been detexd by calculating the present value of futurghciows based on the current rate
Company would charge for similar loans with simitaaturities, applied for an estimated time periatildhe loan is assumed to be repriced or
repaid. The estimated fair values of loans heldsfde are based on quoted market prices.

FHLBC Stock: It is not practicable to determine the fair vatid=HLBC stock due to the restrictions placed tsririansferability.

Deposit Liabilities: The estimated fair value for certificates of deipbas been determined by calculating the presdoe of future cash flows
based on estimates of rates the Company would paych deposits, applied for the time period ungturity. The estimated fair values of
non-interest-bearing demand, NOW, money market santhgs deposits are assumed to approximatedfieiring values as management
establishes rates on these deposits at a leveapipadximates the local market area. Additionalgse deposits can be withdrawn on demand.

Borrowings: The estimated fair values of advances from theBE€ and notes payable are based on current maates for similar financing.
The estimated fair value of securities sold un@dgea@aments to repurchase is assumed to equal itsrcavalue due to the short-term nature of
the liability.

Accrued Interest: The estimated fair values of accrued interestivable and payable are assumed to equal theyicgrvalue.

Off - Balance-Sheet InstrumentsOff-balance-sheet items consist principally ofuntded loan commitments, standby letters of crexdit]
unused lines of credit. The estimated fair valdasnfunded loan commitments, standby letters oflitrand unused lines of credit are not
material.
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NOTE 15 — FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (con tinued)

While the above estimates are based on managengadisent of the most appropriate factors, as eftthlance sheet date, there is no
assurance that the estimated fair values would hega realized if the assets were disposed ofediiahilities settled at that date, since market
values may differ depending on the various circamaes. The estimated fair values would also nayappubsequent dates.

In addition, other assets and liabilities thatrasefinancial instruments, such as premises angewnt, are not included in the above
disclosures.

NOTE 16 — OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Other comprehensive income (loss) components datédetaxes were as follows:

2010 2009 2008
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on securitiesph&ax $(31) $1,666 $(17,27)
Net loss (gain) on sale of securities recognizeti phtax (29 612 (83%)
Loss on impairment of securities, net of — 24¢ 21,64:

$(50) $2,52¢ $ 3,53¢

NOTE 17 — COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION

Condensed financial information of BankFinancial@wation as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 anthéothree years ended December 31,
2010 follows:

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

2010 2009
ASSETS
Cash in subsidiar $ 16,42: $ 25,75¢
Loan receivable from ESC 16,367 17,17:
Investment in subsidiat 219,26¢ 220,13t
Income tax receivabl 1,74¢ 11,72¢
Other asset 36€ 141
Total asset $254,17¢  $274,93:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Accrued expenses and other liabilit 89C 11,32¢
Total stockholder equity 253,28! 263,60:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $254,17  $274,93.
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NOTE 17 — COMPANY ONLY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMAT ION (continued)

Condensed Statements of Operations

2010 2009 2008
Interest incom: $ 73C $1,24¢ $ 1,28i
Dividends from subsidiar — — 2,00(
Other expens 1,34: 1,42¢ 1,85¢
Income (loss) before income tax and undistributéasgliary income (613) (184) 1,42¢
Income tax benefi (232) (69) (217)
Income (loss) before equity in undistributed sulasidincome (381) (115) 1,64¢
Equity in undistributed subsidiary income (exceiss$rithutions) (3,926) (623) (21,035
Net loss $(4,307) $ (73¢) $(19,389
Condensed Statements of Cash Flows
2010 2009 2008
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $(4,30) $ (735 $(19,389
Adjustments
Equity in undistributed subsidiary income (exceiss$rithutions) 3,92¢ 623 21,03t
Change in other asse 9,752 (10,49 54¢
Change in accrued expenses and other liabi (10,439 11,28 (143)
Net cash from operating activities (1,06¢) 674 2,052
Cash flows from investing activities
Principal payments received on ESOP | 80& 60€ 562
Net cash from investing activities 80% 60€ 563
Cash flows from financing activities
Repurchase and retirement of common s (3,129 (2,49)) (7,737)
Cash dividends paid on common stt (5,94¢6) (6,010 (6,139
Net cash from financing activities (9,070 (8,507 (13,87)
Net change in cash and cash equival (9,339 (7,227 (11,25¢)
Beginning cash and cash equivale 25,75¢ 32,97¢ 44,23:
Ending cash and cash equivalent $16,42: $25,75¢ $32,97¢
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NOTE 18 — SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (Unaudited)

Year Ended December 31, 201

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest incomt $17,14F $16,45! $15,89: $15,44¢
Interest expens 3,92¢ 3,671 3,13¢ 2,44:
Net interest incom 13,21¢ 12,77 12,75¢ 13,00¢
Provision for loan losse 851 2,66¢ 41¢ 8,14¢
Net interest incom 12,36¢ 10,10¢ 12,33¢ 4,85¢
Noninterest incom 1,45k 1,81z 1,95¢ 1,90¢
Noninterest expens 12,67¢ 12,37( 13,19( 15,61
Income (loss) before income tax 1,142 (449) 1,10z (8,850
Income tax expense (benel 42€ (167) 36€ (3,379
Net income (loss $ 71€ $ (28¢) $ 737 $(5.47y
Basic earnings (loss) per common sk $ 004 $ (0.0)) $ 0.04 $ (0.29
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ 004 $ (001) $ 00¢£ $ (0.29

Year Ended December 31, 2009

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Interest incom $18,90¢ $18,71: $18,51( $17,98(
Interest expens 5,73¢ 5,50( 4,83¢ 4,48:
Net interest incom 13,17( 13,21: 13,67: 13,497
Provision for loan losse 1,34« 2,847 427 4,19:
Net interest incom 11,82¢ 10,36¢ 13,24¢ 9,30¢
Noninterest incom 1,64z 1,80z 1,66( 2,13¢
Noninterest expens 13,04: 13,04’ 12,58! 14,06:
Income (loss) before income tax 42¢ (879 2,32¢ (2,622)
Income tax expense (benel 254 (214 9738 (1,02¢6)
Net income (loss $ 172 $ (665 $ 1,351 $(1,59¢
Basic earnings (loss) per common st $ 001 $ (0.0 $ 007 $ (0.08¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh $ 001 $ (0.0 $ 007 $ (0.0¢

The Company recorded a net loss of $5.5 milliortferfourth quarter of 2010. The Company'’s fourtlarter 2010 operating results included
an $8.1 million provision for loan losses and $4hiflion recorded in nonperforming asset expenseapetations of other real estate owned
“OREQ” due to fourth quarter 2010 OREO expensewsdsy OREO property write-downs to net realizatdkig, and final resolution of certain
classified loans and assets. 2009 fourth quarsedteeincluded $4.2 million of provision for loanskes, partially offset by a $1.3 million gain
recognized on the sale of our merchant procesgegations.

On January 27, 2011, the Company announced thHabisd of Directors declared a cash dividend 00%@er share of its common stock. The
dividend will be payable on March 4, 2011 to stauklers of record on February 9, 2011.
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NOTE 19 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS(Unaudited)

Pending acquisitions

On September 13, 2010, the Company signed a deéimterger Agreement to acquire DG Bancorp, Ind &s wholly-owned subsidiary,
Downers Grove National Bank. Founded in 1955, Dawii&rove National Bank is a privately held commyiank with $219 million in asse
and $213 million in deposits as of December 31 02@bwners Grove National Bank has two bankingtioca in Downers Grove and

Westmont, IL communities. The transaction has tzmroved by the Bank’s primary federal regulatioe, ©ffice of Thrift Supervision, and is
expected to close in the first quarter of 2011 jestttto customary closing conditions.

We are in the process of negotiating the acquisitioa portfolio of performing loans from CitibahkA. with an aggregate unpaid principal
balance of approximately $155.8 million. The pustha scheduled to close in March 2011, subjectisbomary closing conditions. This loan
portfolio consists of multifamily loans originatég Citibank N.A. or the former Citibank, F.S.B. aifé loans are secured by real estate
collateral located in the Chicago metropolitan neadrea. The portfolio consists of 470 loans witfogerall weighted average effective yield
of 5.87%. All loans in the portfolio were current all payments due as of the month prior to thetmanwhich the purchase is scheduled to
close. Upon the closing of the purchase, we exjpefite a Current Report on Form 8-K further delitrg the portfolio acquisition transaction
and the portfolio characteristics.
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ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not Applicable.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a) Evaluation of disclosure controls and proceslure

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our Principal Execu@fécer and Principal Financial Officer,
we evaluated the effectiveness of the design aedatipn of our disclosure controls and proceduassdgfined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 1Bs{e)
under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the figeal ( “Evaluation Date”). Based upon that evatmtthe Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer concluded that, astwd Evaluation Date, our disclosure controls anadgadares were effective in timely alerting
them to the material information relating to us gar consolidated subsidiaries) required to beuihet! in our periodic Securities and Exchange
Commission filings.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Con@ukr Financial Reporting.

The annual report of management on the effectiveeagsur internal control over financial reportiagd the attestation report thereon issued by
our independent registered public accounting firmset forth under “Report of Management on Inte@antrol Over Financial Reportingind
“Report of Independent Registered Public Accountirgn on Internal Control Over Financial Reportingider Item 8 - “Financial Statements
and Supplementary Data.”

(c) Changes in internal controls.

There were no changes made in our internal contiwli®ig the fourth quarter of 2010 or, to our kneelde, in other factors that have materially
affected, or are reasonably likely to materiallieaf these controls.

See the Certifications pursuant to Section 30hef3arbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not Applicable.
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PART llI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Directors and Executive Officers

The information concerning our directors and exeeufficers required by this item will be filed thithe Securities and Exchange Commis
by amendment to this Form 10-K, not later than d2¢s after the end of our fiscal year.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

The information concerning compliance with the mtipg requirements of Section 16(a) of the Seasittxchange Act of 1934 by our
directors, officers and 10 percent stockholdersiireg by this item will be filed with the Securgi@and Exchange Commission by amendment
to this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days afterehd of our fiscal year.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for Senior Firgificers that applies to our principal executofécer, principal financial officer,
principal accounting officer, and persons perforgrsimilar functions. A copy of our Code of Ethicasvattached as Exhibit 14 to our Annual
Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities anctBange Commission on March 27, 2006. We havealspted a Code of Business
Conduct, pursuant to Nasdaq requirements, thatespgénerally to our directors, officers, and ergpks.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information concerning compensation requiredhiyitem will be filed with the Securities anddiange Commission by amendment to
this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information concerning security ownership ataia beneficial owners and management requirethisyitem will be filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission by amendmaehisté-orm 10-K, not later than 120 days after theé ef our fiscal year.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Corpensation Plan

The following table sets forth information regamglithhe securities that were authorized for issuameker our 2006 Equity Incentive Plan as of
December 31, 2010:

Column (A) Column (B) Column (C)
Number of
Securities
Remaining
Available for Future
Number of
Securities to be Weighted-Average |ssuance under 200
Issued Upon
Exercise of Exercise Price of
Outstanding Outstanding Equity Incentive
Options, Warrants Options, Warrants Plan (Excluding
Securities Reflectec
Plan Category and Rights and Rights in Column (A))
Equity compensation plans approved by stockhol 2,296,22 $ 16.52 244.,62.
Equity compensation plans not approved by stocldre — — —
Total 2,296,22! 16.52 244.62:

Column (A) represents stock options and restristedk outstanding under the Company’s 2006 Equitemtive Plan. Future equity awards
under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan may take tlinfof stock options, stock appreciation rightsf@enance unit awards, restricted stock,
restricted performance stock, restricted stocksystiock awards or cash. Column (B) representa/élighted-average exercise price of the
outstanding stock options only; the outstandingricted stock awards are not included in this daliion. Column (C) represents the maximum
aggregate number of future equity awards that eaméde under the 2006 Equity Incentive Plan aseafeinber 31, 2010.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information concerning certain relationshipd eglated transactions required by this will bediwith the Securities and Exchange
Commission by amendment to this Form 10-K, notltiten 120 days after the end of our fiscal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information concerning principal accountansfaad services will be filed with the Securitiesl &xchange Commission by amendment to
this Form 10-K, not later than 120 days after the ef our fiscal year.

PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a)(1) Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statementlod tegistrant and its subsidiaries are filed asgfahis document under Item 8 - “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

(A) Report of Independent Registered Accounting F

(B) Consolidated Statements of Financial Condi- at December 31, 2010 and 2(

(C) Consolidated Statements of Operations for the ymaded December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2

(D) Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockh¢ Equity for the years ended December 31, 2010, 20@9200¢
(E) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeraled December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2

(F) Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateme
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(a)(2) Financial Statement Schedules
None.

(a)(3) Exhibits
The documents set forth below are filed herewitinoorporated herein by reference to the locatimlicated.

Exhibit Location

3.1  Articles of Incorporation of BankFinancial Corpacat Exhibit 3.1 to the Registration Statement on Fo-1 of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities angdcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

3.2  Bylaws of BankFinancial Corporation Exhibit 3.2 to the Registration Statement on Forh @& the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

3.3 Articles of Amendment to Charter of BankFinanciar@oration  Exhibit 3.3 to the Registration Statement on Fo-1 of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

3.4 Restated Bylaws of BankFinancial Corporat Exhibit 3.4 to the Annual Report on Form-K of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mission on
March 15, 200:

4 Form of Common Stock Certificate of BankFinanciak@ration Exhibit 4 to the Registration Statement on Form &-the
Company, originally filed with the Securities angdcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

10.1 Employee Stock Ownership PI Exhibit 10.1 to the Registration Statement on F8-1 of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities angdcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

10.2 Deferred Compensation Plan Exhibit 10.2 to the Registration Statement on F&qh of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

10.3 BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with F. Mor Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Report on For-K of the Company
Gasior originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@nission on
May 5, 200¢

10.4 BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Jamé&s&nnar Exhibit 10.3 to the Current Report on Form 8-Kloé Company,
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mnission on
May 5, 2008

10.5 BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with PauCkautier Exhibit 10.2 to the Current Report on For-K of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mission on
May 5, 200¢

10.6 BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Christ Exhibit 10.5 to the Current Report on For-K of the Company
Calabrese originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mnission on
May 5, 200¢

10.1z Form of Incentive Stock Option Award Terms Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compeoriginally
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiniSeptember
5, 2006

10.1% 2006 BankFinancial Corporation Equity Incentiverf Appendix C to the Definitive Form 14A, originallildd with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on May 25, ZB0é No.
00(-51331)

10.14 Form of Performance Based Incentive Stock Optiorafnerms Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compeoriginally
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiSeptember

5, 2006
10.15 Form of Nor-Qualified Stock Option Award Tern Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Forn-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiSeptember
5, 2006
10.1€ Form of Performance Based MQualified Stock Option Awar ~ Exhibit 10.4 to the Report on Forn-K of the Company, originall
Terms filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission o

September 5, 20C
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10.17

10.1€

10.1¢

10.2C

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.27

10.2¢

10.2¢€

10.3C

14

21

23

311

31.2

32

Exhibit

Location

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreem:

Form of Performance Based Restricted Stock Awance&ment

Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreem:

Form of Stock Appreciation Rights Agreement

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement Wt
Morgan Gasior

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement viddul A.
Cloutier

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement wilmes J.
Brennan

BankFinancial Corporation Employment Agreement \idtizabeth
A. Doolan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Elizab&.
Doolan

BankFinancial FSB Employment Agreement with Gregédams

Code of Ethics for Senior Financial Officers

Subsidiaries of Registra

Consent of Crowe Horwath LL

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant $ection 302 ¢
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieihancial Office
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb-Oxley Act of 2002*

Exhibit 10.5 to the Report on Forn-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiniseptember
5, 2006

Exhibit 10.6 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compeoriginally
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissiniSeptember
5, 2006

Exhibit 10.7 to the Report on Forr-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiniseptember
5, 2006

Exhibit 10.8 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compeoriginally
filed with the Securities and Exchange CommissioiSeptember
5, 2006

Exhibit 10.1 to the Report on Forn-K of the Company, originall
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissinr©atober 20,
2008

Exhibit 10.2 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compeoriginally
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissior©atober 20,
2008

Exhibit 10.3 to the Report on Form 8-K of the Compeoriginally
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissior©atober 20,
2008

Exhibit 10.28 to the Annual Report on Forn-K of the Company
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@nission on
February 23, 200¢

Exhibit 10.28 to the Annual Report on Form 10-kileé Company,
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mission on
February 23, 200¢

Exhibit 10.30 to the Annual Report on Formr-K/A of the
Company originally filed with the Securities anddBange
Commission on April 30, 201!

Exhibit 14 to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of thempany,
originally filed with the Securities and Exchangen@mnission on
March 27, 200¢

Exhibit 21 to the Registration Statement on For-1 of the
Company, originally filed with the Securities andcBange
Commission on September 23, 2(

Filed herewitr

Filed herewitr

Filed herewitr

Furnished herewit

* A signed original of this written statement rexpd by Section 906 has been provided to the Compadywill be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionior its staff upon reque:
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regyidthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

BANKFINANCIAL CORPORATION

Date: March 9, 2011 By: /s/ F. Morgan Gasior
F. Morgan Gasio
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer @&residen
(Duly Authorized Representativ

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh of 1934, this report has been signed belothéjollowing persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

Signatures Title Date
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive
/s/ F. Morgan Gasic Officer and President (Principal Executive  \arch 9, 2011
F. Morgan Gasio Officer)
Executive Vice President and Chief
/s/ Paul A. Cloutier Financial Officer (Principal Financial March 9, 2017
Paul A. Cloutiel Officer)
/sl Elizabeth A. Doolan Senior Vice President and Controller March 9, 201’
Elizabeth A. Doolar (Principal Accounting Officer
/s/ Cassandra J. Francis March 9, 2017
Cassandra J. Franc Director
/s/ John M. Hausmar March 9. 2017
John M. Hausman Director
/s/ Sherwin R. Koopmar March 9. 2011
Sherwin R. Koopman Director
s/ Joseph A. Schu March 9. 2011
Joseph A. Schu Director
/s| Terry R. Wellg March 9. 2011
Terry R. Wells Director
/s/ Glen R. Wherfe March 9. 2011
Glen R. Wherfe Director ’
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Exhibit 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference irRbgistration Statement No. 333-127737 on Formo$BankFinancial Corporation, of our
report dated March 8, 2011, with respect to thesobidated financial statements of BankFinancialg@oation and the effectiveness of the

Company'’s internal control over financial reportimghich report appears in this Annual Report omfr@0-K of BankFinancial Corporation f
the year ended December 31, 2010.

Crowe Horwath LLP

Oak Brook, lllinois
March 8, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, F. Morgan Gasior, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corparat

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules

13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedutes tesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regit’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registrée's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalwaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 9, 201 /s/ F. Morgan Gasic

F. Morgan Gasior
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer drésiden



Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

[, Paul A. Cloutier, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of BankFinancial Corporation, a Maryland corparat

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules

13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and procedutes tesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgubsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgrite period in which this report is being prepa

b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or caused such internal control over finah@gorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentidsineport our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regit’s internal control over financial reporting thatooed during the registrée's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal comvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that invalwaanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 9, 201 /s/ Paul A. Cloutie

Paul A. Cloutier
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



Exhibit 32

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes- Oxley Aof 2002

F. Morgan Gasior, Chairman of the Board, Chief Etiwe Officer and President of BankFinancial Cogimm, a Maryland corporation (the
“Company”) and Paul A. Cloutier, Executive Vice Sident and Chief Financial Officer of the Compagegch certify in his capacity as an
officer of the Company that he has reviewed theuahreport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decemlie2010 (the “Report”) and that to
the best of his knowledge:

1. the Report fully complies with the requirementsSeictions 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchahgeof 1934; anc
2. the information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial cbadiand results of operations of 1

Company.
Date: March 9, 201 /s/ F. Morgan Gasic
F. Morgan Gasior
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer d&résiden
Date: March 9, 201 /s/ Paul A. Cloutie

Paul A. Cloutiel
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

A signed original of this written statement reqditgy Section 906 has been provided to the Compadydl be retained by the Company and
furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commissiats staff upon reques



